Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7t Street, Eureka

Agenda for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
November 9, 2023
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 AM

District Mission

Reliably deliver high-quality drinking water to the communities and customers we serve in the
greater Humboldt Bay Area at a reasonable cost. Reliably deliver untreated water to our wholesale
industrial customer(s) at a reasonable cost. Protect the long-term water supply and water quality
interests of the District in the Mad River watershed.

3k 3k 3k ok 3k 3k ok sk ok ok sk ok ok ok sk ok ok sk ok sk sk sk sk ok ok ok sk ok 5k sk ok sk ok 5k 3k 3k ok ok 5k ok 3k 3k sk 3k ok 5k 3k 3k ok ok 5k >k 3k 3k sk 5k sk 5k 3k 3k 3k >k 5k >k 3k 3k >k 3k >k 5k 3k 3%k 3k >k 5k >k %k 3k >k 5k >k 5k 3k %k 5k %k %k %k *k %k kk k

Members of the public may join the meeting online at:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86710296323?pwd=MjZIdGxRa08wZOFWOHJrUINhZnFLQT09

Or participate by phone: 1-669-900-9128 Enter meeting ID: 867 1029 6323 Enter password: 484138
If you are participating via phone and would like to comment, please press *9 to raise your hand.

How to Submit Public Comment: Members of the public may provide public comments via email
until 5 p.m. the day before the Board Meeting by sending comments to office@hbmwd.com. Email
comments must identify the agenda item in the email’s subject line. Written comments may also
be mailed to 828 7th Street, Eureka, CA 95501. Written comments should identify the agenda item
number. Comments may also be made in person at the meeting.

Announcement recording of meeting: This meeting may be recorded to assist in the
preparation of minutes. Recordings will only be kept 30 days following the meeting, as
mandated by the California Brown Act.

Time Set Items:

8.2 Continuing Business McNamara & Peepe 9:15 AM
9a New Business Foster Clean Power 9:30 AM
9b New Business NOP, receive public comment 10:00 AM
10.1 Engineering Engineering 11:00 AM

The Board will take a scheduled lunch break from 12:00 pm to 1:30 pm.

1. ROLL CALL
2. FLAG SALUTE

3. ACCEPT AGENDA

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public are invited to address the Board on items not listed on the agenda that are within
the scope and jurisdiction of the District. At the discretion of the President, comments may be limited to
three minutes per person. The public will be allowed to address items on the agenda when the Board takes
up that item. Under the Brown Act, the Board may not take action on any item that does not appear on
the agenda.

5. MINUTES
October 12, 2023, Regular Board Meeting Minutes*- discuss and possibly approve


mailto:office@hbmwd.com
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86710296323?pwd=MjZldGxRa08wZ0FWOHJrUlNhZnFLQT09

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7t Street, Eureka

Agenda for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
November 9, 2023
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 AM

6. CONSENT AGENDA *-These matters are routine in nature and are usually approved by a combined single vote unless
an item is pulled for discussion

Media articles of local/water interest (Articles a-c)*- discuss and possibly approve

7. CORRESPONDENCE
a. Eureka Chamber of Commerce 2024 Awards Gala*-discuss

8. CONTINUING BUSINESS
8.1  Water Resource Planning— Status report on water use options under consideration*-discuss
a. Local Sales
i. Nordic Aquafarms*-discuss
ii. Trinidad Rancheria Mainline Extension-discuss
iii. Blue Lake Rancheria Mainline Extension-discuss

iv. Offshore Wind Heavy Lift Multipurpose Marine Terminal Project-discuss
b.  Transport-discuss

C. Instream Flow-discuss

8.2 McNamara & Peepe (Time Set 9:15 am)
a. DTSC Monthly Summary Report, October*- discuss
b. DTSC Quarterly virtual update — October 24*- discuss
c.  Site maps & historical sampling results (stormwater and well water)*-reference

9. NEW BUSINESS

a. Foster Clean Power LLC License Agreement*-discuss and possibly approve
(Time Set 9:30 am)

b.  NOP Public hearing *- receive public comment (Time Set 10:00 am)

10. REPORTS (from STAFF)

10.1 Engineering — (Time set 11:00 am)
a. Collector 2 Rehabilitation Project*-status report
b Essex Onsite Sodium Hypochlorite Generation-status report
C. TRF Generator-status report
d Collector Mainline Redundancy Project
i. Match Commitment letter*-discuss and possibly approve
ii. Collector Mainline extension project*-discuss
e. Reservoirs Seismic Retrofit Project-Status report
i. GHD Scope of Services for phase 2*-discuss and possibly approve
f. Status report re: other engineering work in progress

10.2 Financial
a.  October 2023 Financial Statement & Vendor Detail Report*-discuss and possibly approve
b.  October 2023 Fieldbrook-Glendale contract revenue and Expense Summary*-discuss

2



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7t Street, Eureka
Agenda for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

November 9, 2023
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 AM

10.3 Operations
a.  October Operations Report*-discuss

b.  Surplus equipment request*-discuss and possibly approve

104 Management
District org chart*-discuss

a

b.  State of California Dam safety report*-discuss

c Nominees for 2024 Eureka Chamber Board of Directors*-discuss
d ACWA Headwaters working group*-discuss

11. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION
11.1 General — comments or reports from Directors

11.2 ACWA
Director Report, if any

11.3 ACWA-JPIA
Director Report, if any

11.4 Organizations on which HBMWD Serves
a. RCEA*-—report out
b.  RREDC*-report out

ADJOURNMENT

ADA compliance statement: In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office at (707) 443-5018. Notification
48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility to this meeting. (Posted and mailed November 3, 2023.)




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Board of Directors Meeting

November 9, 2023

Ruth Lake
Photo by Darcey Quinn



MINUTES



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water SECTION__>__ PAGENO, |
District 828 7t Street, Eureka | i

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 12, 2023

ROLL CALL
President Latt called the meeting to order at 9:00 am. Director Ruppconducted the roll call. Directors
Fuller, Latt, Lindberg, Rupp and Woo were present, General Manager John Friedenbach, Superintendent
Dale Davidsen, Business Manager Chris Harris and acting Board Secretary Sherrie Sobol were present.
District Engineer Nathan Stevens was present for a portion of the meeting.

1. FLAG SALUTE
President Latt led the flag salute.

2. ACCEPT AGENDA
On motion by Director Latt, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 to accept the agenda.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
No public comment was received.

4, MINUTES
a. September 14, 2023, Regular Board Meeting Minutes
The Board requested a few changes to help clarify the minutes. On motion by Director Rupp,
seconded by Director Lindberg, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the minutes as amended.

b, September 22, 2023, Special Jeint Board Meeting with Ruth Lake CSD
The Board requested two grammatical changes. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director
Woo, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the minutes as amended.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
Director Fuller requested ltem B “California water rights verification bill, SB 389, passes Senate and

advances to Governor's Desk” be pulled. On motion by Director Lindberg, seconded by Director Woo, the
Board voted 5-0 to approve the Consent Agenda, less Item B,

Director Fuller stated she was disappointed to see the District’s name listed in opposition to the bill. She
believed the bill did not have a direct nexus to the District. The District has its water rights regulated under
the current system. President Latt noted that ACWA sends out action alerts when they have a position on
a bill. He stated that McKinleyville CSD also signed in opposition and that their board member Dennis
Mayo, serves on the ACWA Board. Director Fuller stated it's not a huge issue and that Mr. Friedenbach is
doing his best, especially when there is no time to bring an item to the Board. A brief discussion was held
regarding revisiting parameters /guidelines or forming a Board Legislative Committee for supporting or
opposing legislative issues. It was also suggested that the Regulatory Analyst Il take the lead on legislative

issues. On motion by Director Fuller, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 to approve Consent
Itemn B.

6. CORRESPONDENCE
a. HBMWD letter RE: Emergency Acticn Plan (EAP) tabletop and functional exercises
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission {FERC) previously requested notification of the date of
the District’s EAP tabletop and functional exercise. Mr. Friedenbach shared the letter he sent to
{(FERC} conveying the date of September 27, 2024 and requesting attendance by FERC staff.




PAGE NO._ L

——

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water SECTION
District 828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 12, 2023

b. HBMWD letter RE: Grant agreement number WC-1739BC extension request
Staff requested an extension due to unforeseen delays in completing tasks under the Work Plan for
the grant agreement. The extension has been approved through March 31, 2024. Mr. Friedenbach
noted this was an extremely quick turn-around since the request was submitted on September 18
and approved on September 19.

c. HBMWD letter RE: Amendment NO.2 to grant agreement WC-1739BC
This letter was the approval of extension as noted above,

d.  Letier from Cal QES: Notice of Power Resiliency Grant completion
Mr. Friedenbach shared the letter from CalOES congratulating the District on completion of the grant
program. The grant received was for $215,000 which covered 74% of the costs for the 12kV interface
to the backup generator. Director Woo stated the District has great consulting engineers who play
a huge role in the District receiving grants. Director Fuller concurred.,

e.  Email from Fureka Chamber of Commerce RE: Nominations for 2024 Chamber Board
The Eureka Chamber of Commerce is currently accepting applications for their 2024 Board. Mr.
Friedenbach inquired if any of the Directors were interested in applying. No one expressed interest.

. CONTINUING BUSINESS
7.1 Water Resource Plannhing
a. Local Sales
i. Nordic Aquafarms
The North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board approved a NPDES permit for
Nordic Aquafarms for the discharge of wastewater.

ii. Trinidad Rancheria Mainline Extension
No update was received.

jiii. Blue Lake Rancheria Mainline Extension
The project is moving forward. An RFP for engineering services was published.

iv. Offshore Wind Heavy Lift Multipurpose Marine Terminal Project
No update was received. It was noted that Larry Oetker, current GM of Humboldt Bay
Harbor and Recreation & Conservation District, will be retiring scon. The Directors stated
it is important to keep the lines of communication cpen with their new GM.

b. Transport
No update was available.

C. Instream Flow
Director Woo provided a presentation to the CalPoly Engineering Department about the
District’s Instream Flow (ISF) dedication and District in general. The students were very
interested. About 20% of the questions were directly related to ISF and 80% were more

about the District in general. They were very interested in the operations of the District and
distribution of water.



SECTION S PAGENO._3

—— e ]

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 12, 2023

The draft Section 1707 Petition for Change was submitted to the Water Board staff for their
draft review. The District received a comment letter from NMFS in response to the District’s
Petition for Change. The Instream Flow Committee met to discuss the issues raised by NMFS.
The Committee shared that the letter clearly shows that NMFS staff does not understand
that our Section 1707 Petition for Change does not propose changing District operations.
NMFS staff seems to believe that the amount proposed for instream flow dedication is in
addition to current operations, which is not correct. it was stated that there have been
numerous face-to-face meetings with NMFS staff that should have been effective at
communicating what the Section 1707 Petition for Change is about. This will now be
communicated to NMFS in writing and it will hopefully help them understand correctly that
there will be no change in our current operations. Director Fuller stated she believes that
the SWRCB will understand, even though NMFS does not. President Latt stated the District
needs to clarify that our 1707 Petition for Change is not about augmentation, but rather
cadification of our current operations, Director Woo siated that the District was asked to
participate and provide a presentation at the upcoming Humboldt Bay Symposium and this
would be a good opportunity to do this.

7.2 McNamara & Peepe

Director Woo recused herself due to a conflict of interest and left the room. She returned when
discussion ended.

a. DTSC Monthly Summary Report, September
Mr. Friedenbach discussed the monthly report. A summary of activities and results for the
2023 site investigation was submitted by SHN. This is for work done from June -August 2023.
The final work plan should be available on the Envirostor website, however, he has not yet
seen it. The contract with SHN will expire in December 2023. DTSC is preparing a contract
renewal to extend activities with SHN. The Board concurred it is very frustrating to wait so
long for results to be shared.

b. DTSC Quarterly virtual update — October 24" at 10:00 a.m.
President Latt inquired if the District had any concerns, other than timeliness of reports, to
raise at the virtual meeting. It was requested that DTSC explain the reasoning on where the
water samples were taken, especially given some new information that was recently
received on where chemicals may have been disposed on the site.

C. Site maps & historical sampling results {stormwater and well water)
The maps are included for reference only.

7.3 Annie & Mary Trail- Temporary Occupancy Exception Letter
The City of Arcata continues to advance the NEPA environmental studies required for the Annie &
Mary Trail project. One component of the NEPA process is Section 4{f), consideration of potential
project impacts on public property in the project area. Since the trail project will impact HBMWD's
Park 1 temporarily, the Temporary Occupancy Exception Letter is required. Fortunately, there will
not be any major impacts to Park 1 and the paving of the parking lot and access road will be
improvements to District facilities. Staff requested the Board authorize the General Manager to sign

3



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water SECTION__>__ PAGE NO'--%-—-—

District 828 7t Street, Eureka o
Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors L

October 12, 2023

and submit to Caltrans the letter regarding Section 4(f} Finding for the Annie and Mary Trail Project
noting that the project would not adversely affect a publicly owned park and use of the property
would not result in a Section 4(f) use per the temporary occupancy exception. On motion by Director
Fuller, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 to authorize the General Manager to sign
and submit the Caltrans letter.

8. NEW BUSINESS
a.  DRAFT Workplace Bullying Policy
Last month, staff presented Chapter 1 of the proposed revisions of the Employee Handbook for edits
and input. Directors noted the lack of a bullying policy. Ms, Harris reached out to ACWA IPIA, for
guidance and was provided a Workplace Bullying Policy that they are taking to their board. She
shared the draft policy on Workplace Bullying and requested Director input and edits. The Directors
concurred it was well done. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Lindberg the Board
voted 5-0 to approve the draft Workplace Bullying Policy.

b. Employee Handbook chapter 2
Based on feedback from the September Board meeting, staff has provided Section 1005-Equal
Employment Opportunity from Chapter 1 of the Employee Handbook for additional review with the
suggested changes/edits in red. The Board concurred to remove the first sentence inred. Chapter
2 was also provided for Director review and input. Several changes were suggested and Ms. Harris
stated she will bring back Chapter 2 with the suggested edits for review.

c.  Policy for Disposing of Retmoved stumps at Ruth Lake District property

At the District’s loint Board meeting with Ruth Lake CSD, the topic of tree stump disposal was raised.
Mr. Friedenbach shared the proposed modification to add three options for stump disposal, all at the
sole cost and expense of the Lease Lot holder. The options are: 1. Burning on Lease Lot from which
it was removed; 2. Burning on HBMWD Buffer Strip at a location determined by HBMWD; and 3.
Disposal off HBMWD property in accordance with Federal, State and Local waste disposal laws and
regulations. If the Board approves this, the current tree removal policy will be updated. On motion
by Director Lindberg, seconded by Director Rupp, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the proposed
modification regarding tree stump disposal and update the policy for tree removal.

9. REPORTS (from STAFF}

9.1 Engineering
a. Samoa Peninsula Waterline right-of-way maintenance project

i. NQP Staff Memo
Staff has contracted with GHD to prepare an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) to
obtain environmental clearance and permits for the Samoa Peninsula Waterline
Right-of-Way Maintenance Prcject. One of the first steps in the EIR process is to
prepare a Notice of Preparation (NOP). Part of the process for the NOP is to conduct
a public scoping meeting to receive comments from the pubiic. The draft NOP was
shared with the Directors for their initial review.

ii. Draft Notice of Preparation (NOP)
Kerry McNamee of GHD provided an overview of the NOP. The NOP is the first step

4



S8ECTION_5 __PAGENO. 5
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water

District 828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 12, 2023

of the EIR. The NOP is filed with the County and provides an opportunity for public
feedback. The purpose is to engage the public and appropriate agencies during the
30-day comment period. This is a time to receive public comment, not to answer all
comments and questicns.

Collector 2 Rehabilitation Project

Mr. Stevens shared that Payment Request 6 was received from the contractor Layne
Christensen in the amount of $571,733.75. He expects to see a change order next month
to cover additional crew that was brought in to expedite work. It is currently anticipated
that work will be required in the river beyond October 15, 2023 and a request for an
extension was sent to CDFW. No issues are expected. It is expected that work will be off
the river and the project in full operation by the end of October. He noted that the laterals
developed well and he is happy with the 530 feet of total lateral length achieved.

Essex Onsite Sodium Hypochlorite Generation
The tanks have been orderad and much of the other equipment has arrived.

TRF Generator
The project is on track for 60% design submittal in November.

Collector Mainline Redundancy Project
i. HBMWD time extension request to CalQES
Mr. Friedenbach requested a 24-month extension of time from CalOES to complete
Phase | of the Collector Mainline Redundancy project. It takes FEMA about 18
months to do the NEPA work, then an additional six months for GEI to complete
their work, If approved, this would extend the project activity date to December 4,
2025. He has not yet heard back from CalOES however, he expects the extension
to be granted.

ii. GEI DRAFT Cost Proposal for Change in Scope of Phase 1 Work

GEl provided a draft cost proposal for Change in Scope of Phase 1 Work-
Geotechnical Hazard. The cost proposal is an incremental cost to the District of
potentially $925,000. The District does not currently have sufficient funding at this
time for the project. Staff sees three options: 1. Scrap the project and forego having
a second/redundant water transmission line from the Collectors up to the TRF. This
subjects the District to bearing the single point failure risk in the transmission line;
2. Move forward with the grant extension and submit the change in scope of work,
If Phase | grant extension is approved, research options such as Advance Charges,
Project Budget Reallocations, general reserves, grants or financing to close the
funding gap during the 24-month extension period. If funding is not secured,
Option 1 decision can be made at this future time; 3 Move forward without further
geotechnical investigations.

Since the grant requires the District to assert that the new pipeline would mitigate
against earthquake failure, it is not likely that the District or its consultants can
make the affirmative statement without the additional geotechnical investigations.

5



L

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 12, 2023

Annmarie Behan, Senior Geotechnical Engineer for GEI provided information on
methods to help determine fault areas and discussed options for pipeline
placement locations. She shared that the additional geotechnical investigative
work will help determine pipeline location options and types of drilling needed such
as HDD. Knowing where the faults are will also impact other propased projects. Mr.
Friedenbach recommended giving GE! the approval to move forward with the
additional Geotech work {$925,000) since there is time to come up with funding via
grants, loans, etc. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Woo, the
Board voted 5-0 to adopt Option 2 and move forward with the geotechnical work.
The Board thanked Annmarie for her presentation,

Matthews Dam HMG Advance Assistance Seismic Stability Project
Mr. Stevens reviewed the Immediate Needs Funding {INF) Fact Sheet. This Seismic Stability
Project falls under the INF which means funds will not be obligated anytime soon.

Status report re: other engineering work in progress
Nothing to report.

9.2 Financial

d.

September 2023 Financial Statement & Vendor Detall Report

Ms. Harris presented the September 2023 financial report. The investment and interest-
bearing accounts balance is $10,062,631.43. The General Funds Reserves account is at
$3,439,782.36. Director Lindberg reviewed the bills and had no concerns. On motion by
Director Rupp, seconded by Director Lindberg the Board voted 5-0 to approve the
September financial report and vendor detail in the amount of $197,916.47.

September 2023 Fieldbrook-Glendale contract revenue and Expense Summary
This section of the report has been broken out for transparency. It used to be included in
the main financial report, but this means of presentation is much easier to see at a glance.

Annual PARS Client Review

The District has a PARS Section 115 Trust Account for the purpose of unfunded pension
liability rate stabilization, On an annual bhasis, PARS investment management staff meets
with District management staff to review the District’s current investment strategy for the
PARS account. The purpose of the review is to ensure the District continues to utilize the
best market position available when considering the CalPERS unfunded. liability needs for
the near future. Due to market conditions, the District’s portfolio manager (Andrew Brown)

for the PARS account has recommended shifting PARS investment assets into a less volatile

portfolio, as he believes the market will continue to slump. Ms. Harris shared three options
for the Board to consider.

Options are as follows: 1. Additional contributions into the PARS Section 115 Trust Account;
2. Increase the “funded budget” for Unfunded Pension Liability from $200,000 to $250,000
(or alternate amount); and 3. Accept Mr. Brown's suggestion to shift the District’s

6

| 5 PAGENO,

(g

amenap—



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7*" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 12, 2023

investments in the PARS account from the Moderate Portfolio into the Moderately
Conservative Portfolio. If the Board decides to transfer the funds, staff will complete and
acquire signatures on the appropriate forms to complete the transfer. Staff shared that a
A™ option is to consider is financing the District’s unfunded liability. Ms. Harris noted that
unfunded liability will never go away as long as there are employees. She recommended the
Board consider the first three options-all of them. After a brief discussion, on motion by
Director Lindberg, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 to make additional

contributions, increase the funded budget, and move the funds to a Moderately
Conservative Portfolio.

9.3  OQOperations

September Operations Report

Superintendent Davidsen provided the September Operations Report. Three Essex staff went to
Ruth to do dye testing of spillway drains and prepare the spillway for drone mapping. On the way
back, Unit 7 broke down and needed to be hauled back to Essex. Mr. Friedenbach added the
original cost of repairs was estimated at $25,000. Thanks to the combined efforts of Mr. Davidsen
and Ms. Harris, the costs decreased to $2,500 with the majority of the work being covered under
warranty. A crew went to Ruth later in the week and conducted the annual log boom inspection
and the drone spillway mapping. The Safety meeting topic was Forklift Safety Training.
Operations staff distributed and collected the Lead and Copper samples and sent them to the lab.
Mr. Davidsen staffed a booth at the College of the Redwoods Career Expo and that went very well,

10.4 Management .
a. National Public Lands Day at Ruth Lake
Mr. Friedenbach shared the flyer for the Ruth Lake Cleanup that took place on September 23,
He and another staff member participated in the cleanup. The cleanup was a success, as noted
in the publication The Trinity Journal. Mr. Friedenbach presented the Directors with custom
made t-shirts from the event. The Board was appreciative of the cleanup efforts as weli as the

shirts. Mr. Friedenbach stated it was a good event and he was happy to participate. Lots of
trash was retrieved.

b. Reforestation practitioners’ symposium

Mr. Friedenbach provided details, per requiest, on the Reforestation Practitioners’ Symposium
taking place on November 15" and 16",

10. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION
10.1 General — comments or reports from Directors
Director Woo asked about District job descriptions and inquired if the section “Required Knowledge,
Skills and Abilities” were required at the time of hire. Ms. Harris replied yes, unless otherwise noted.

Director Rupp stated he would like to see what other local agencies are paying their directors for

attendance at board meetings. He would like this topic {and comps) brought back to the Board for
discussion.



M ————ce

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water SECTION,

= S PAGENO._O
District 828 7'" Street, Eureka 4

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 12, 2023

10.2 ACWA
a.  Director Report
Director Rupp stated the ACWA Board members are currently working on a Code of Conduct
policy. He attended an Executive Committee meeting and he is still on the Region 1 Board
however, he has stepped down as chair and this will involve less time commitment. He
stated the Legislative Committee has done well. They were very successful and effective
with issues they chose to support. The Personnel Committee met and are trying to
determine at what level do they need to be made aware of personne! issues. This is
important since 67% of ACWA’s costs are personnel,

b. ACWA Board officers’ election and Region election results for the 2024-2025 term
The list of election results was provided. Director Rupp is still serving on Region 1 board.

10.3 ACWA -IJPIA
Director Report
Director Rupp reported the Liability Insurance Committee met and it looks like liability insurance
will increase on average of ten percent. He believed the District’s increase was going to be less
and Ms. Harris confirmed this. The Finance Committee met and reviewed the Investment
Program.

10.4 Organizations on which HBMWD Serves
a. RCEA
Director Woo stated when Director Rupp mentioned personnel issues it really hit home. The
RCEA directors are currently dealing with HR issues. When it reaches the level of directors,
it's never good.

b.  RREDC
The meeting was cancelled so there is nothing to report.
ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 3:07 pm.

Attest:

Neal Latt, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer




CONSENT



SECTION_(, . _PAGENO.__|__

By SAGE ALEXANDER | salexander@times-standard.com |
October 9, 2023 at 3:43 p.m.

McGuire bill signed with hopes to cut five
years off offshore wind development

Turbines of the Burbo Bank offshore wind farm lay in the wake of a maintenance boat in
the mouth of the River Mersey on in Liverpool, England. On Tuesday morning, seven
bidders began vying for five offshore wind leases off the coast of California, including
two off the coast of Humboldt Bay. (Christopher Furlong/Getty Images)

A bill championed by North Coast State Sen. Mike McGuire (D-Healdsburg) was signed
by Governor Gavin Newsom on Saturday that aims to shorten the way agencies
approve of offshore wind development. McGuire said in a press release the bill will
create a game plan to approve offshore wind across the state, as part of an attempt to
switch to renewable energy in the face of climate crisis.

According to the text of the bill, if a local government and the California Coastal

Commission consent to it, a consolidated permit may be used to approve offshore
wind development.



SECTION_(¢ O _PAGENO, &

“This bill will expedite the state-side offshore wind permitting process eliminating a
staggering 5 years off of the permitting timeline all while protecting California's coastal
environment and storied fishing fleet. The quicker we get offshore wind infrastructure
built off the Golden State’s Coast, the faster we'll get family sustaining jobs propped
up and moving,” McGuire said in a prepared statement.

The bill aims to get input from those involved by creating a working group. These
groups will make a plan for how the state will develop offshore wind and require the
California Coastal Commission to assemble the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife, the State Lands Commission, the Ocean Protection Council, representatives
from the commercial fishing industry, representatives from the offshore wind industry,
federal agencies, labor, Native American tribes and other community leaders together,
according to the release.

The working group includes commercial fishing interests, which could stand to lose
from the development of offshore wind. The bill creates a payment structure for
compensation of losses for commercial fishermen and create the "Offshore Wind
Energy Resiliency Fund” for other potential impacts.

Some representatives from North Coast tribes have noted their hesitancy in the
development of offshore wind, because of the offshore wind terminal developer,
Crowley, which has been accused of sex trafficking by former employees, who are
suing the company. Chairman of the Yurok Tribe Joseph James wrote an op-ed asking
the Humboldt Bay Harbor District to reconsider the deal with Crowley.

More specific concerns have come to a head as the development of a marine terminal
in Humboldt Bay gets closer. More tribal input in the process has previously been
asked for by a number of tribes, including Frankie Myers, vice chair of the Yurok Tribe
and representatives from the Trinidad Rancheria. A letter signed by representatives
from three other North Coast tribes and a number of local organizations further asked
for tribal input, especially in the face of murdered and missing indigenous people crisis
as well as environmental protections with a strong CEQA analysis. It called for
meaningful and ongoing public engagement and tribal consultation.

The bill also changes the lead agency for CEQA, the California Environmental Quality
Act, to the State Lands Commission. It includes transmission facilities, noted by
McGuire as a weak spot for generating electricity in Humboldt County.

The working group must be created before Jan. 1, 2025, and the bill sets approval of
the plan by the California Coastal Commission by May 2026, SB 286 will become law
January 1, 2024,

Sage Alexander can be reached at 707-441-0504



SECTION_ (0o, PAGENO._|

JULIE CART, CALMATTERS / 10/16/2023/ SACRAMENTO

A Massive Enterprise’: California’s
Offshore Wind Farms Are on a Fast
Track

Fishing boats are docked at a harbor in Humboldt Bay in Eureka. Ocean waters 20 miles off
this coast have been leased to two energy companies to develop wind farms. Photo by Larry
Valenzuela, CalMatters/CatchLight Local

If the American West represents the “geography of hope,” as author Wallace Stegner
wrote, then what better place than California’s far north to illustrate the eternal

tension between the limitless potential of big ideas and the brutal disappointment of
broken dreams?

The Golden State’s verdant North Coast, a great empire of trees and home to the Yurok,
the state’s largest Native American tribe, has seen centuries of boom and bust — riches
taken from above and beneath the earth. When gold miners brought their nuggets from
the foothills to the coast, Eureka’s broad bay became a bustling transit hub.

After the gold was gone, it was replaced with timber, “red gold.” The region’s massive
redwoods made many locals rich; when the forests were clear cut, the pulp mills came.
They, too, went bust. Dams harnessed the region’s rushing rivers to produce electricity,
causing the collapse of its prized salmon runs. A “green” cannabis revolution arrived,



SECTION_(0l> _ pag No,_

promising to bring a balm to this depressed place. But a glut of legal weed flooded the
market, leaving the plants to wither along with the growers’ dreams of wealth.

Now, once again, the siren call of capturing the North Coast’s natural resources
beckons dreamers and speculators, this time the treasure lies far off the rugged coast of
Humboldt and Del Norte counties. Its promise: The Pacific Ocean — which feeds us,

modulates our weather and delivers our goods — will provide clean, renewable energy
from its powerful winds.

The tantalizing possibility of capturing wind energy from giant floating ocean
platforms is considered essential to achieving California’s ambitious goal of electrifying
its grid with 100% zero-carbon energy. The state’s blueprint envisions offshore wind

farms producing 25 gigawatts of electricity by 2045, powering 25 million homes and
providing about 13% of the power supply.

Left: A trail through a redwood forest in Humboldt County. Photo by Larry Valenzuela,
CalMatters/CatchLight Local

A new gold rush doesn’t begin to describe the urgency of harnessing wind off California
when it comes to meeting climate goals. The first, substantial step has been taken: Last
December, the federal government auctioned off 583 square miles of ocean waters off
Humboldt Bay and the Central Coast’s Morro Bay to five energy companies — with
more lease sales expected. The five wind farms will hold hundreds of giant turbines,
each about 900 feet high, as tall as a 70-story building.

The projects will be a giant experiment: No other floating wind operations are in such
deep waters. From China to Rhode Island, about 250 offshore wind farms are operating



SECTION_(ol>__,PAGENO._>

around the world, mostly in shallow waters close to shore and secured to the ocean
floor. But the areas off California with the strongest winds are far from shore and too
deep for traditional platforms, so developers are planning clusters of floating platforms
about 20 miles off the coast, in waters more than a half-mile deep and tethered by
cables.

The depth, distance from shore and new floating technology drive up the costs and
complicate an already expansive process. Massive infusions of private and public
money will be needed. And it likely will be a decade or longer before any major wind
farms off California begin to produce power: The companies will spend up to five years
preparing technical plans and analyzing environmental impacts of each project. Then
federal and state review and permitting could take two or more years, and construction
could last five or more years.

Each of the wind farms off Humboldt and Morro Bay will require an extensive network
of offshore and onshore development, including miles of undersea transmission lines,
expanded ports, new or upgraded onshore substations and electrical distribution
networks. They would provide power to 1.5 million homes.

But the still-evolving technology of floating wind farms makes it challenging to analyze
the viability and impacts of these projects. Experts say a lack of existing data on
potential environmental effects means that much of the scientific understanding will
only begin after they are operating.

“There’s no pretending this isn’t a massive enterprise that the state of California is in
the process of embracing,” said Adam Stern, executive director of Offshore Wind
California, an industry group.

“We cannot sugarcoat it. There are massive hurdles we need to work on. We need to
wrestle these challenges to the ground and come up with work plans. That’s starting to
happen. We have to help and support the leaseholders in getting their projects off the
ground.”

A CalMatters analysis shows that California’s offshore wind projects carry a host of
implications and uncertainties:

» Energy companies will need hundreds of millions of dollars in state subsidies or
bonds to assist with the extreme costs of construction and operation. Each wind
farm could cost about $5 billion to develop, construct and assemble,



SECTION_(bo__ PAGENO.__ 4

o Wind farms require an unprecedented industrialization of the coast, with
millions in public funds to expand and upgrade ports, harbors and support
facilities.

« No one knows how wind farms will affect migrating whales and other marine
mammals and seabirds. Although other offshore wind operations around the
world have had minimal impact, they are not directly analogous to the Pacific
Ocean or floating platforms, which have cables and lines that could entangle
whales.

» Commercial fishing operations are likely to face some degree of restricted access
to leased waters, which include some of the state’s most productive fisheries.

« Local communities will bear social costs and strains on infrastructure, such as
higher housing costs and utility upgrades.

e Building transmission lines and related infrastructure to distribute the new wind
power carries a price tag of as much as $8 billion in California and at least $700
billion nationwide.

o Private investments and public funds totaling more than $260 billion will be
needed by 2045 to improve the industry’s supply chains — the parts and
materials, such as rotors and turbines — to achieve the nation’s clean energy
goals.

o The state government could become the largest customer for offshore wind
power, since it can be locked into long-term contracts for what is likely to be
expensive electricity under a new law signed by Gov. Gavin Newsom.

» Estimates of the cost of the power are speculative and vary widely, and the initial
rates could be high — as much as $133 per megawatt hour, according to a federal
analysis, compared to $34 for land-based wind.

Rather than being motivated by a can-do spirit, wind development off California is
propelled by a must-do mandate. The five companies already paid the U.S. Treasury
$757.1 million to lease the tracts off California.

Powering an expansive economy free of fossil fuels by 2045 means the state must triple
its power generation capacity and deploy new solar and wind energy at almost five
times the pace of the past decade.



SECTION (ol PAGENO.__ D _

“There is an undeniable urgency,” said David Hochschild, chair of the California Energy
Commission. “California has had unprecedented climate challenges. There is a fierce
urgency to respond. We have to stop being academic on this. We have to build.”

It’s a leap into the unknown for officials at the California Coastal Commission, which is
one of the state agencies responsible for reviewing the potential environmental
impacts of these projects.

“There’s a great deal of uncertainty in all aspects of planning of offshore wind,” said
Kate Huckelbridge, executive director of the Coastal Commission, which has legal
jurisdiction from the sea to the sand and will handle much of the analysis and
permitting.

Huckelbridge, an environmental engineer, said the agency has experience

understanding how large structures in the ocean affect the marine environment —
think offshore oil rigs. But a wind platform — each holding a towering turbine with
spinning blades as big as one-and-a half football fields — is of another magnitude.

“The scale is one of the differences that we have to get our head around,” Huckelbridge
said. “All components of these turbines are on a scale we haven’t seen before anywhere
in the world. Even though we know the questions to ask, the answers are not clear.”

A new state law streamlines the environmental approval process by consolidating
analyses by multiple state agencies and jurisdictions. The State Lands Commission will
be the lead agency for the environmental review, while the Coastal Commission is
responsible for issuing a coastal development permit.

California’s offshore power generation will feed into a federal goal of 15 gigawatts by
2035. The Biden administration calls the rush to claim this new energy frontier the
“Floating Offshore Wind Shot,” invoking the memory of the Moon Shot and the
enormous collective effort to put an American on the moon.

Welcoming with open arms — but fingers crossed

Scott Adair strode brightly into a conference room on a cold and misty summer
morning. Thoughtful and earnest, Adair had been musing about his county’s Next Big
Thing.

Two areas off Humboldt already have been leased for wind farms that will hold perhaps
50 or more turbines each, and the region is expected to host most of California’s future
projects. Wind there is strong and reliable, and, while the region badly needs a
transmission upgrade, it also has room to accommodate new infrastructure.



SECTION (ok>__ PAGENO._(o__

As the county’s director of economic development, Adair marvels at offshore wind
towers as “fantastical” structures that could boost employment and growth. But he’s

giving deep thought to everything the industry may portend for his struggling
community.

Scott Adair, Humboldt County’s director of economic development, is concerned about the
uncertainties that the region faces with offshore wind development. Photo by Larry
Valenzuela, CalMatters/CatchLight Local

Nearly a fifth of Humboldt County households live in poverty, and the region is near
the top of indicators that suggest times are tough. The county has a net out-migration,
with more and more residents leaving to look for jobs or a cheaper place to live. Adair
cites the rueful in-joke: Humboldt’s greatest export is its smart kids.

Unlike other communities along the California coast where NIMBYism dominates the
conversation, the Humboldt coast is eager to accommodate wind farms. Although the
employment projections careen all over the place, from a few hundred to several

thousand new jobs, even a small economic gain can have a welcome, profound effect in
a rural area.

And yet, perhaps because of the region’s history of exploiting forests until they
disappeared, with the mop-up left to locals, there is vigilance. “We are cautious about
the flimflam, if you will, the over-promisers,” Adair said.



SECTION_(¢b _ PAGENO.__/

Adair is clear-eyed about the region’s role as host to what will be a sudden and massive
development, with more lease areas expected to follow.

“This is a federal project that is happening to us,” Adair said. “We have a limited ability
to be involved and to help steer or shape the outcomes of the project.”

To Adair, the potential windfall is tempered by the unknown. “This is an opportunity
on a magnitude and scale that I don’t think we have seen or experienced before, in

decades, perhaps in the last century,” he said. “It’s massive, it’s huge, metaphorically,
but literally.”

In March Humboldt supervisors discussed the potential economic boon and cost to the
county, and invested $850,000 to study how to prepare, including workforce training,
legal support and supply chain analysis.

The supervisors said they are excited about the possibilities, but they also worry about
the pitfalls and are bracing for disappointment. “I go into this with my eyes wide
open,” said Supervisor Rex Bohn. “I pray this happens. I hope like hell this happens.”

Up the coast, the Yurok Tribe is feeling a tug of deja vu: outsiders dangling promises of
money and jobs in return for natural resources.

“I'm an Indigenous person. I've already seen this playbook before,” said Phillip
Williams, a Yurok Tribal Council member.

The Yurok, the largest Native American tribe in California with more than 6,500
members, battled 18th century settlers for their ancestral lands that span the sprawling
16,000-square-mile Klamath River watershed.

Phillip Williams, a member of the Yurok Tribal Council, is concerned about what the
offshore wind turbines could mean for the tribe’s environment and economy. Photo by Larry
Valenzuela, CalMatters/CatchLight Local

Williams said many in the region have been “blinded by dollars.”

“Everybody’s lining up. It’s almost like there’s a predator. ‘Okay, these guys are weak.
We can come in here and take advantage of this community that’s this desperate for
dollars, because they’ve already depleted all their natural resources. What else can we
extract from these communities, and these communities are so desperate, that they’re
willing to jump off the bridge blind, in hopes that there’s gold at the bottom,’” he said.



SECTION_(0bo_ PAGENO,_ %

e e )

Like other communities along the North Coast, Williams said the Yuroks need
sustainable jobs, but not at any cost. More than a third of tribal members live below the
poverty line, 60% of them children.

“We are trying desperately to create jobs and an economy here,” Williams said. “We
could jump off the bridge just like everybody else, join the bandwagon. A lot of very
smart people are saying, ‘let’s jump in.” Yurok, we’re not motivated by money. We’re
not willing to sell our resources for money. We’ve already done that and we’ve seen the
result of it.”

“We could jump off the bridge just like everybody else, join the bandwagon... We’re not
willing to sell our resources for money. We've already done that and we’ve seen the result
of it.”

— Phillip Williams, Yurok Tribal Council

Developers must establish community development funds and employment training
programs — potentially millions of dollars — under the conditions of their federal
leases. Among the nonprofits and other community groups angling to manage the
windfall, Adair likens the situation to “sharks circling the water to get money from
developers.”

How can the community embrace the opportunity without allowing the potential
growth to drive up the cost of living and housing or over-tax community services?

Adair said the local government’s capacity to administer even a slice of the wind energy
bureaucracy is limited.



SECTION_(z&_ PAGENO._T__

The county is already short 3,000 housing units, and he doesn’t know where the skilled
workers will come from in a region that he estimates has only 100 master electricians.
And he wonders what will happen to other construction projects, large and small,
should the wind terminal construction siphon the localized workforce.

Like many local leaders, Adair has been on a crash course to educate himself about
offshore wind technology, binging online seminars at night and on weekends.

“It seems as though, from our perspective, that Washington is putting undue pressure
and responsibility on the community and the developers to figure this all out. It’s a fast
track,” he said, adding that he’s talked to local leaders in Europe, where offshore wind

is growing. “We’re hearing a common theme: Slow it down. Take your time to really
understand it so that you get it right. ”

It’s a sentiment shared by Oregon Gov. Tina Kotek, who in June sent a letter to federal
officials asking for a pause in the offshore wind program there until more information
on environmental and economic impacts are known. The feds have identified some
1,800 square miles of potential wind lease areas off the Oregon coast.

“You know, we were given this gift of this potentially massive economic opportunity,”
Adair said. “And it might, it might have some real energy benefits to it as well. But we

aren’t necessarily equipped to or capable of receiving that gift, at least not at this scale.
We need to be careful.”

Support or subsidy? Green power requires a lot of of green

As with any new technology, the early costs to launch are high. Subsidies are part of a
standard playbook to help bootstrap new technology: offering support until a business
can stand on its feet. Because floating offshore wind is critical to federal and state
clean-energy goals, taxpayers and ratepayers will subsidize some of the private
companies’ financial risk, at least at the beginning.

If getting wind power to market in California just meant bringing electrons to shore, it
would be a massively ambitious undertaking requiring technology that in some cases
has yet to be developed. But the effort is further complicated by what’s required once
the power hits land — much of the means to move it does not now exist.

California will have to restructure its electricity grid to handle and distribute the new
power. The national transition to a net-zero carbon economy will require a financial
injection from the private sector and state agencies to double the state’s existing

transmission infrastructure, at a cost of at least $700 billion in new investment by 2050,
according to a recent UC Berkeley report.



SECTION_(,&) _ PAGENO, (O

“We are going to need state money and we are going to need federal money. We can
make this the industry that puts California at the center of a global industry.”
— Molly Croll, American Clean Power

Private companies must create a supply chain for parts and materials that are not yet
available in the United States. A small fraction of the blades, turbines and other parts
that make up the wind turbines are made in the United States, and almost none are
manufactured in California, according to a report to the Energy Commission.

Supply chain investments will require more than $260 billion by 2045 to reach the
nation’s offshore wind production goals, the UC Berkeley researchers found. They also
envision bottlenecks in port capacity and finding the vessels to tow and install the
platforms at sea.

The researchers’ conclusion: The challenges are immense, but not insurmountable.

A Department of Energy offshore wind market report, published in August, predicted
the wind industry would have a rocky start followed by a bright future.

So far, it’s been turbulent: Rising capital costs and interest rates, as well as supply
chain volatility, are buffeting the industry. The costs per kilowatt-hour over the life of a
project increased nearly 50% between 2021 and 2023, according to a recent Bloomberg
analysis.

And interest from companies in building the projects has been unpredictable. Last
month, a federal lease sale in the Gulf of Mexico garnered a tepid response. Only one of
three areas was bid upon and the bid-per-acre was just $55, compared to an average of
$2,028 per acre for the California leases.

That pales in comparison to the $8,313 per acre for leases in the New York Bight earlier
this year. The $4.37 billion that companies paid for six offshore wind leases off New
York and New Jersey in February was the largest amount ever paid for U.S. offshore
energy leases — including for oil and gas.

Given the capital risks, the floating offshore wind industry expects government help.
And it’s getting it.

State and federal officials are pouring hundreds of millions of dollars into grants for
industry research and development, various tax incentives and assistance to build this
new industry. So far the California Energy Commission has spent more than $100
million in support of offshore wind, according to the agency. Projects also may qualify
for tax credits that can offset 30% or more of development costs.



SECTION_(o©_PAGENO._/|

“There will be creative financing solutions,” said Molly Croll, Pacific offshore wind
director for American Clean Power, a renewable industry association. “We are going to
need state money and we are going to need federal money. We can make this the
industry that puts California at the center of a global industry.”

A new law allows the Department of Water Resources to purchase offshore wind power
to signal to the industry that there will be buyers.

While the department has a track record of procuring power, it’s not a laudable one.
During the energy crisis of the early 2000s, it entered into long-term energy contracts
at a cost of more than $40 billion, which was subsequently found to be unreasonably
high.

No estimates are available for how much purchasing the wind power could cost the

state or ratepayers, although the bill’s supporters say that ultimately Californians will
save money in their electric bills.

Wind developers lobbied hard for the legislation this year. Sam Eaton, chief executive
officer of RWE Offshore Holdings, which holds one of the leases off Humboldt, said
having California as an assured buyer for future wind power shows the state’s long-
term support for the industry.

“It’s central to be able to see that kind of support to be able to make ultimately tens of
billions of dollars of investment in a market,” Eaton said. “Our investors would not
want us to take that kind of risk otherwise.”

Wind developers point out that offshore wind will deliver electricity later in the day,
when solar plants are going offline and demand ramps up. They also note that the cost
will drop over time, a demonstrable trend with other renewable technologies.

State Sen. Brian Dahle, a Republican from Redding, wants renewable energy but
questions the unknown cost to consumers,

“This is just like the bullet train. We are just going to do it because, by golly, we are just
going to do it,” he said. “We are going to pass on the cost to the ratepayers and we have
the highest electric bills in the nation. This is going to break the state.”

The importance of bigger ports

Ports will play a significant, as-yet unfilled role in supporting offshore wind, to
assemble the platforms and maintain service fleets and vast repair yards.




SECTION_(0&_,PAGENO. /2. _

State officials acknowledge that no ports in the state are ready to do the job. Getting
them ready could mean turning swaths of California’s coast into industrial zones.

The Port of Long Beach is the only California port even remotely prepared to handle the
wind energy workload. The busy port has proposed Pier Wind, a 400-acre offshore wind
turbine assembly terminal with a price tag of $4.7 billion. Construction could begin in
four years, and even after the terminal is built, it’s only feasible to deliver the turbines
as far as the Central Coast, which would require a barge to tow the structures for two
days on open seas.

The Long Beach port’s CEO, Mario Cordero, said he expects funding from the state
Energy Commission to help prepare the new facility.

“It’s assumed that there’s going to be public funds,” Cordero said. “This requires a
collaborative effort. It is a long-term endeavor. At the pace we’re going, all the levers
have to be pulled.”

One lever has already released $45 million in state funds for port upgrades around the
state to prepare for wind construction and support.

Rob Holmlund, director of development of Humboldt Bay Harbor, thinks that offshore wind
projects would revitalize the harbor. Photo by Larry Valenzuela, CalMatters/CatchLight
Local

At the other end of the state, there’s another option. From his office, Rob Holmlund,
the Humboldt Bay Harbor District’s development director, has a wide view of pleasure
craft bobbing at docks and the blighted remains of a once-thriving industrial zone.
Those hundreds of acres of empty space are the port’s main attraction for the wind
industry — it’s the second-largest natural bay in California.



SECTION_(z/>_,PAGENO._[2__

The harbor district has received more than $10 million from the Energy Commission to
study proposals to transform much of the former industrial site to a sprawling, modern
wind terminal. Large cranes would put the pieces of turbines together then tugs or
ships would move the floating islands through the harbor and out to sea. The harbor
also would maintain a fleet of boats to service the platforms. Humboldt officials intend
to hire a contractor to operate the harbor as a green facility with electric vehicles and
equipment.

“There’s old buildings everywhere and it’s a visual blight that will be cleaned up and
revitalized,” Holmlund said, adding that the harbor entrance will be dredged more
regularly.

Another hurdle for ports: Federal law requires any vessel delivering goods or people
from one U.S. site to another to be built, owned and primarily crewed by U.S. citizens.
The number of compliant ships available to do the job is minuscule: A federal
analysis found only seven craft that meet the requirements.

Even after overcoming the substantial hurdles of getting the wind-generated power to
shore, it will be a monumental task to gather the electricity in substations and
distribute it over transmission and distribution lines to users.

Grid experts refer to California’s far north as a transmission choke point. Humboldt
County residents, accustomed to living behind the so-called Redwood Curtain and
enduring periodic power cuts, refer to themselves as “the end of the line.”

“There is no way in hell that the current lines that we have available are going to be
able to take on the additional load,” state Sen. Mike McGuire, a Democrat from
Healdsburg, said in a legislative committee hearing in May.

The state’s grid manager estimates the build-out cost for additional high-voltage
transmission capacity will be about $8 billion, part of a total of $30 billion needed to
bring in out-of-state wind power and upgrade the overall grid capacity to meet
California’s decarbonization goals.

Because of an eight-to-10-year lead time to construct transmission projects, the new

power may wait at the shoreline while the lines and transmission plants to move it are
put in place.

“It requires significant new infrastructure. Not just wires, but substations and towers
and transformers,” said Himali Parmar, an interconnection and transmission expert at
the consulting firm ICF International, Inc. “There are massive goals to meet and
transmission is a big part of the puzzle.”



SECTION (o, _ PAGENO,_/ '+ _

However, Parmar added that California’s 20-year power planning horizon makes her
optimistic that the challenge can be met.

‘A deep sense of foreboding” for fishermen

Ken Bates’ office is idling at the dock at the foot of F Street in Eureka. The sleek fishing
boat, most of which he built, is the workplace for Bates and his wife Linda, who make
their livelihood on the Pacific, chasing fish for weeks or months at sea.

It’s a business with challenging economics, defined by narrow margins and a
fluctuating resources. For commercial fishermen working the California coast, it’s been
a long, slow decline. Pacific fisheries are highly managed to prevent overfishing. The
salmon season was canceled this year statewide because of severely low populations,
for example.

Fisherman Ken Bates guides his fishing boat through the marina in the Humboldt Bay in
Eureka. Bates is concerned that the offshore wind project could affect the livelihood of the
fishermen in the area: Photo by Larry Valenzuela, CalMatters/CatchLight Local

As Bates motors away from shore, he says he supports renewable energy, noting that
his home is solar-powered. But he and others in his trade worry that commercial
fishermen and women will be restricted while working in Humboldt’s 200-square-mile
lease area.

The wind projects “have the potential to adversely affect fishing and fishermen through
exclusion and displacement from fishing grounds, increase costs and time at sea to
reach new fishing grounds, loss of future fishing grounds and loss or disruption of
harbor space and fishing infrastructure at ports,” according to a Coastal

Commission staff report last year.

Even if accommodations are made to allow some fishing, the fishermen and women
worry that trawling boats might need to steer clear of the floating rigs to avoid snarling
their nets in the networks of cables and lines.

The state Department of Fish and Wildlife told the State Lands Commission that the
impacts could be “potentially significant.”

“Offshore wind energy generation is a novel concept in California’s marine waters,
Floating technologies are also still relatively new, and much is unknown about their
environmental impacts,” the agency wrote.




S8ECTION_(y© PAGEND._LSS

“Adverse impacts to commercial and recreational fisheries could result from the loss of
accessible fishing area, loss of fishing gear from snagging on Project infrastructure,
navigational hazards, and/or degradation of habitat. The Project sites overlap with
fishing grounds for several important fisheries.”

There’s also a potential flip side: Fish populations could increase if fishing declines,
and the permanent structures in the sea could provide habitat for more and different
Species, marine biologists say.

Some project developers are discussing a system of compensation payments to
fishermen, whose concern is about more than losing one fishing season.

Bates and other fishermen purchase “limited entry” permits that give them rights to
- work in waters not open to non-permit holders. The special permits are enormously
valuable: A limited entry shrimp permit is worth $1 million, Bates said.

“If we can’t fish, that shrimp permit is worth nothing,” Bates said, peering through his
boat’s spattered windscreen. “Those permits are the 401Ks for fishermen. They could
lose their retirement, everything they’ve saved for.”

If fishermen are displaced from their traditional grounds they may move elsewhere and
create localized overfishing, said Steve Scheiblauer, a longtime harbormaster in Santa
Cruz and Monterey and now a marine fisheries consultant.

“There is a deep sense of foreboding,” he said, mentioning cascading effects through
the region’s fishing-based economy. “There’s deckhands. Truck drivers. Can fish buyers
in Eureka keep their doors open if they lose their main supply? A fish buyer is also the
ice producer. Restaurants and tourists expect the fish, Commercial fishing is a link to
the waterfront. We need to slow down and get some data.”

‘We have to attempt this’

Mike Wilson sips a beer at a dockside restaurant on the Humboldt harbor and squints
into the setting sun. Wilson is a county supervisor and a member of the Coastal
Commision, where he’s a reliable voice for the environment.

He’s sympathetic to skeptics of the promise of offshore wind, the sometimes-inflated
job numbers and rosy promises of economic revival. But even with the unknowns about
impacts to marine life and the prospect of industrialization of this remote coast, Wilson
says offshore wind power must go forward.

He starts from a simple baseline calculation: Climate change and its ever-increasing
calamities. The pressing need to phase-out fossil fuels, and their mounting



SECTION_(0&_PAGENO,_! {»

environmental harm, outweighs what is not yet known about the biological and
environmental impacts of large-scale offshore wind, he said.

“I don’t have any comfort at all with the climate impacts we are seeing now,“ Wilson
said. “All my discomfort (with the unknown) is outweighed by the urgency if we do
nothing. We have to attempt this.”

The Coastal Commission’s Huckelbridge and other state scientists acknowledge some
concern with not having enough time or budget to minutely analyze the potential
impacts of offshore wind.

But they add that through “adaptive management” — the ability to adjust policies and
requirements as conditions change — detrimental effects can be avoided or mitigated.
And, they say, environmental conditions will be monitored throughout the lifespan of
the wind farms.

“We have our responsibility under the Coastal Act to assess impacts,” Huckelbridge
said. “We understand the urgency and will move with all haste. But we will do our job.
We owe that to California.”

it

CalMatters.org is a nonprofit, nonpartisan media venture explaining California policies and
politics.




SECTION_©C pAaGENO._|

P e e )

October 25, 2023

| CALIFORNIA

" STATE WATER _RESOURCES_ CONTROL BOARD

interested Parties:

The forbearance period for cannabis surface water diversions ends Tuesday,
Oclober 31, 2023,

As a reminder, from Wednesday, November 1 through Thursday,
December 14, 2023, surface water diversion shall not begin until the daily
average flow at the cultivator's assigned stream gage is greater than the
minimum instream flow requirement for seven consecutive days (Cannabis
Policy, Altachment A, Section 3, Requirement 4). The first day of the seven
consecutive days must occur on or after Wednesday, October 25,

2023. Between Thursday, December 14 through Sunday, March 31, 2023, the
cultivator may divert when the previous day’s daily average flow is greater than
the minimum instream flow at the cultivator's assigned stream gage.

Therefore, cannabis cultivators are required to:

» check the Online Cannabis Compliance Gage Mapping Tool daily, prior
to diverting, to check and document if they are authorized to divert
surface water and

« maintain daily diversion records for water diverted for cannabis
cultivation.

If you have questions, please reach ouf to us via email at
CannabisWR@walerboards.ca.gov or by phone at 916-319.9427. Please also
visit the Water Boards’ Cannabis Cultivation webpage for more information.

'WATER BOARDS CANNABIS CULTIVATION PROGRAMS PORTAL




CORRESPONDENCE



SECTION _TC\.  PAGE NO.

P e o o)

{

TR

& and woncler

Warm greetings!

Continuing our trend of doing things a little differently, the Greater Eureka
Chamber of Commerce will celebrate our 2024 Awards Gala with An Evening
of Intrigue and Wonder.

We invite you to join us for the evening of Friday, January 26, when The
Acres will be transformed into a Cirque du Soleil-inspired cocktail lounge!

Together, we will celebrate our annual Business Awards honoring some of
our region’s most impactful leaders, and share with you about major new
initiatives underway to support local businesses and our greater community.

The 2024 Awards Gala, An Evening of Intrigue and Wonder, will offer fresh
experiences, expanded networking opportunities, a pared-down opening
program, and music by special guests Amber Soul and Jeffrey Smoller.
(Wear your dancing shoes))

A variety of signature cocktails and upscale, locally-sourced hors
d’oeuvres created by Chamber member restaurants will be available
throughout the evening, and are included in your ticket price. Join in on an
exciting live auction with Senator Mike McGuire, as well as a generous silent
auction.

Sponsorship information can be downloaded below — we hope you will
consider generously investing in the Greater Eureka Chamber as we continue
to expand our impact across the region.

Come dressed in elegant, intriguing party attire, ready to enjoy a very special
evening! We look forward to seeing you there.

The Chamber Team

S

5
i



CONTINUING
BUSINESS




SECTION_T>- ) PAGE NO. R

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

Board of Directors
John Friedenbach
November 9, 2023
Water Resource Planning (WRP) — Status Report

The purpose of this memo is to summarize recent activities and introduce next steps for discussion.

1) Top-Tier Water Use Opfions

a)

b)

Local Sales

i} Nordic Aquafarms — Coastal Commission Public Hearing. See notice.

i} Trinidad Rancheria mainline extension. No update.

iii) Blue LLake Rancheria mainline extension. Counsel is preparing the Mainline Extension
Agreement.

iv) Offshore Wind Heavy Lift Multipurpose Marine Terminal Project. No update.

Transport - no update.

Instream Flow Dedication

Waiting for comments from the Water Board staff on our draft petition for change application.
Next step will be to evaluate draft comments by the Water Board Staff for incorporation into
our petition for change submittal to the Water Board.

The Instream Flow Committee and staff/counsel are preparing our response to NMFS's
Sept. 27" comment letter from NMFS.

When would the Directors like to schedule a Special Board meeting Study Session
regarding our draft petition for change?




| SECTIONS_| Q. |PAGENO._ |~
STATE OF CALIFORNIA - NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY o l _ - GAVIN NEWSOM, GoverneRr
CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION
A HBMWD. 013010
FAX (415) 804-5400 )
TDD (415) 587-5885

~ PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
ENERGY, OCEAN RESOURCES, ‘AND FEDERAL CONSISTENCY
DIVISION

The California Coastal Commission will consider the followmg Energy, Ocean Resources,
and Federal Consistency Division item:

9. COASTAL PERMIT APPLICATIONS

b. Application No. 9- 20- 0488 (Nordic Aquafarms California, LLC) Application by
Nordic Aquafarms California, LLC, to discharge up to 10.3 million gallons per day
of tertiary-treated wastewater from its yellowtail farming facility via the existing

Redwood Marine Terminal Il outfall pipe, 1.5 miles offshore Samoa, Humboldt
County.

Staff reports and staff recommendations. Staff reports and staff recommendations are
available at www.coastal.ca.gov/mtgcurr.htmi. Click on the Thursday tab and scroll down
to agenda items 9b..If you wish to receive a hard copy of a report, please contact the
Commission's Energy, Ocean Resources and Federal ConSIstency Division at
EORFC@coastal.ca.gov or (415) 904-5240.

Please note: The above items may be moved to the Consent Calendar by the Executive
Director if, prior to Commission consideration of the Consent Calendar, staff and the
applicant agree on the staff recommendation. If an itém is moved to the Consent
Calendar, the Commission will either approve it with the recommended conditions in the
staff report or remove the item from the Consent Calendar by a vote of three or more
Commissioners. If an item is removed, the public hearing described above will still be
held at the point in the meeting originally indicated on the agenda.

How to provide written comments on an item. To submit written materials for review
by the Commission, either email (via EORFC@coastal.ca.gov) or submit such materials
to Commission staff no later than 5 pm on the Friday before the hearing. Staff will then
distribute your materials to the Commission. Such materiais received after this time will
not be distributed to the Commission. Alternatively, you may also submit such materials
directly to the Commissioners (a current list of Commissioner names and email
addresses is available from Commission staff or from the Commission’s website) as long
as such materials are submitted to all Commissioners, all alternates for Commissioners,
the three non-voting members of the.Commission, and Commission staff. You are




SECTIONS.}.Q.\ PAGENO._ 2

requested to summarize the reasons for your position in no more than two or three
pages, if possible. ‘

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS WILL BE A HYBRID MEETING, WITH BOTH VIRTUAL AND
IN-PERSON PARTICIPATION ALLOWED. Please see the Coastal Commission's Hybrid
Hearing Procedures, posted on the Coastal Commission's webpage

at www.coastal.ca.gov for details on the procedures of this hearing. If you would like to

receive a paper copy of the Coastal Commission's Hybrid Hearing Procedures, please call
(415) 904-5202.

The iri—person hearing will be held at Graton Resort, 288 Golf Course Drive, Rohnert
Park, CA 91928. The Commission strongly encourages continued participation virtually
through video and teleconferencing due to changing Covid-19 conditions.

When will my agenda item be heard? The items listed above will be considered by the
Commission at a meeting at which other items are also scheduled. it is not possible to
specify the exact time at which each matter will be heard, or to guarantee that an item
will not be postponed. No one can predict how quickly the Commission will complete
agenda items or how many will be postponed to a later date. The Commission begins
each session at the time listed and considers each item in order, except in extraordinary
circumstances. ' ‘

- Questions? Questions regarding this agenda item and/or this hearing should be directed
to EORFC@coastal.ca.qov or (415) 904-5240.




SECTION.2 A PAGENO._ |

Department of Toxic Substances Control
Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill
Monthly Summary Report

October 2023

This monthly summary report summarizes environmental site investigation and remediation
activities conducted by the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) or by their

contractor, SHN Consulting Engineers and Geologists, Inc. (SHN) at the former McNamara and
Peepe Lumber Mill Site.

a. Actions during this calendar month (October 2023).

e Second Semi-Annual 2023 Groundwater Sampling Report . A summary of activities and
results for the second semi-annual groundwater sampling event was submitted by SHN
and is currently being reviewed by DTSC.

* Contract Renewal. The contract with SHN will expire in December of 2023, DTSC has
prepared a contract renewal to extend activities with SHN. The proposed work includes
additional investigation and monitoring, well installation, and a human health risk
assessment.

b. All planned activities for the next month and beyond (November 2023).

« First Semi-Annual 2023 Groundwater Sampling Report. DTSC is currently reviewing the
groundwater sampling report. Approval is expected in early November 2023.

s 2023 Site investigation Report of Findings. DTSC is currently reviewing the 2023 site
investigation report. Approval is expected in December 2023.

o Virtual Quarterly Update Meeting. DTSC will be hosting a virtual quarterly updaie
“meeting with DTSC, EPA, Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, and Humboldt
Waterkeeper in January, 2024. A date and an agenda will be sent out in December.



SECTIONS.2..G PAGENO,__<~ _

Table 2-2
Historical Groundwatey Elevations
Well Name Date Groundwater Elevation
(ft msl})

MwW-1 4/8/1998 80.67
7/8/1998 72.04
1/26/1999 79.597
711411998 73.37
4/13/2000 78.23
10/19/2000 65.06
6/7/2001 70.62
12/26/2002 84.22
12/12/2003 82.87
3/15/2004 86.17
6/10/2004 83.44
1/28/2005 85.70
8/3/2005 83.72
1/11/2006 88.67
12412007 85.22
6/7/2010 85.32
10/18/2010 80.50
11/3/2011 8212
4/11/2012 87.73
5/13/2015 83.60
11/10/2015 75.77
5/23/2016 84.05
12/14/2016 87.92
5/8/2017 85,92
8/22/2019 81.56
3/5/2021 85,84
212212022 83,71
8/23/2022 80,75
212212023 85,67
MW-5 1/12/1998 84.44
4/8/1998 80.33
7/8/1938 72,59
1/26/1599 80,20
7/14/1999 73.68
4/13/2000C 7771
10/19/2000 69.12
6/7/2001 71.12
12/26/2002 84.18
12/12/2003 82.31
1/28/2005 85.66
8/3/2005 83.68
1/11/2006 88.34
1/24/2007 85.36

2-3

\eureka\Projects\20201020189-M-P-Mil\030-GW-Reporting\PUBS\data\
20230505-MP-HistData, xlsxGW Elevation 2-2




SECTION 8.2 C\PAGEND. 3

Table 2-2
Historical Groundwater Elevations
Well Name Date Groundwater Elevation
(ft msl)

MW-5 &6/7/2010 86.05
cont'd 10/18/2010 80.60
11/3/2011 82.26
4/11/2012 88.04
5/13/2015 83,85
11/10/2¢15 81,10
5/23/2016 84.35
12/14/2016 88.05
5/8/2017 86.50
3/5/2021 86.12
2/22/2022 83,97
8/23/2022 80,54
2/22/2023 85,68
MW-7 1/12/1958 83.88
4/8/1998 73.90
7/8/1958 68.34
1/26/1999 71.82
7/14/1599 70.30
4/13/2000 72.31
10/19/2000 67.73
&/7/2001 66,43
12/26/2002 84.12
12/12/2003 82.83
1/28/2005 86.37
8/3/2005 84.68
1/11/2005 88.53
1/24/2007 86.00
6/7/2010 92.40
10/18/2010 82.40
11/3/2011 83.94
4/11/2012 89.23
5/13/2015 85.27
11/10/2015 81.10
5/23/2016 84.35
12/14/2016 89.08
5/8/2017 87.52
8/21/2019 83.06
3/5/2021 87.37
2/22/2022 85.3%
8/23/2022 82.43
2/22/2023 86.87

\\eureka\Projects\202000201 89-M-P-MIINO30-GW-Reporting\PUBS\datat
20230505-MP-HistData.x|sxGW Elevation 2-2




SECTIONE 2.0 PAGENO._ S/

Table 2-2
Historical Groundwater Elevations
Well Name Date Groundwater Elevation
(ft msl)
MW-8 1/12/1998 84,73
4/8/1998 81.24
7/8/1998 73.72
1/26/1999 81.99
7/14/1999 75.73
4/13/2000 78.87
10/19/2000 71.06
6/7/2001 72,74
12/26/2002 85.14
12/12/2003 88.46
1/28/2005 89.50
8/3/2005 85.08
1/11/2006 89.91
1724/2007 87.87
6/7/2010 no reading
1041872010 no reading
11/3/2011 no reading
41172012 no reading
5/13/2015 87.56
11/10/2015 84.64
5/2372016 87.32
12/14/2016 90.14
5/8/2017 88.24
8/21/2019 82.91
3/5/2021 88.41
2/22/2022 87.49
8/23/2022 82.33
272212023 88.28
MW-2 1/12/1998 86.83
4/8/1998 83.50
7/8/1998 81.21
1/26/1999 82.48
7/14/1999 81.14
4/13/2000 82.19
10/19/2000 78.90
6/7/2001 79.70
12/26/2002 86.30
12/12/2003 85.68
1/28/2005 89.26
8/3/2005 87.85
1/11/2006 90.89
1/24/2007 89.04
6/7/2010 92.55
10/18/2010 89.70
11/3/2011 88.52
4/11/2012 93.38
5/13/2015 87.56
11/10/2015 84.64
5/23/2016 88.68

\\eureka\Projects\2020M0201 85-M-P-MilN030-GW-Reporting\PUBS\data\
20230505-MP-HistData.xIsxGW Elevatlion 2-2



SECTION.2 O PAGEND,_©

Table 2-2
Historical Groundwater Elevations
well Name Date Groundwater Elevation
{ft msl}
MW-S 1211472016 91.56
cont'd 5/8/2017 80.66
8/21/2019 83.81
3/5/2021 90,93
212212022 89.37
8/23/2022 86.84
2/22/2023 90.61
MW-10 6/7/2010 84.55
10/18/2010 89.70
11/3/2011 81.32
411172012 85,91
5/13/2015 82.21
11/10/2015 79.50
5/23/2016 82,29
121472016 89.95
5/8/2017 84.74
8/21/2019 81.01
3/5/2021 84.58
212212022 83.02
8/23/2022 79.80
2f2212023 89.15
MW-11 10/18/2018 81.50
11/3/2011 83.47
411172012 86.50
5/13/2015 83.90
111072015 81.73
5/23/2016 84.45
12/14/2016 87.46
5/8/2017 85.55
8/21/2019 8218
3/5/2021 85.51
2/22/2022 84.34
8/23/2022 81.24
212272023 86.13
MW-12 11/3/2011 82.10
41172012 87.81
5/13/2015 83.53
11/10/2015 79.63
5/23/2016 83.98
12/14/2016 87.93
5/8/2017 85.98
8/21/2019 81.55
3/5/2021 85.93
2/22/2022 83.75
812372022 80.76
212272023 85.51
MW-13 2/2212022 84.44
8/23/2022 84.31
2/22/2023 86,29

2-6

\\aureka\Projects\20201020189-M-P-MilN030-GW-Reporting\PUBS\data\
20230505-MP-HistData.xlsxGW Elevation 2-2




SECTION 3.2.0,PAGENO._(2__

Table 2-2
Historical Groundwater Elevations
Well Name Date Groundwater Elevation
(ft msl)
MW-14 2/22/2022 84.66
8/23/2022 81.3%
2/22/2023 86.34

27

Vreureka\Projects\2020\)20189-M-P-MiilN030-GW-Reporting\PUBS\data\

20230505-MP-HistData.xIsxGW Elevation 2-2




SECTION® Z 2PAGENO.__|

McNamara and Peepe
Quarterly Meeting Agenda
October 24, 2023

Attendees: DTSC (Marikka Hughes, Ashley Blesio, Vanessa Davis)
EPA (Cynthia Ruelas)
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (Neal Latt, Michelle Fuller, John Friedenbach)
Humboldt Baykeeper (Jen Kalt)
SWAPE (Matt Hagemann)

1. Overview of Site Investigation activities

2. Site investigation results
a. New wellinstallation (MW15, MW16) and MW-1 repair
b. Soil and grab groundwater sampling results
c. Second semiannual groundwater sampling results

3. Discuss approximate historical infrastructure locations



-

B.2.C PAGE NO.

SECTION

STIOYZZI=PI |eqo|8¢1odal ajijoid /a1gnd /A0S e2°051p 101S0JIAUD MMM //:5d11Y

Aluno) 1pjoquiny
9AlIQ 3|epud|H 6T9T
(STTOPZZT) 1IN 49quinT 2da3d 73 BJBWENDA J0) 91isgam DS1J



e e e ]

N2 C PAGENO. L
EXPLANATION

_#_ STORM WATER
SAMPLE LOCATION

————>=DRAINAGE FLOW

__ STORM WATER
CONVEYANCE

0

]

1"=250'+

IMAGE SOURCE:
GOOGLE EARTH, 2019
— &

B T

Former Mc Site Plan with
Storm Water Sampling Plan Storm Water Sample Locations
Glendale Drive, Arcata, California SHN 020189.050




SECTION3-2 CPAGENO._D
Nicole Yuen

Stormwater Sample Results, February 2023, Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, 1619
Glendale Drive, Arcata, California; EnviroStor ID: 12240115
May 19, 2023

Page 3

labeled, immediately placed in an ice-filled cooler, and submitted to the laboratory for analyses under
the appropriate chain-of-custody documentation.

Monitoring and sampling equipment was cleaned prior to arriving onsite and between use at each
sampling location. Small equipment that required onsite cleaning was washed in a water solution

containing Liquinox® cleaner, followed by two distilled-water rinses. Appendix 1 presents field notes
for stormwater sample collection.

3.0 Laboratory Analysis
Stormwater samples collected were analyzed for:

chlorinated phenols (pentachlorophenol [PCP] and tetrachlorophenol [TCP]) by National Council
for Air and Stream Improvement, Inc. Method 86.07, and

chlorinated dibenzodioxins and chlorinated dibenzofurans (dioxins and furans) by U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Method 8290A

North Coast Laboratories, Ltd., a state-certified analytical laboratory located in Arcata, California,
performed the PCP and TCP analysis. The reporting limit (RL) for each constituent are as follows:

e PCP = 0.3 micrograms per liter (ug/L)
o 234,6-TCP=1.0ug/L

Dioxins were analyzed by Enthalpy Analytical - EDH, a state-certified analytical laboratory located in El
Dorado Hills, California. The estimated detection limit (EDL) for 2,3,7,8—tetrachIorobenzeno-p-dioxin
(TCDD) ranged from 0.466 to 1.36 picograms per liter (pg/L). The method detection limit (MDL) for

2,3,7,8-TCDD analysis for all stormwater samples analyzed was 0,169 pg/L, with the exception of SW-2
and SW-3 with an MDL of 0.170 pg/L.

4.0 Stormwater Sampling Results

Table 1 summarizes the February 27, 2023, stormwater analytical results for dioxins, PCP, and TCP,

P:\Eureka\2020\0201 89-M-P-Mil\O60-SW-Reporting\PU BS\rpts\2023051 9-F8b2023-SWSamplinngt.docx



SECTION% 2. C_PAGENO.__ < _

Nicole Yuen

Stormwater Sample Results, February 2023, Former MeNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, 1619.
Glendale Drive, Arcata, California; EnviroStor ID: 12240115
May 19, 2023

Page 4

Table 1. Stormwater Analytical Results, February 27, 2023
Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, Arcata,

alifornia

-~ <0.714f ; <0.30 <10
SW-2 <1.36 1.73J8 <0.30 , <1.0
SW-3 <0.618 0.262] <0.30 <1.0
SW-4 <0.597 0.255) <0.30 <1.0
SW-5 <0.466 0.483} <0.30 <1.0
SW-6 0.805 6.10) <0.30 <1.0
SW-7 <0.799 1.66 ) <030 = . <1.0
MCLh 30 NRi 1.0 5 NR
PHGs) 0.05 NR 0.3 A NR

®2,3,7,8-TCDD: 2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzodioxin was analyzed in general accordance with EPA Method 8290

b pg/L: picograms per liter '

€ 2005 WHO TEQ: 2005 World Health Organization's Toxic Equivalency Quotient, TEF calculations. TEQs are J-flagged
asthey are calculated from one or more result with a J-flag (Analyte concentration below calibration rang

: e).
d Pentachlorophenol (PCP) and 2,3,4,6-Tetrachlorophenol (TCP) were analyzed in general accordance with National
‘Councll for Air and Stream Improvement, Inc. Method 86.07
® ug/L: micrograms per liter

f<:"less than" the stated laboratory reporting limit for chlorophenols and detection limit for dioxins
& J: The amount detected is below the Reporting Limit/Limit of Quantitation.

h MCL: maximum contaminant level, State Water Resources Control Board, March 13, 2019
"NR: no reference

I PHGs: California public health goals, Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, March 13, 2019

Appendix 2 includes the complete analytical test results, chain-of-custody documentation, and
laboratory quality control data. Multipliers used for the 2005 World Health Organization Toxic
Equivalency Factors (TEFs) for dioxins and furan compounds are additionally provided in Appendix 2.

Historical stormwater sample results for the former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill are provided in
Appendix 3.

5.0 Discussion of Results

Concentrations of PCP, TCP, or the dioxin congener 2,3,7,8-TCDD were not identified in stormwater
samples collected during the February 27, 2023, sampling event ahove laboratory method detection
limits. The stormwater sample collected from location SW-6 did report an estimated maximum potential
concentration (EMPC) of 0.805 pg/L for 2,3,7,8-TCDD. TEQs are J-flagged as they are calculated from one
or more result with a J-flag (analyte concentration is below the detection limit/limit of quantitation).

Analytical results for the most immediate downstream location of the concrete cap (SW-4) indicate no
detectable concentrations of 2,3,7,8-TCDD and a TEQ of 0.255) pg/L.

‘Vn";

P:\Eureka\2020\020189-M-P-Mil\060-SW-Renorting\PLIBS\ rote\ 2022051 G- Eah It 32 VA IC ol oo o



SECTIONS.2.C_ PAGEND, &

Table 3-1
Historical Storm Water Sample Results
Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, Arcata, California

S (b e
2/18/21 <0.512f 0.0736 J& <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 <0.721 0.351) <0.30 <1.0
SW-1 4/14/22 <0.743 0.181 <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 <0.592 4.37) <0.30 <1.0
2/27/23 <0.714 0.00 <0.30 <1.0
2/18/21 <0.609 7.79] <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 <0.508 2.70 <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 (F)h <0.645 0.308 ) = -
W2 4/14/22 5,18 96.1 <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 <0.604 2.58 <0.30 <1.0
2/27/23 <1.36 1.73] <0.30 <1.0
2/18/21 <0.530 4.44) 0.099 ) <1.0
12/15/21 <0.688 6.82] 0.091 <1.0
SW-3 4714722 <0.745 0.179] <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 <0.733 4.47] <0.30 <1.0
2/27/23 <0.618 0.262) <0.30 <1.0
2/18/21 <0.459 11.4] 0.11) <1.0
12/15/21 <0.731 5,87 <0.30 <1.0
—_ 12/15/21 (F) <0.715 0.945 | = -
4/14/22 <0.817 0.233) <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 <0.715 3.30) <0.30 <1.0
2/27/23 <0.597 0.255) <0.30 <1.0
2/18/21 <0.762 8.04) | 0.14) <1.0
12/15/21 <0.602 4.06) <0.30 <1.0
W 12/15/21 (F) <0.785 1.39] - .
4114122 <0.697 3.74) <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 1.55 19.1 <0.30 <1.0
2/27/23 <0.466 0.483 <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 5.12 63.9] <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 (F) <0.713 0.0572) - -
SW-6 4/14/22 4.95 121 0.48 <1.0
12/08/22 <0.700 8.54} <0.30 <1.0
2/27/23 0.805 6.10] <0.30 <1.0

\\eureka\Projects\2020\0201 89-M-P-Mil\060-SW-Reporting\PUBS\data\20230419-
App.3.HistSWResults.docx



SECTION 2.2 C_PAGENO._(@__

Table 3-1
Historical Storm Water Sample Results
Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill Arcata, California |
S e s kil ke st - —
| 127521 | <0634 | 487) | o021 <10
- 12/15/21 (F <0.728 0.970) - --
SW-7 4/14/22 <0.771 0.317] 0.15] <1.0
12/08/22 259) 36.8) 0.12) <1.0
2/27/23 <0.799 1.66} <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 <0.797 3.80} <0.30 <1.0
SW-8 12/15/21 (F) <0.733 2.38] - -
4/14/22 <0.715 1.35} <0.30 <1.0
MCL 30 NR! 1.0 NR
PHGsk 0.05 NR 03 NR

42,3,7,8-TCDD: 2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzodioxin was analyzed in general accordance with EPA Method 8290

b pg/L: picograms per liter

©2005 WHO TEQ: 2005 World Health Organization’s Toxic Equivalency Quotient, TEF calculations. TEQs are J-
flagged as they are calculated from one or more result with aJ-flag (Analyte concentration below calibration
range).

d Pentachlorophenol (PCP) and 2,3,4,6-Tetrachlorophenol (TCP) were analyzed in general accordance with
National Council for Air and Stream Improvement, Inc, Method 86.07
& ug/L: micrograms per liter

f<: "less than” the stated faboratory reporting limit
&}: estimated value

" (F): Field filtration prior to sample collection using a new 0.45-micron filter

' MCL: maximurn contaminant level, State Water Resou rces Control Board, March 13, 2019
I'NR: no reference

k PHGs: California public health goals, Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, March 13, 2019

w \\eureka\Projects\2020\020189-M-P-M iINOBO-SW-Reporting\PUBS\data\20230419-

App.3.HistSWResults.dacx



i

> PAGE NO, _

22C

=
T

L . ] )
EIUJOJI[ED 'BIB2IY @ALQ 9]EPUR|D 6T9T

0£0°68T0C0 NHS
ZZ0T ‘gz 1sn3ny
sinojuo)

Suponuo Ja1EMpPUNOID
Jaquni adead 73 eJEWENDA JOWIOS

T

5

6T0Z ‘'Yyue3 38009
:924n0S 23eW|

F00T=uT

e

00T 0
AYVANNOS TN YIWHOS D

VIYV d¥2 ILIHINOD

¥NOLNOD NOILYATTT HILYMANNOYD
TIIM SNIJOLINOW &




EXPLANATION

@ rrivATEWELL
€  PRODUCTION WELL
& MONITORING WELL
———~ FIRE ACCESS ROAD
CONCRETE CAP AREA

D FORMER MILL BOUNDARY

0 200
e ==

1"=200't

IMAGE SOURCE:
GOOGLE EARTH, 2019

e et

32

Former McNamara & Peepe Lumber Mill
Groundwater Monitoring
1619 Glendale Drive, Arcata, California

=
o.
0
@
m
o
S~
o
<
[}
g
B
a
a
g
B
E
w
wv
=
<
o)
[}
S
-
=
pie &
2
2k
o
.
Zf
=
3
gl
-
T
oF
=
)
=
[=)]
(=l &
-
(=]
8
g
2
o
o~
-
g
g
=3
w
-



_ suoj1edquadu0]” ¥ MD _ zzoz Jaquiardas
eluJoyi[e] ‘elealy ‘9AlIQ 8[epul|D 6T9T
SuLlojluo Je1EMpPUNOID

t 24n314

0EO0'68TOZ0 NHS
ZZ0T ‘€z 1sn3ny

6707 ‘y1ie3 ajgoor
:924n0g ageLW

suoIeI1U32U0) JaleMpunoln 19335 [IA Jaguwin] adaad R BIEWENIN JoWI0S
] : g i ST e F,00T=.T
00T 0
(1/6d) aad1-8°L'€C |6£5°0>
(1/6n)doL| 0O°T>
(1/6n) dod | 0£°0>
NOILYIOT T13M DNIHOLINOW | S-MIN

VIYVY dVD FLIHINOD

TIIM FLVAIHd

AYVaNNOd TIIN YINHOS D

=

NOLIVIO1 T13M DNIHOLINOW &

ol itrerond O
LEB0>
(1} g
LL0
EI-MW

268
or>

i

NOILVYNV1dX3

INdSOZE ‘Z2/82/6 11V 3501 FaWEN JasM PXUNSUDReIuaUeY bl MO\ISIEMPUNIS\aXIN TOYA\SIDNINA-d-IN-6B8TOZO\0T0Z\RH N3 \d e



SECTION 2 -2CPAGENOD, /O

Table 2.  Groundwater Analytical Results, August 23, 2022
Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, Arcata, California

MW-1 <0.937¢ 34.0 : 1,300F <1,0008
MW-5 <0.789 0.0104 0.63 <1.0
MW-7 NAP NA 0.12}) <1.0
MW-8 NA NA <0.3 <1.0
MW-9 NA NA <0.3 <1.0
MW-10 <0.920 2,40 <0.3 <1.0
MW-11 <0.773 0.0669 <0.3 <1.0
MW-12 <0.820 0.00513 130 <1008
MW-13 <0.837 0.00408 0.77 <1.0
MW-14 <0.897 0.671 84 <108
Dup (MW-10) <0.956 2.11 <0.3 <1.0
Private Well <0.635 0.0 <0.3 <1.0
MCLi 30 NRk 1.0 NR
PHGs' 0.05 NR 0.3 NR

*2,3,7,8-TCDD: 2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzodioxin was analyzed in general accordance with EPA Method 8290
b 2005 WHO TEQ: 2005 World Health Organization’s Toxic Equivalency Factor

¢ Pentachlorophenol (PCP) and 2,3,4,6-Tetrachlorophenol (TCP) were analyzed in general accordance with National
Council for Air and Stream Improvement, Inc. Method 86.07.

dug/L: micrograms per liter

¢<:"less than” the stated method detection limit

fBold values indicate an exceedance of the MCL or PHGs.

ESample was diluted due to the level of target analytes present in the sample, The method reporting limit was
raised to reflect the required dilution.

h NA: not analyzed

'J: Result is less than the reporting limit but greater than or equal to the method detection limit and the
concentration is an approximate value.

I'MCL: maximum contaminant level, State Water Resources Control Board (March 13, 2019).
kKNR: no reference

! PHGs: California public health goals, Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (March 13, 2019).

Samples from monitoring wells MW-1, MW-12, and MW-14 were diluted by the testing laboratory (NCL)
due to the level of target analytes present in the sample (PCP). As a result, the MDLs were raised to

reflect the required dilution. Appendix 3 includes the complete analytical test results, chain-of-custody
documentation, and laboratory quality control data.

4.3 Field Measured Parameters

Measurements for groundwater field parameters collected from site wells during the August 2022
sampling event are included in Table 3.

\\eureka\Projects\2020\0201 89-M-P-MilN030-GW-Reporting\PUBS\rpts\20221 024-5A22-GWM-Rpt.docx

4



8BCTION %.2.C PAGENOD, _//

Table 23
Groundwater Analytical Results
2015 to 2022
Waell Name Date PCp | TP | Chromiuzm Hexavalent Nitrate Tnt:'J Farrolis Arsenlc | Sulfate | Chloride] TPHD vocs
Chromlum Iran Iron (LIpE}
Units HE/L gl pgEil mg/l. [
M1 5132015 (T3 14 - - .. - - - - - - _
511312015 (FD) 560° 12 - - - - - - . - — ~
11/11/2015 610* 120 -~ - - - - - - - —~ _
TS D) | &70° 120 - . - - - M - _ - -
5/23/2016 23p* Fal - - - - - - - - - -
5/23/2015 (FD) 1,100* 8 — - - ... - - - - . —
12/14/2018 1.2* <10 <5,0 <5.0 0.92 25 <100 <10 18 19 - -
1214722016 (Fy | 1.2° <1.0 — - - - - - - - - —
5/8{2017 570" B4 - - - - - - - - - -
5/8/2017 (FD) 5302 7.9 - - - - —~ - - — - -
8/21/2019 1,200 29 - <10 = - - - - - 740 4 1.7
31542021 A60° 5.5 - - - - - - - - - -
22302022 020° 9.7 = - - - - - - - - -
8/23/2022 1390" | <1,000 B9 — - - - - - - - - —
MW-5 5/13/2015 35* 4.3 - - - - - - - - - -
1111/2015 65 3.3 - - . - — - = _ - -
5/23/2016 56* 1.6 - - o - - - - - - -
12714/2016 3g* 2.3 <5.0 <5.0 <010 330 800 <10 12 AS - -
5/8/2017 46" 23 - - - - -~ - - - - -
B/21/2012 - - - - - - - - - - - -
3/5/2021 12 <1,0 - - - - - - - - ~ -
2/22/2022 1% 11 - - - - - - - = = -
B/23/2022 0.63 <1.0 — - - - - - - - - -
MW-7 $/13f2615 0,36 <10 - . — - - - - = = i~
1141172015 <03 <1.0 - - - - — — s - - -
5/23/2016 <03 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
121412616 <0.3 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
5/8/2017 <03 <18 -~ — - ~ - - - - - o
8721/2019 <03 <10 = a0 - - = _ - = ) 05
3/5/2021 0.3 <1.0 - - - - - - - - = -
212212022 0.26] <10 — — — = = - = = = =
Blazfzpz2 013f <10 - - - - - - - - - -
MW-B SM32M5 <0,3 <1.0 - - - - — - - - - —
1141112015 <03 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
512372016 <0.3 <1,0 - - - - - oz = - - -
12114216 <0.3 <i.0 - - - - - — - - - =
5/8/2017 <0.3 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - =
s 01s <03 <10 - = = - - - Z - T
3/52021 <03 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
A2 0.13) <10 — = = — - = - - = =
8/23/72022 <03 <14 - - - - - - - — - -
M9 5/13/2015 <03 <10 e - - - "y - - - — —
1141472615 <03 <18 - — - = - - — = - =z
5/23/2016 =0.% 1,0 - - - - - -~ ~ - - -
12/14/2016 <05 <10 <50 <5.0 1,1 <15 <100 = 1,8 10 — =
Sisf2017 <0.3 <1.0 — - - .- - - — - — -
82172019 <0,3 <1.0 = - - - - - — - - 05
3/5/2921 <03 <1.0 - - - - - - ~ ~ - —
22272072, 0.21) <1.0 ~ - - - - - - - - ~
8/2372072 <3 <1.0 - - — - = piy = _ pa -
MW-10 S/132015 <0,3 <1.0 - - - - - - - — - .
11112M5 <0.6 <20 - - - - - - - - — -
5/23/2016 <03 <1.0 — - - - - - - - - -
1271472016 K] <1.0 &D <=0 0.11 53 <100 <10 15 056 = -
o/8/2017 <03 <1.0 - — — - - - — — _ -
872173013 <03 <10 -~ <10 - — - - - - 280 A) <05
872142019 (FD) <03 <1.0 — <1.0 - - ~ - ] - - 210 4f 05
/50021 <0.3 <1.0 — - - - - - - - - =
3/5/2021 (FD) <0.3 <1.0 — - - - - - ~ — - -
2423/2022 0.12] <10 - — - - - - - = - -
22212022 (FD} 0.26] <10 - - - - = - - — - -
842312022, <03 <1,0
81232022 {FD} <03 <1.0 - - - J - - - - - - -
MW-11 5/13/2015 | <03 <1,0 - - - - -~ - - - - -
1171142015 0.67 <1.0 - - . - - - — - - oy
5/23/2016 <0,3 <10 — - - ~ - - - — - =
12142016 <0.3 <1.0 — - - - ~ - - - - -
5/8/2017 1.9° <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
8/21/2019 <03 <1.0 - - - - - - — - = <0,5
3/5/2021 <03 <1.0 ~ - - = — - = - = -
2022{3022 0,14) <10 - -~ - - - - - - - -
8/23/2022 <0.3 <1.0 -~ - - - - - - - = -
MA-{2 5M3/2015 52° <1.0 - - - - - - - - - .
11112015 51 <10 - - - - - - = - ~ -
523206 120 <10 - - - - - - - . s -
12/1402016 46* <1.0 <50 <5.0 0,13 <15 <100 <10 54 28 L= -
Siei2md B1* <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
812018 110* 1.7 - - - -~ -~ - - - - .
350200 120" <1.0 — - - - - - - - - -
21222022 120" 049] -~ - - - - - - - - -
8/23/2022 130" <100 B9 - - - - - - - - - -
MW-13 22212022 0.27) <10 - - - - - - - - - -
8/33/202% 077 <1.0
MW-14 212212022 85" 17 - - - ~ - - - - - -
812302022 B4 <10BY - _ - - - - - = - =

Weureka\Projects\202000201 83-M-P-MIINO30-GW-Reporiing\PUBS\data\
2__7 S N

YT AN % AP Y AT e o .



BECTION%.2.C,PAGENO._/CL

Pris 4

- SURCECPOSP IR P00 PRSP DE LN I 8z
BEE00T | Z9LTs | 970 | 998'0- | zes0- | 998%T> [ g7A0- | 8Z610- | 06> [£EL BL'L> psg'e> | 6LL> | ssEee | Sl [ S¥l> gETL> 69| B9L> 1> YL 1> | £79°0> TZOLLLLT. ELMA
ELS00U | BIEDe | B0 | 9L | 19L0> | BL> | 6960 | 69610 ] SO TreL 9> B> 5 [ 951> b S5 1> o5 L> £ £ 1> \sg'0> | 892 657> | ozEe- TIOT/EL/R

LEE0D | sivee | SL90- B e 1> €5 1> Yl | vl 8T 126l T66°L sy | 1T |-6sg0e | 6LE> 961> 612> 07> oL'l> oL LE'L> (£ Tere | 9590 CNTTLT.
YEeoos | AL20> | ZLi0- | vegoe | wewo- | 288°0> | osmne | 960> | evie {gs1 691> 6E'L> £8'L> 6E L g57k> 151> 551> [ s S1T> [ Itzg rze2 | Zvso> LZOZ/S/E ZLMA
69900 | WA 9rg | se/0> |WTaoge | 7z80> | L09°0> Ll Ll'l> Sg'e> [¢sz | WTdsgg| £l YEL> 90° 1> ELZ> 00z Sl [i<d faLL GE > Zr5 0 (gLl rzss L0 ZEOTIET/Z
SOR0°0 £1's 55670 f18y Z5'1> £5 1> [T LE)> SLE [TEE [6E Fryt 8Ll (2= 96" 1> 6471 ¥51> 95" L> YTz ¥ 51> [ fa0s €860 TZOTTTT
0 - 0 [} 0 0 0 0 0 010T/81CL L LA
117 |Wasel | sseo- |WTagsel | 0Z60> | 9260> ik &8> [s67 /6 | wroéese | 6¥1> Sil> S 1> [g'g2 [6L°E [80% %4 ey ST {081 080t S68 uss0> | (G} ZE0T/EEs
oz Iwalor| g0 |WPaLgl| 6760- | 8BGO | L0 £0T> ¥eg 0zs WaLeE [ LEL Ll B0°L> E08 et {sry (oo 'S 0T [8'61 VEL LEL 0TE'0> 2Z0T/ELE
650 rieg | ereo- [FE g0 | 8680 | SEE seL> [£%2 1z |wlaeel | zv'i 66°L> L5 ros's €L 1> ZE > Yol [£02 8> [11'8 055 ¥YOE 899> | (a4} Tenzee/c
SE1 [ezy | z59°0> (6oL 195°0> | 686> | 0Z'L> 0zL> [£3€ e |waliz | el SLL> STl rzge [v9Z [Zve L L'EE, LEL> rszL £26 805 Z590> TZOTZLIT.
BEy00 | LELO> | LELU» | Of60> | LSs0> | 9/60> } ¥ZEO- | yeEo» | 1% feLl 95 L oz L> 85'L> vT I 511> 1> Si'L> [TRE Ll [7 651> fogs [T LZ0Z/S/E
LE WEvn | #[er'D | oS0 A99 | odg50 | ¥z | «¥90 | 8L gLi> [ «[+9 «EL It AL50 | «[530 | <fe60 | oIv7 «[8L rvs MEF a6l 1L 3 () 510Z/1/8
Lo [ [TE fad +[SE AN 5> 25> 5> zs> [9t [Fhid 4 SLOZNER
[ - 0 [ 0 0 0 i [1 0L02/8L/01 9=
YO0 | fZEl | pe0> | 7790> | Zev0~ | 08S0- | DESQ- | OESO0> | iUE- [Ei 8E |> o¥60> | 8El> | Meor | DEL> 6L1> o> v L sg'l> o' 1> 0E'L> 05> E0g> | B3L0> ZZATEL/S
VEED'D | 0LLC> | 0410 LEL> L1 ol 691> 691> oz 1561 R LV 1> 591> 6L L 051> [T 09°1> 6> [ 60°Z> ey fzs'9 TsLT | 9690 ZTZOTITELE
\9E0D | 0090 | Q090> | cseor | £18°0- | Z8g0> | sgs0> | SE60- | IS8T TLBL 151> ZL 151> [T LT1> 1Tl LT 61> L' &L= yEL> [ES 40 | zzooe LENZ/S/E
nELS0 - {23 nie noz Mol | nee | nre 66> LLOZ/E/LL
P00 = 0o [i] ] a ] ] 0 (33} 0LOZ/Z WL
500 - [T 0 [ a [ [ [] 010201 S-MW
VE WOEL]| 660> | Was/Z | 961> Le> (96T oy > ogz’L | oovZL lw'aoso't | [ss6 £S5 0T 5T f105 Ev9 [N QECL rsz e GLLE 089l | 670> CLOTETR
oyE  |WaEEs | ZlLee | Waae | Bl [veg Y SE |> psi't | ooo'ZL iwdogo'z | soz> 06> LT OSE 166 oL [ ale’L GEE BEE 00ZE 059'L | zzr0> TEOLTET
o'g6 | Wagol | 0690> | Wawy | 0Zix fepl zzl Z5° 1> 0l6z_ | ooe'se [ Wwanler | Tyzl zw's £0L €29 £21 991 rie 0SEY B'E9 Si6 0L0L 09L€ WE'0> LZOT/S/E
3 oFE #0055 2 an SL anN ez izz i [E] oCL 0I5 0z8 ] 6LIT/LZ/S
{gey - [agoL £ CEL A Q0T [ 01> G LICE/ELL
[y - fooit 7E UEL 173 [ [ [ [
x4 = 0Ly ZE (4 vt QEE 08L 0 0L0Z/gLaL 1M
VN /34 50'0 SHI VD
w/N WA og SEES)
oL Flinz) amL daoed | davsd ) 4GD2d | Q@DR | 999 | o0 | oggeg Ja7<H | 46053 | 300%46 | J07xH-8 | qooxH | dasxH-6 [ aaoxp-s | agxHe| daddH "_..u..mu.“m &.M.n_._ aady n“wm: Gl g R
oy | e | oL |-LYET|BLEEL| 1|moL |8ULETE @oL | TeVEE | WLETE | UET| meL [ALETL LT (UVEEL [ BIOL L eon | gy [ Py (44
I JequinT sdasd pue erewieNSIN
synsay jeapAjey unog
yEalgeL




NEW
BUSINESS




SECTIONS. A _PAGENO._! __

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors
From: lohn Friedenbach
Date: November 9, 2023
Re: License Agreement with Foster Clean Power A & B Solar Project

APN 505-151-012-000
2428 Foster Avenue, Arcata

Discussion

Arcata Land Company, LLC owns APN 505-151-012, 506-231-019, and 506-231-022; 2428 Foster
Avenue in Arcata. The District has an easement (August 23, 1961; Simpson Redwood Company) for our
water transmission lines (industrial and domestic) that traverse through these parcels. Foster Clean
Power A, LLC and Foster Clean Power B, LLC is the developer and opsrator of a commercial solar and
energy storage facilities on these parcels.

As a condition of development in the close proximity of our transmission pipelines, the County of
Humboldt Planning and Building department approved the following condition in the building permit for the
solar and energy projects.

“The applicant shall enter into a license agreement with the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
(HBMWD) to allow HBMWD to utilize the proposed 15-foot-wide maintenance road adjacent to the
30-foot waterline easement (Easement}, and where the maintenance road no longer borders the
Easement, a 15-foot-wide strip B}!and along the south side of the Easement, to allow access to and
maintenance of the water lines, on the condition that {1) HBMWD may use the 15-foot-wide
maintenance road and/or 15-foot-wide strip only when it is not reasonably able to confine its
activities to the Easement; and (2) if HBMWD removes any portion of the project perimeter fence in
connection with its use of the 15-foot-wide maintenance road and/or 15-foot-wide strip, the fence
shall be promptly replaced at the expense of HBMWD. The license agreement shall include an exhibit
depicting the license areaq, standard insurance, indemnity, and reserved rights provisions, and shaill
terminate automatically at such time that the project is decommissioned. Except in the event of an
uncured default, as specified in the license agreement, the license shali be irrevocable while the
project remains in operation and shall bind any successors of applicant.”

Attached for your consideration and possible approval is the Access License Agreement that has been

negotiated between Foster Clean Power A, LLC and Foster Clean Power B, LLC and the District. This
agreement has been reviewed and approved by District Counsael.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Board authorize staff to sign the Access License Agreement and record the
fully executed agreement at the Humboldt County Recorder's Office.




SECTION_9.0,_PAGENO, 2

GRANT OF ACCESS LICENSE AND AGREEMENT

THIS GRANT OF ACCESS LICENSE AND AGREEMENT (“Agreement™) is made by and between
FOSTER CLEAN POWER A LLC and FOSTER CLEAN POWER B LLC, both of which are a
California limited liability company (collectively, “Grantor”), and HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT, a public water district formed pursuant to California law (“Grantee™), to be effective
as of the date of its recordation (the “Effective Date”) in the Office of the Humboldt County (California)
Recorder, as follows:

Recitals

A, Grantor is a developer and operator of commercial solar and energy storage facilities. On
January 19, 2023, the Humboldt County Planning Commission approved a Conditional Use Permit (“Use
Permit”) authorizing Grantor to construct and operate a commercial solar and energy storage facility (the
“Facility”) on the that certain real property situated in an unincorporated area of Humboldt County,
California near the City of Arcata, and identified by Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 505-151-012,
506-231-019, and 506-231-022 (the “Property™). The Property is owned by Arcata Land Company, LLC,
(“ALC”™) and is leased to Grantor.

B. Grantee is the operator of public water systems, and currently holds a water line easement
and additional rights over the Property (the “Water Line Easement”). The Water Line Fasement grant is
attached hereto as Exhibit A. Two water transmission pipelines are currently located within the Water Line
Easement (the “Water Lines™).

C. Use Permit Condition of Approval 4 (“COA 4”) requires Grantor to grant an access
license to Grantee meeting certain terms and conditions. COA 4 provides as follows:

The applicant shall enter into a license agreement with the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
(HBMWD) to allow HBMWD to utilize the proposed 15-foot-wide maintenance road adjacent to
the 30-foot waterline easement (Easement), and where the maintenance road no longer borders the
Easement, a 15-foot-wide strip of land along the south side of the Easement, to allow access to and
maintenance of the water lines, on the condition that (1) HBMWD may use the 15-foot-wide
maintenance road and/or 15-foot-wide strip only when it is not reasonably able to confine its
activities 1o the Easement; and (2) if HBMWD removes any portion of the project perimeter fence
in connection with its use of the 15-foot-wide maintenance road and/or 15-foot-wide strip, the fence
shall be promptly replaced at the expense of HBMWD,. The license agreement shall include an
exhibit depicting the license area, standard insurance, indemnity, and reserved rights provisions, and
shall terminate autoratically at such time that the project is decommissioned. Except in the event
of an uncured default, as specified in the license agreement, the license shall be irrevocable while
the project remains in operation and shall bind any successors of applicant.

D. Grantor desires to grant to Grantee, pursuant to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, a license to access and use the 15-foot-wide maintenance road adjacent to the Water Ling
Hasement, and where the maintenance road no longer borders the Water Line Easement, a 15-foot-wide
strip of land along the south side of the Water Line Easement, to allow Grantee to access and maintain the
Water Lines. The described portion of the maintenance road and the strip of land along the south side of
the Water Line Easement subject are hereafter referred to as the “License Area”.

i

Iy



SECTION 1.Q_ PAGENO._ 2

THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties
agree as follows:

Agreement
1. Recitals Incorporated. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into and
made a part of this Agreement.
2. Grant of License. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,

Grantor hereby grants and conveys to Grantee and Grantee’s agents, employees, engineers, contractors,
consultants, and representatives (collectively, “Grantee’s Agents”) a license to enter the Property for the
purpose of accessing and maintaining the Water Lines within the Water Line Easement. The license shall
encompass a 15.00 foot wide area as depicted in Exhibit B hereto (the “License Area™). The License shall
be non-exclusive. For purposes of this Agreement, “maintaining the Water Lines” or “maintenance
activities” includes the right of Grantee or Grantee’s Agents to operate, maintain, inspect, repair, or replace
the Water Lines, or to conduct such additional activities permitted by the Water Line Easement.

3. Use of License Area. The License includes the right to access the Property for the purpose
of accessing and performing maintenance activities on the Water Lines within the Water Line Easement
only when Grantee is not reasonably able to confine its maintenance activities to the Water Line Easement.
Grantee may perform such maintenance activities at all reasonable times and shall provide Grantor 48
hours of advance telephone or e-mail notice prior to performing any scheduled work requiring excavation;
provided, however, that in the event of the need for emergency repair work, Grantee shall provide as much
advance notice as the circumstance reasonably allow, but the failure to provide advance notice shall not
prohibit Grantee from accessing the License Area to conduct such emergency repair work. Grantor shall be
responsible for providing Grantee with a current list of contacts including names, telephone numbers and
e-mail addresses. All work shall be undertaken in a manner that reasonably minimizes and causes the least
amount of disturbance to the Property. Grantee shall promptly repair any damage to the Property and any
improvements thereon caused by Grantee’s maintenance of the Water Lines. All work shall be performed
in a professional, workmanlike manner. Grantee, at its sole cost and expense, shall promptly repair and
restore all portions of the Property, including fencing, disturbed by Grantee in connection with maintenance
of the Water Lines, to the condition existing prior to such disturbance.

4, General Reserved Rights. Grantor retains the right to make any use of the Property,
including but not limited to surface and subsurface areas, that does not interfere unreasonably with
Grantee’s free use and enjoyment of the License Area or Grantee’s rights under the Water Line Easement,

5. Indemnity.

5.1 By Grantee. Grantee agrees to indemnify Grantor and hold Grantor and ALC

harmless from and against all liens or claims for payment for maintenance of the Water Lines, and for any
liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, claims, costs, charges and expenses, including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and other professional fees (if and to the extent permitted by law)
(“Liabilities”), incurred by any person or entity in connection with, arising out of or related in any way to the
failure to pay for work associated with the Water Lines, or any injury to or death of any person, or damage
to or loss of any property, or damages which may be imposed upon, incurred by, or asserted against the
Grantor and/or ALC arising, directly or indirectly, out of or in connection with Grantee’s or Grantee’s
Agents’ use and occupancy of the License Area, Notwithstanding anything in this Section 5.1 to the
contrary, Grantee shall not be obligated to indemnify or hold Grantor or ALC harmless from a Liability to
the extent such Liability is caused by the active negligence or willful misconduct of Grantor, ALC, ot any
of their principals, employees, agents, invitees, tenants, sub-tenants, consultants, or contractors (or any of



SECTION 2.4__PAGENO._ L

their sub-contractors).

5.2 By Grantor. Grantor agrees to indemnify Grantee and hold Grantee harmless from
and against any liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, claims, costs, charges and expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and other professional fees (if and to the extent permitted by
law) (“Liabilities”), incurred by any person or entity in connection with, arising out of or related in any way
to the failure to pay for work associated with the development, use, or operation of the Facility, or any injury
to or death of any person, or damage to or loss of any property, or damages which may be imposed upon,
incurred by, or asserted against the Grantee arising, directly or indirectly, out of or in connection with
Grantor’s or Grantor’s Agents’ use and occupancy of the Property. Notwithstanding anything in this
Section 5.2 to the contrary, Grantor shall not be obligated to indemnify or held Grantee harmless from a
Liability to the extent such Liability is caused by the active negligence or willful misconduct of Graniee ot

any of its principals, employees, agents, invitees, tenants, sub-tenants, consultants, or contractors (ot any
of their sub-contractors).

6. Insurance. Grantee shall maintain, and shall ensure that Grantee’s Agents maintain,
public liability and property damage insurance insuring against any liability arising out of any use of the
License Area pursuant to the provisions hereof, Such insurance maintained by Grantee or Grantee’s Agents
(as applicable) shall be in the amount of four million dollars ($4,000,000) combined single limit for injury
to or death of one or more persons in an occurrence, and for damage to tangible property (including loss of
use) in an occurrence. The policy maintained by Grantee will insure the contractual liability of Grantee
covering the indemnities herein and will (1) name Grantor and ALC (and their successors, assigns, and
affiliates) as additional insureds, (2) contain a cross-liability provision, and (3) contain a provision that the
insurance provided by Grantee hereunder will be primary and noncontributing with any other insurance
available to Grantor or ALC. The aforementioned insurance coverage may be obtained under a blanket
policy carried by Grantee or Grantee’s Agents, as the case may be. Grantee shall provide Grantor with
evidence of such insurance coverage before any use of the License Area.

7. Water Line Easement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to amend, modify, or
otherwise affect the rights granted fo or the obligations imposed upon Grantee or ALC, as successor in title
to the original grantor of the Water Line Easement, pursuant to the Water Line Easement.

8. Term and Termination.

7.1  Term. Subject to Paragraph 7.2 below, the License created by this Agreement
shall remain effective for the duration of the Facility’s operational life, and shall terminate automatically
upon decommissioning of the Facility (*Term”).

7.2 Termination. The License created by this Agreement may be terminated under
the following conditions:

a. By Grantor, should Grantee violate any term or condition of this Agreement
and fail to cure or diligently commence curing such violation within thirty
(30) days after receiving written notice from Grantor; and

b. Automatically upon expiration of the Term.

9. Manner of Giving Notice. Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices and demands
that either party is required or desires to give to the other shall be given in writing by personal delivery,
express courier service, cettified mail, return receipt requested, or by e-mail to the address or e-mail address
set forth below for the respective party, provided that if any party gives notice of a change of name, address,



SECTION_7.A_ PAGENO._ D

or e-mail address, notices to that party will thereafter be given as demanded in that notice. All notices and
demands so given will be effective upon receipt by the party to whom notice or a demand is being given.

10. Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this
Agreement is brought by either party to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive from
the other party, in addition to any other relief that may be granted, the reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and
expenses incurred in the action or proceeding by the prevailing party.

11, Entire Agreement. This Agreement is the final expression of, and contains the entire
agreement between, the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior
understandings with respect thereto. This Agreement may neither be modified, changed, supplemented, or
terminated, nor may any obligations hereunder be waived, except by written instrument signed by the party
to be charged or by its agent duly authorized in writing or as otherwise expressly permitted herein.

12, Governing Law; Venue. The parties hereto acknowledge that this Agreement has been
negotiated and entered into in the State of California. The parties hereto expressly agree that this Agreement
will be governed by, interpreted under, and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State
of California. Any action arising from this Agreement shall be venued in the Superior Court of California
in and for the County of Humboldt.

13, Authority. Each person executing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she

has the power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the party for which such
execution and delivery is being made.

14, Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the
heirs, executars, administrators, successors, and assigns of Grantor and Grantee.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE



SECTION_ 9.2 PAGENO,_(0

e e o e e e

15. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original, and all of which, together, will constitute one and the same instrument.

GRANTOR
FOSTER CLEAN POWER A LLLC

GRANTER
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

By: Ardeshir Arian, Managing Member
DATED:

4675 Stevens Creek Blvd., Suite 250
Santa Clara, CA 95051

Tel: (408) 663-6647

Email: ardi@renewam.com

GRANTOR
FOSTER CLEAN POWER B LLC

By: Ardeshir Arian, Managing Member
DATED:

4675 Stevens Creek Blvd,, Suite 250
Santa Clara, CA 95051

Tel: (408) 663-6647

Email: ardig@renewam.com

By: John Friedenbach, General Manager
DATED:

P.O. Box 95

Eureka, CA 95502-0095

Tel: (707) 443-5018 ,
Email: friedenbach@hbmwd.com



SECTION 74 PAGENO.__|__

Exhibit A




SECTION 7-Q—PAGEND.,_©__

i. FEEAEILE

THIE DASEMEED AND RIGHY OF WAY 40m 7. sxde and onbesed
imte ehie 7’é ’ﬁw - ,,_//%{Q s ; 1381, By snd bestwess
BIMPEON RRIMGOD CONPANY, & Washington Uevporation, 3000 Washingtom

Building, Seattle i, Weshington, bovolaafter refsrsed %o e
"Srembor®, and HHROLLE BAY MESFICIRAL VRTER DISTRIS®, o Polikignl
gubdiviasien of the Biste of California, dwly ovgemined, emietipg
and 2oting purenant to the dews theressf, P.O. Box 95, Surska,

California, hersimafier referred %0 as “SrREatoch

- _ﬁ&gﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬂ
EE. CUIVRYANDE CLAUSE

&, Grnptor dofs hexaby geant and cohwey Lo Grenitse, swbiert to
e paservetioas, resizicticns. med to fell compliakoe with oneh

and all of the terms and conditlens heseoim vontainsd, 2 Pazoos
asaeRrnt and Fight of way mlong and ecross the following doseribed
renl property situsted in the emmm&ylﬂﬁ Bemloldt, staus of
&zliifornds. ko wit:

Porticns &f the 28Y Fechien 19, the Wiy
toetion 33, and the Fdk Foction 30
B An w e mw - WM.

EEX. DERCRIPEEON OF RIGCET OF WAY

B A wérip of lewd cvsr and ackoun poxtions of he
bl Bamtion A%, wWhisdh Zeetion 30, and the
feckion 310, all in PN - A8 - B.8%., eesb ﬂ%r&p
befing 3% faet in @idih ob eseh gide of the canves
linn desozibed se folvws ) ‘

Baginming at on angle mmimt in the shove

mentiened conterline, #oid angle podnt being

foumd 10%38.6 feek worih spd 0643.9 foob enab

of the Seotion eorbpaer ofwmon o Socklione A%,

20, 38 and 30 as lovated ned desoribed i

Poak 12 of furveys of the publie rocspde of
- Bambeidt Qounty. Page 13

thenes & 42 degrese 37 aimutes 3D socondd W 1314.8 faed:
thenee & 38 dogrewns 24 wmiputos © 479.4 Foedp .




SECTION {.Q_PAGENO.__

thanee 8 63 degreas 21 mimskes 40 sacands W
824.4 fost %o the noxtherly Mine of the Arenta
‘and Mad River #ail Roed Proparty '
) Containing 1.57 actes, more or leas.
IV. PURPOSE AND BSES L
A, galid snsement 28d right of way shall be used for the mole
puxposs of water traaemission and /o distridwtion syeten whilining
42* mimfmon dinmeter pipe, o be consireeted o installied, nod
for purptaes ressousbly snoideatal tharete, but for noe other
Purpcse; PRWIDED, bowevez, that Grasies shall have the right
to enlaxga ite pipe or pipes €0 ANy SiE¢ OCrRnise ehall deon DESEERRRY
L dopirelle, and afver Ghe Lmitisi Lmstallation of plpe or plpas,
to lay, constrach, merntals, cpexate, repals, and revew addltlomml
Lings OF pipe.
B. The Grantee %o nsve sod be held sald ecassment 20 long ap sudh
line or lines énd appest ennnges thearato shall be malstained na
harain provided, wlth ivacons to spd wgrens from the prendses,
for the purpose of <oastiarting, inspecting, repsirisg, waintaining
nud replacing ﬁh@ Progesiy of grantew and the vemeval OF saoh ne
will, 4n whola or ia pext,
L. Sremtes’s pight 1§ the see of sald oxpoment snd cight of vay
is not exclusive and Qrantor wmay ogc med enjoy the premizss enoeps
fox the puvpozey berz.n grastad w0 the Graates, and RAY PEvE
the enrface of S0Ld voemENs Strip, use the seme for ELOXEYe, Moy
cross &ed revisoe <he msme with rosde, slectric lines, peway Linea,
wter linea, gas ires And other GLility sevvies Lines; provided
Eha $rapior shal) e éxmmt TR copsLIust any pereanest buildicy ox
oihar strueturs La, &, spon, onder or ovsy gaid maﬂmména and
2ight of wmy, oF ODhzcEeel sy ntﬁey Pormenent streciure o abe
steuetion waich wamle susdtentielly lpterfore with Gruntes's
wae wf Che sasemebt [for %N parPpOsSen ROESiD et forlth op Qith the
meLnkeAInce oF repalr by eswnkes of Ats pipe line ox PAPS AinGw.
B Por purposss of lngeese Lo of ogress from peid BasHmsnt Srentne
ghall uae soch roosdenys as mew exist or which oty hoveafier be
wvenstrvotad by @xantmm; &y Ax the svent sudh ingres: and egress be

i



SECTION - _ PAGE NO._| O

inadeguate, Lo reaaonably inotall and 2ervice soid sasomént and
pipeline ox pipelines ns hereinsbove provided Grantes chall wes
pugh other rondg OFr ACCRAFVLYS ACrOSs Grentox’s pProparty 48 may

ba desiynated end approved is ndvanesd by Grantor.

He the drastee ahall cover all pipelines with a minisms dopuh of

four (4} feet of Flil meterizl: all pevanent o be replaced and

the land refurndsd to origismi state as of time of CummenceRsnt of

aoastraotion.

¥. THRN OF Pasmmmy

¥nis grant of aosement and gight of way shall continue ﬁm long aa

vead for the puxy@a@a Iraated, but LE for a pericd of five veovs

Grantea shall cesae fo vee the rigats, peivileges and asthoriiiag

for the purpbass grawt@ﬁ,ror akall shandon the uwee of the casdpent

axct right nf why herein yranted, theh,in any of such svents, ooid

papemant and right of way and all rights hersunder shall asboe

mativally oeoese and torminate, and ﬂéid eapsmant and right of way

#hall revert to the then holder of the fse titie o the xenl prow

parky: and Smantes, for iltsaeld snd for its sucoswRets and mpslgns,

agrees to a¥ecute and deliver auch Qocuments 88 may be reguired Lo

exvingalesh of record :ald sassmant and ri&ht of way.

VI. CONEINERATION CLAVGES

&, Payment of Taxas

Grantes wyroas 1o Py 2ll taxes that mey Ye laposed L9 oonsection

with said right of way leprovemsntsy and all taxes imposes on geid

wight »f way fteslf o the evaet Lt should ke segregated on the

tax rolle. ’ i

B, In méﬂaiﬁwration for tae rights and privileoyen hozxein grosibed,

arentee has peild Grantor the ews 7 Qoe Bondesd pollavs {8196.09),

tha mmmmipt_@f which la herveby sckoow .odged.

ViYL, HARWPEBRHCE

grantee BEree? at 8l) tiwes to Keap sald xlﬁht of way and ghe

Faad livies gomstractad o inpkallnd theraom rn 2 rezsgoealhle stete

af popsifl.

¥IET. BﬂﬁﬁmVﬁQIUEE AND PRSTRICTI 0N %

&. Matsexs of Racornd
Bk § wat té matLery melating to wmtmg ond woter rights and all

-



SECTION_J.0_ PAGENO, _|

roservations, easenents, nnd restricotions of recosd.
B. VYegatation Growih and Timbwr
~ Granter resgrves unto Ltpelf, its successors mnd apnigne, the

right to nb?n&n By vagetation growimg upon seid skee partinent
to this sasement, FROVIDED, however, that Grantes shall hewve tha
right from time to time to out and romove all trees,. all updergrowth,
and any othar obstructions that may injure, endangor, or inteyfswa
with the conatyuction and use of sald pipeline or linss, er fittinge
Bnd appliances appurtemant Lo any of sald lipes.
@ Ressrvation of BRight to Relocste

Grantor. at its mole cost and sxpengs, shall have tha righs
to realign Or reiocate said eagsment, right of way, spd Gramtes’s
pipeline ox pipelines. 1f, in Grantor's iudoment the gase sbhall
be necessary 5r zconmmically pdvisable for Gramtor's usu of cage-
ment lands or of Jontiguous lande. s0¢ (f Eueh reslisvmeat of xe-
lovation can be accompliched by Granto: without interrxuption of
watsy service to Granior's other Watar waers., In soch avent,
Grartor shall obtalts and grany. without feorther conmsideretion teo
Grantes, sach sddivional righte of way and easenants as may be
raimivad for such realignment oF relocation  and Srantsee shall, by
hnstoanent in recovdablie form, desd baclk to the fhen-holder of 'the
fee aatate the portion of aald sasement and right of way veplaged
by such realigred or relocated saszement and vight of way. i
&, Hoo-Azsigoable

This easemant and right +F way 18 pavsonsl to Orantes nnpd
the same may not be avsigaed by operation of lew or othoezwiss
without the written congent of Grantor. itte BUCUBBUSEH apd azFigng.
K. COVERANTS '
A, Srantse does herveby agures 0o comply with all laswe, rules,
regulations and urﬂ&mahc@s of Humboldt Coonty, State of Celifornin
and the United #tates of Awerica now in effect or Bersimefter |

Promulgatad relating o the constrection, Azepection, repalriang

o o



SECTION_-Q_pAGE NO._(CL

weintalning, replaciey ond romevel of the aferesvid pipe Jinass

and APPUTLERANLES. '

B. ZInetallatics of Gates

‘ if the @xaﬁtmm reguente izstellation of gubten A woitimg,

the Orantee agreas to fnstall a gate or goles mé the onirdbas oF
oatrancen te anld right of wey and at all times fo meletals preperly
the same to She ond thay The public shall bo desied ho wee of ¥he
zight of way oz the sdjsvent lands of Grestor, ile FUCCOSEOTS ond
assigns, a5 pedk oz s reacowmably poesible.

2, Indsmaiky

| @rmntes aeswses RAl risk of imjuwy Lo persons er A

property In asay smanwery reouiting frow of wrising out of, @
coppseied with Crantes’s comstruation, malntonspoe o opsrabicnd,
and agrens %o indemnify,. defand, amd save harmioss Oxantor feam
2ey and tll lome, cost, dawege obarge or asnpene® saueed W, or
rasulting from, wany guah tnjury or danngs. Grasiee YOS Lo 3RV
and Bold harmiess the dvender from 8ll Lioms, owets, dhargos.
sluime oy fpmagas, ond all oxpenses of awy kig& oy mniure wWhinte
SGHVAY Arising or gm@&&mq out of this casensnt.
. Iafasnidy Issuranoe

Perlng the terwm of this essenent and Tight of vy, Srantes
sheli pay for isswrenod sgelinst liability impesed by lew arlsiag
fgen Grentes’s uparaties, imgluwding the operstlion of vehlales
mnd oeRtrbotuel ﬂhl&g&aiama.'am form and substapoe soceptahle B
Srantor., end ia smounts of not lese thom Omo Bumdred Thensend
Bollare {8160,000.00) for amy one Boedily leiuxy, sicimens, Aisoses
or dopth, and mot loes than FThres Pradesd Thovsund Dollszp (8300, 569
it o mﬁy ong eoourrencsd and Taree Hunired Thovsand Pollaze ﬂ%aﬁﬁ;@@@u
pﬁ@@gﬁ&y danegn. Sush policy or peliciss shell not centadin &
bumddity warvamty €lawse nor shall dzanter Bo w nomdd Lamnred wpfes
thoze gvlicies. Syaniee shall imsadictely provide Gzramntony wish

R,



SECTION 9. PAGENO._1 3 _

preper avidonce of gush Aveerinod CoVERED. Oranter shall be

given pam {10} deys motloe of any exmcsllatics, sapirntion o
modification of eay such policy or pelieles.
. DEPRIRA .

In the eveor the druntes shail bocoms ia dnfawit in the Fow-
forpanage o failuge ito porfors all of the ag

ard confiitions on ita poard 4o ke porformed horennder and sech
dofaslt shall continue and aot be remedied withim thirey {303
Auays &ﬂ:m" petices of &efaunlt iz given Ly dpentor o Srantes, Ghe
Graontor shall Be emtitled te seuk and colleet sudh JSosaghs 88 BHYy
" sesult theraby, BOWRVEr GIBSLOX TRCerves the right to ewsTelee
any and all othar relief or mmediss for such browch snd daflipels
a8 may bs provided from timo to time Wy the lawe of the Puabo of
Enlif ounia.

. DOTICER
21% watises o be given by mi&h@r party harote Lo the obbhaw,

ap reguired herais, shall be in weiting and shall ba doseed @0
hive Bewn propsvly given when deposited in the United Stotas
weil i certified ifomwm, postage prepaid, nddrescad to sueh perty
st Los addrest hereimedeve S8t forih, oF at suvh other nddweas
BE ahall theretefors huve hoan Jepigented by euih parky By wwlthen
motipe te the obthaer.
XX, Thewienlody
Hharorey ceferends A8 mmde Berein we “Oranker”® the oun
giseil be dsamed ¢0 inglnde the susoescyrs sad mzalgne of Suanded.
I WEITOEHE WHEREOF, the Guantezr opd Gvaskee havd herounba



.................... ‘N.,.x,_u.-M_M.,m.ﬁ._w...‘.wm.‘.‘._____.._..__ . SECTIQN 1. q
o T . SECTION 7.2 PAGENO._LF_

Voo e

?f Ak . fr/:,f 7 et £
set tholr nemds this — day eof [ T a i , 196i.

MNBOLAT DAY MUFLCKBAL WATER

BIRPROGE REBWOLD COMPAEY
BISTRIOY -
. By ‘
. Tirealdent
hihents hitosts
- 5 7
N P e sl
* ” Secrathry

R ECPWEREY

Srambod. Branio.



SECTION 4.&

e o o )

PAGENO, | ©

Exhibit B




€L | OBL =1 — un
B.I “3meds | 48 @sm:u_ A8 Hav
oz - : i
L0 AWYN 31 107
s Ty Ve e PN T R
133 3N 34 QvO0LY -
.q N¥ld LS 8 AY-1504 © &
;. ‘ SIUIL ONMYED S
u.. VL UBUBHON | e vy Hiieg . 529056°6 € 3N 3INId :
YHIGHOOD S49 104 CINOUY2OT -l b
m TZ0-IE2-905 .m_ul_w_lns “BI0=1£2-505 Gn
_ W3EHON Tauvd . o]
'
1222 =6rE=(204)] Aunduiay puor Bi0say
xm.:au O | WD L e i
8%y d4IM0d NVITD H3LS04 v 1504
3NV LI3r0dd 3 R
£2-120-92 ZooY o 3 ... “dao\Yrio ol
ERG) INSSH/ NOISAZY o i\
- P \
\ X!

TNOILONYLSNOD H04 LON
“AING. S3ASOdHNG )
ONILLINMAL 804 51 ONIMYNO SIHL

spJoIal E_oEo J0 18vbd
95948 1961/91/01 Ul

LEL SY +¢ ¥3d B 13DUVd
BE0LEO-1E0T NQ

I PR e 2

kz!.b eigigﬁ a-giix». o o5 4
s T £E0-1£2-905
:? JN l0-is1-50% ‘G10-1£2-905 NdV

Lotgfgim.uzf-gnnsﬂ
v .3

WD YA INTHENINOY
Z04X LpIFE9TFOP 1L
15056 ¥ "wie1) siues
052 15 BB 4324 SN 585
STVIHANY DHVAINIY

“[8307 12y “1e307 Jupy ) s Sy

__




secTioN _ 9l pageno, |

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: November 9, 2023

Re: Samoa Peninsula Waterline Right-of-Way Maintenance Project -NOP

Public Hearing

Discussion

As the Board is aware, staff has contracted with GHD to prepare an Environmental Impact
Report (EIR) to obtain environmental clearance and permits for our Samoa Peninsula Waterline
Right-of-Way Maintenance Project, One of the initial steps in the EIR process is to prepare a
Notice of Preparation {NOP}, The attached NOP has been published for public comment.

Part of the process for the NOP is to conduct a public scoping meeting (Public Hearing) to

receive comments by the public. That public scoping meeting is time set for 10:00 a.m. at our
November 9, 2023 board meeting.

GHD staff will present a brief project overview at the meeting as part of the public hearing.
After which, the Board will receive any public comments regarding the NOP. Any public
comments received will be considered during the drafting of the EIR.




SECTION 75 PAGE NO._

Notice of Preparation of a
Draft Environmental
Impact Report

Samoa Peninsula Waterline Right-of-Way
Maintenance Project

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
October 20, 2023

—> The Power of Commitment




secTioN. 9o PAGENO._2

Notice of Preparation of Draft Environmental Impact Report
Samoa Peninsula Waterline Right-of-

Way Maintenance Project

Lead Agency:

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95
Eureka, CA, 95502-0095 USA

718 Third Street
Eureka, CA 95501, United States
T +1707 443 8326 | E kerry.mcnamee@ghd.com | ghd.com

October 20, 2023

GHD | Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report ii



Contents

1. Introduction
1.1 CEQA Requirements
1.2 General Information

2.1
2.2

2.3
2.4
2.5
26

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9
3.10
3.11
3.12
3.13
3.14
3.15
3.16
3.17
3.18
3.19

1.2.1 Availability of Project Documents/Files

1.2.2 Written Comments
12.3 Comrnent Period
124 Public Scoping Meeting

Project Description

Project Location and Setting

Project Activities

2.21 General Maintenance Activities
222 16-inch Pipe Replacement
223 Overflow Pipe Area Maintenance
224 Electrical Line Installation
225 Techite Pipe Maintenance
Existing Biological Data

Project Implementation Schedule
Project Equipment and Staging
Regulatory Context

Probable Environmental Effects of the Project

Aesthetics

Agricultural and Forestry Resources
Air Quality

Biological Resources

Cultural Resources

Energy Resources

Geology and Soils

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Hazards and Hazardous Materials
Hydrology and Water Quality
Land Use and Planning

Mineral Resources

Noise

Population and Housing

Public Services

Recreation

Transportation

Tribal Cultural Resources

Utilities and Service Systems

SECTION. 96

PAGENO. T

OO OO OEO©DEPD®N~NNATDODSH A EDDERNMNRM = = 3o

GHD | Humbaldt Bay Municipal Water Distrigt | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report ili



SECTION _“1b PAGE NO. ©

3.20  Wildfire 10

Appendices

Appendix A Figures
Figure 1: Project Vicinity
Figure 2-1: Project Area
Figure 2-2: 15-inch Pipe Replacement Project Component
Figure 2-3: Project Components in Phase 3

GHE | Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report v



secTioN_T©_ paceno._o

1. Introduction

1.1 CEQA Requirements

The Samoa Peninsula Waterline Right-of-Way Maintenance Project (Project) is subject to the requirements
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The CEQA lead agency and decision-making body is
the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD or District). The HBMWD is responsible for assuring
the completion of the appropriate evaluation and processes of the Project as required by CEQA. The
HBMWD has the sole responsibility to make the appropriate findings and determinations with respect to the
CEQA process and disposition of the Project. The purpose of this Notice of Preparation (NOP) is to inform
the public, and responsible and trustee agencies that an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) will be
prepared for the Project, and to solicit comments on the proposed Project and potential impacts to be
addressed in the EIR. The EIR being prepared is intended to satisfy the requirements of CEQA (Public
Resources Code, Division 13, Section 21000-21 177), and the State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15000-15387).

1.2 General Information

Protect Title: Samoa Peninsula Watetline Right-of-Way Maintenance Project
Lead Agency: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95
Eureka, CA, 95502-0095
Attn: John Friedenbach, General Manager, friedenbach@hbmwd.com, (707) 443-5018

1.2.1  Availability of Project Documents/Files

This NOP is available for review during the business week at the HBMWD office located at 828 7th Street,
Eureka, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. and 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. An electronic version of
this NOP is available for review on the HBMWD website (https:/iwww.hbmwd.com/district-news).

1.2.2  Written Comments

Wiritten comments on the scope of the EIR can be sent to John Friedenbach at the HBMWD office at the
above-noted address. Additionally, comments may be submitted electronically via email to:
friedenbach@hbmwd.com.

1.2.3 Comment Period

CEQA Guidelines Section 15082 (b) requires a 30-day response period for input about the scope and
content of the EIR. The comment period for the NOP begins on October 20, 2023 and ends on November
20, 2023. The deadline for submitting written comments is November 20, 2023 at 5:00 p.m.

1.2.4  Public Scoping Meeting

A public scoping meeting will be held to further inform agencies and interested parties about the Project,
and to accept comments on the environmental issues germane to the Project. The meeting will be held on
November 9, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. at the HBMWD offices. The HBMWD is located at 828 7th Street Eureka,
Califernia 95502,

GHD | Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12803983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report 1



section 96 PAGENO. /.

2.  Project Description

2.1 Project Location and Setting

The Project is located in coastal Humboldt County, California, within the Samoa Peninsula (see Figure 1).
The Project Area is located within the Coastal Zone, specifically, within the Appeal jurisdiction of the
Coastal Zone, which is regulated by Humboldt County under the Humboldt Bay Area Plan Local Coastal
Program (HBAP), and appealable to the California Coastal Commission (CCC)

The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD or ‘District”) was formed in 1955 and is a regional
wholesale water provider that supplies water to approximately 88,000 people in the Humboldt Bay area.
HBMWD has two separate and distinct water systems, a domestic system and an industrial system. The
domestic system contains treated potable water that comes from wells that draw water from the aquifer
beneath the Mad River. HBMWD supplies drinking water to seven wholesale municipal customers which
include the cities of Arcata, Blue Lake, and Eureka, as well as community services districts (CSDs) serving
the following unincorporated areas: the Humboldt, Fieldbrook/Glendale, Manila, and McKinleyville CSDs.
These municipal customers in turn serve water to approximately 66% of the people in Humboldt County.

The industrial system delivers untreated surface water from the Mad River that is utilized for commercial
use and fire suppression on the Samoa Peninsula. The industrial system contains two pipelines (or
“waterlines”) which converge into one pipeline (or “waterling”) approximately 1.5 miles south of the northern
terminus of the Project Area. At around the turn of the 21t century, timber operations slowed and
processing facilities within the Samoa Peninsula began to close. The last major timber processing facility,
Freshwater Tissue Company, closed in 2010. Due to the current relatively small demand for industrial
water, the Districts ROW maintenance schedule within the Samoa Peninsula has been deferred or carried
out minimally. However, with anticipated growth of industrial services within this area in the near future (e.g.
aquaculture, Humboldt Bay port development, etc.), the District wishes to continue ROW maintenance work
along its industrial and domestic waterlines to maintain access to this critical infrastructure for repairs or
replacement (including the specific replacement of certain infrastructure components described in Section
2.2), and thus continue to deliver water throughout the distribution area.

2.2  Project Activities

The existing ROW alignment of the domestic and industrial waterlines extends from the east (Arcata) via
the Mad River Slough crossings and traverses south through the Samoa Peninsula. The domestic waterline
ultimately continues south into Eureka to provide water to the Humboldt CSD (see Figure 1). The Project
Area for the proposed Project is approximately 7.37 miles and includes approximately 5.71 miles of District
ROW and 1.66 miles of County ROW throughout the Samoa Peninsula as shown in Figure 2-1 through 2-
3. The Project Area includes the Districts ROW which is predominantly 30 feet wide, and in some locations
50 feet wide, and the County’s ROW which varies by width (see Figure 2-3), Approximately 0.86 acres
(37,300 square feet) of the northern Phase 1 area is located outside of the District's ROW on property
owned by the Redwood Gun Club. The total area of the Project is 54.49 acres, which includes 29.71 acres
within the District's ROW, 0.86 acres on private property (owned by the Redwood Gun Club), and 23.93
acres within the County ROW. All Project work will occur within the 54.49-acre Project Area. The District will

access its pipeline for Project activities through its ROW, recorded deeds of easement to the pipeline ROW,
or through the public ROW.

Proposed Project activities include both general maintenance activities, and specific Project components.

GHD | Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmenial Impact Report 2



SECTON_7S ___ pacEND, S

Project maintenance activities include:

— Removal of vegetation (grasses, herbaceous plants, shrubs, and trees),

—  Grubbing,

- Filling and/or movement of sand or soil to safeguard District infrastructure,
~  Excavation for pipeline repairs and replacement, and

—  Other activities required for accessing the District’s infrastructure and managing and maintaining water
service in this region.

And specific Project components include:

Replacement of an existing 15-inch pipe,

Overflow pipe area maintenance,

Electrical line installation,

Techite pipe replacement project maintenance

Additional information on the listed activities above is included in Sections 2.2 1 through 2.2.5 below.

[

[

2.2.1 General Maintenance Activities

Vegetation (herbaceous plants, vines, shrubs and trees) will be trimmed and/or removed throughout the
District's ROW in order to enable access to HBMWD infrastructure. Vegetation will be trimmed or removed
utilizing mechanical and hand tools, such as masticator and loppers or chainsaws. When possible,
vegetation will be trimmed or removed outside of the nesting bird season, which is considered March 15
through August 15 in this region, otherwise surveys for nesting birds will occur prior to vegetation trimming
or removal in accordance with the forthcoming Project permits.

Mechanical movement of sand is anticipated to be required to keep infrastructure buried to appropriate
depths, and is expected to occur predominantly in the northern half of the Project Area where there is a lack
of woody species. Excavations may also occur to access, maintain, repair or replace HBMWD

infrastructure. Heavy machinery including bull dozers, backhoes and excavators will be utilized for sand
movement, burial of infrastructure, and excavations.

It should be assumed that biological resources throughout the entirety of the Project Area could be removed
or manipulated under this Project for the purpose of maintaining access to HBMWD's infrastructure.

2.2.2  15-inch Pipe Replacement

The District’s domestic water pipeline serving the Samoa Peninsula is made up of several segments of
varying sizes. A 27-inch pipe conveys water from the District's Essex Facility and transitions to a 15-inch
pipe approximately one mile south of the Redwood Gun Club. Based on the District’s consideration of
current domestic water usage on the peninsula, potential future developments, and the age of the existing
piping, the District is considering replacing the existing 15-inch portion with a larger 24-inch PVC pipe. The
15-inch pipe segment to be replaced is approximately four miles in length, approximately located between
the one-million-gallon industrial water tank (southerly terminus) to one mile south of the Redwood Gun Club
(northerly terminus) (see Figure 2-2). Trenching depth will be approximately 5-7 feet deep to install the

replacement pipe, with approximately 3-5 feet of cover above the new pipe. All work will occur within the
District's ROW. '

GHD | Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report 3



SECTION OTb PAGE NO. 7

2.2.3 Overflow Pipe Area Maintenance

Currently an overflow discharge point exists approximately 445 feet west of the one-million-gallon industrial
water tank located west of Vance Avenue between LP Drive and Bay Street in the southern portion of the
peninsula (see Figure 2-3). The discharge point is connected to the water tank via a subsurface pipe, and
the entirety of the area is within the District's ROW. When the water tank is at capacity, any additional water
gradually overflows through the discharge point onto the beach. Maintenance activities in this area will
include movement of sand, stabilization of the discharge point to reduce potential erosion (i.e. potential use
of rip rap around the discharge point), overflow pipe replacement (including the necessary excavation for
replacement), and vegetation removal to retain access throughout the ROW.

2.2.4 Electrical Line Installation

One of the Project components is to abandon and replace an underground electrical line. The current line is
buried and consists of insulated aluminum wire with no conduit, and starts at Bay Street and terminates
north at the District's meter building near their one-million-gallon industrial water tank. The current line is
approximately 2,400 feet long. The line has become un-operational likely due to winter storms and/or
deterioration of the line due to its age. This Project component includes the abandonment of the existing
line in place and installation of a new line parallel to the old line. The new line will consist of 2-3 inch
diameter PVC conduit, copper wire, and will likely be installed into a trench approximately 3-4 feet deep and
buried. Clearing of various shrub and trees will be necessary approximately 10-15 feet wide to construction
access for the length of the newly placed line {(approximately 2,400 linear feet). Once the line is installed the
area will be kept clear of vegetation for maintenance and access reasons at least once every five years.

2.2.5 Techite Pipe Maintenance

The District will conduct maintenance actions along New Navy Base Road between the existing one-million-
gallon industrial water tank and Lincoln Avenue. Maintenance actions will occur within the road right of way

and may involve the removal of asphalt, excavation, grading, pipe repairs and/or replacement. No work will
occur outside of the road ROW.

2.3  Existing Biological Data

Biological surveys conducted in 2022 and 2023 within the Phase 1and 2 portions of the Project Area
indicate the presence of three- and one-parameter wetlands which are regulated by the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE), the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board (NCRWQCB) and Humboldt
County via the HBAP, respectively, as well as upland Sensitive Natural Communities (SNCs) (which will
likely be considered Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas [ESHA] under the HBAP) and federally and
state Endangered Species Act (ESA) listed beach layia (Layia camosa) and Menzies' wallflower (Erysimum
menziesii). Impacts to these resources is assumed to occur, and subsequent mitigation will be completed
as feasibly close to the Project Area as possible. It is possible that additional federally and/or state ESA
listed species may occur in the remaining Phase 3 area. Impacts to biological resources will be avoided
when possible. Affected biological resources will be mitigated as warranted based on agreements with
jurisdictional agencies as determined during Project permitting.

GHD | Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Enviranmental impact Report 4



section_7b  pace N, /O

2.4  Project Implementation Schedule

It is anticipated that implementation of Project components throughout the entire 7.37-mile Project Area wili
occur in phases over time. Each phase of Project activities is assumed to include up to two miles per year
(with the exception of the 15-inch pipe replacement component which spans four miles). After the entire
Project Area is initially maintained (i.e. cleared of vegetation, graded and maintained as needed), the
Project Area will be revisited at least once every five years for maintenance upkeep which could include
vegetation trimming or removal, movement of sand or other activities necessary to safeguard continuad
access to HBWMD infrastructure. Other Project components, such as repairs/replacement of pipe and other
related appurtenances, management of the overflow pipe area, electrical line, techite pipe and 15-inch pipe
replacement areas, may occur on a more accelerated schedule. For the purpose of defining this Project's

parameters, the lifespan of this Project (also referred to as the Project’s operational period) is assumed to
be 50 years.

2.5 Project Equipment and Staging

Equipment to be utilized under the Project could include the following: excavators (and attachments),
backhoes, bull dozers, front end loaders, tree trimmers, chainsaws, graders, dump trucks, and various

smaller equipment and hand tools. Staging will occur along the Project Area or within a paved or previously
disturbed area near the Project Area.

2.6 Regulatory Context

The Project will require a variety of permits due to the Project’s effects on protected public trust resources
located within the Project Area, including (but not limited to) three-parameter wetlands, ohe-parameter
wetlands, upland SNC/ESHA, and federally and/or state threatened or endangered plants (GHD 2022 and
2023). The following permits are anticipated to be required for Project implementation:

|

Coastal Development Permit from Humboldt County via the Humboldt Bay Area Plan Local Coastal '
Program for impacts to protected coastal resources. The Project Area is located in the Appeal

jurisdiction of the Coastal Zone;

— Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (CWA) Individual Permit from the USACE for impacts to

jurisdictional Waters, including wetlands, and a Wetlands Mitigation and Monitoring Plan:

— Section 401 of the CWA Water Quality Certification from the North Coast Regional Water Quality
Control Board (NCRWQCB) for impacts to regulated Waters, including wetlands;

—  Coordination with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) for potential impacts to
Galifornia ESA (CESA) listed beach layia and Menzies’ wallflower, an Incidental Take Permit or
Consistency Determination is anticipated:;

—  Formal consultation with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) for potential impacts to federally
ESA listed beach layia and Menzies’ wallflower (i.e. preparation of a Biological Assessment), and a
Rare Plant Mitigation and Monitoring Plan:

- California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Environmental Impact Report.

Ultimately, it is anticipated that the entire 7.37-mile Project Area will be under a single permit per agency,
and that the permits granted for this Project will be renewed upon expiration and thus remain active for the
long-term.

GHD | Humbeldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of & Draft Environmental Impact Report 5



SECTION_ b PAGENO. / /

3. Probable Environmental Effects of the
Project

Per CEQA Guidelines Section 15082 (a)(1)(c), the probable environmental effects of the Project, are
summarized below based on a preliminary review of the Project. Probable environmental effects are
organized by the environmental resource categories identified in Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines.
Because there is the potential for significant impacts to occur as a result of the Project, even with the use of
mitigation measures, HBMWD has determined that an EIR will be prepared. The EIR will provide site
specific information and analysis relevant to the Project, evaluate Project alternatives, and will identify
mitigation measures where significant impacts are identified.

For the reasons described below, HBMWD does not anticipate the Project will have any impact on two
environmental resource categories: Agricultural and Forestry Resources, and Mineral Resources. These
resource categories will not be analyzed in the EIR unless input from responsible agencies, trustee
agencies, or the public during the scoping period indicate an analysis is warranted.

3.1 Aesthetics

The Project Area is highly scenic and includes coastal dunes, dune swales, and forested dunes. In many
locations, Project activities are not anticipated to substantially degrade scenic resources because the
majority of the Project Area is already cleared of vegetation. However in some locations vegetation removal
and moverment of sand may substantially degrade scenic resources. The specific infrastructure component
work, such as the 15" pipe replacement component, is anticipated to have temporary impacts to scenjc
resources due to the prolonged presence of equipment. The EIR will analyze the potential impacts to
aesthetic resources, and if appropriate, include feasible mitigation measures,

3.2 Agricultural and Forestry Resources

The Project Area is along the Samoa peninsula and there are no agricultural or forestry land uses within the
Project Area. There are no agricultural or timber zoning or active Williamson Act contracts within the Project
Area. Additionally, the Project Area is composed of sand dunes, and is not considered agricultural soil or a

timber producing area. Therefore, the Project is not expected to impact agricultural and forestry resources
and this resource category will not be included in the EIR.

3.3  Air Quality

The Project Area is located within the North Coast Air Basin (NCAB), which is under the jurisdiction of the
North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District (NCUAQMD). The NCAB is currently in attainment (or
is unclassified) for all state and federal ambient air quality standards, with the exception of the state
standard for particulate matter less than ten micrometers in diameter (PM10). The EIR will discuss
temporary air quality impacts from Project implementation and ongoing operation of the Project (e.g.,
equipment and vehicle exhaust emissions). For the purpose of this EIR and permitting, the Project's
operational period is assumed to be fifty years. The EIR will also discuss the Project’s conformity with
applicable air quality plans and exposure of sensitive receptors to criteria air pollutants and odors.
Mitigation measures for significant impacts will be included where applicable and feasible.

GHD | Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notics of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report 6



SECTION_ 76 PAGENO, / 2.

3.4 Biological Resources

The Project Area includes wetlands, coastal dunes, herbaceous and forested vegetated dunes, and
uplands that support a diverse array of aquatic and terrestrial biological resources. The EIR will utilize a
number of special studies in the preparation of this section, including a site-specific wetland delineation,
rare plant assessment and surveys, among others. The EIR will analyze potential impacts to special status
wildlife and plant species, riparian habitat, Sensitive Natural Communities, upland Environmentally
Sensitive Habitat Areas, wetlands, migratory corridors, and potential conflicts with policies or ordinances
protecting biological resources and the EIR will include feasible mitigation measures given significant
impacts are anticipated. It is anticipated that off-site mitigation will be completed to account for unavoidable
impacts to bioclogical resources. The EIR will also include an inventory of the biological resources within the
proposed mitigation sites.

3.5 Cultural Resources

A Cultural Resources Investigation will be prepared to inventory cultural resources in the Project Area, and
to assess potential impacts on these resources from Project activities. Potential impacts could include the
destruction of known or unknown cultural resources. The EIR will include the results from this investigation
and identify mitigation measures if potentially significant impacts could occur. An inventory of the cultural
resource value of the biological resource mitigation area will be included in the EIR.

3.6 Energy Resources

The majority of California's energy-related plans are not directly applicable to the Project or its ongoing
operations; however, the Project complies with the plan requirements that apply. Ongoing maintenance
operations of the Project will involve a variety of earthwork and construction practices, involving the use of
heavy equipment. This equipment will require the use of fuels, primarily gas, diesel, and motor oil. The EIR
will include and discuss the results of CalEEMod estimations and quantifications related to energy use
throughout the Project construction and operation period.

3.7 Geology and Soils

Geologic and soils issues include potential erosion, loss of topsoil, and sedimentation during and after
Project actions due to proposed vegetation removal, as well as changes in sand movement associated with
removal of vegetation from the coastal dunes, grading, and infrastructure replacement. The EIR will
describe the site’s existing geologic conditions and soils based on existing information and technical reports
prepared for the Project. The EIR will include an analysis of the geology of the site as it relates to slope
stability, earthquake hazards, landslides, and other potential geologic hazards, and recommend appropriate
mitigation measures if potentially significant impacts are identified.

3.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The EIR will evaluate the potential impact of the Project on greenhouse gas emissions. Potential GHG
emissions resulting from the Project will be estimated and quantified using CalEEMod emissions modeling
software, assuming ongoing maintenance actions over 50 years. The NCUAQMD has not adopted a
threshold for construction-related GHG emissions against which to evaluate significance and has not
established construction-generated criteria air pollutant screening levels above which quantitative air quality
emissions would be required; however, this potential impact will be further discussed in the EIR.

GHD | Humbaldt Pay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report 7



SECTION cfb PAGE NO. 1.3

3.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

The EIR will discuss potential hazards in the Project Area, identify appropriate spill prevention measures,
identify potential impacts to construction workers and recreation users due to potential soil contamination
and other potential hazards at the site. Phase | and Il Environmental Site Assessments were not completed
for the Project and are not assumed to be needed; however, a records search of the California Department
of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) Cortese List, and of the State Water Resources Contro! Board's
Geotracker database will be conducted. This information will be used in the analysis and appropriate
mitigation measures incorporated if potentially significant impacts are identified.

3.10 Hydrology and Water Quality

The Project is not located immediately adjacent to any receiving waterways, There is typically
approximately 500 feet between the ROW and the ocean, and therefore potential impacts to water quality
from maintenance activity related runoff, such as sedimentation or contamination, are not anticipated. The
EIR will discuss Project actions that could result in water quality degradation or violation of water quality

standards. Appropriate mitigation measures will be incorporated if potentially significant impacts are
identified.

3.11 Land Use and Planning

The Project is within the Appeal jurisdiction of the Coastal Zone and will require a Coastal Development
Permit from Humboldt County per the California Coastal Act. The EIR will describe existing land uses in the
Project Area, assess Project impacts and identify any potential land use conflicts.

3.12 Mineral Resources

There are no existing mining operations in the Project Area. The Project Area is primarily comprised of sand
and contains no known mineral resources available for extraction. There are no Surface Mining and
Reclamation Act-designated parcels located within the Project Area. Although Humboldt County has not yet
been included in the California Mineral Land Classification System by the State Mining and Geology Board
to designate lands containing mineral deposits of regional or statewide significance, it seems evident that
the Project Area would not rise to the level of significance for mineral resource extraction. Therefore, the

Project is not anticipated to result in a loss of mineral resources and this resource category will not be
included in the EIR.

3.13 Noise

Noise levels will increase during Project activities which will occur periodically over the course of the Project
operational period (50 years). The EIR will describe the existing noise levels in the Project Area and identify
noise sensitive receptors in the Project vicinity, which are considered (but not limited to) schools,
residences, libraries, hospitals, and other care facilities. Potential impacts of noise on wildlife wil} be
discussed in the Biological Resources section. The only sources of noise deviations will occur during
implementation of specified Project components, i.e. installation of the 15 pipe, because general
maintenance activities have been historically carried out. However, all Project related noise levels will be
compared to existing noise levels and applicable noise standards to determine if the Project will cause a
significant increase in ambient noise levels. Appropriate mitigation measures will be incorporated if
significant impacts are identified.

GHE | Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report 8



SECTION_9&  masewo, |/ i

3.14 Population and Housing

The proposed Project will not add any new homes or businesses, nor extend any roads or other
infrastructure within the Project Area. The Project will not cause any displacement of housing or people, on
or adjacent to the site. However, the proposed 15-inch pipeline replacement component of the Project
includes installation of a 24-inch domestic water pipe. Therefore this increased diameter pipeline has
greater capacity to provide increased volume of water, which could facilitate future expanded industry,
population or housing. The entire Project, including the 15-inch pipe replacement component, will be
discussed in the EIR through the lens of potential population and housing growth and mitigation measures
will be incorporated if appropriate.

3.15 Public Services

It is unlikely that the Project will directly increase population, therefore, it is not anticipated that the Project
will increase the need for public services. However, as described above, the Project has the potential to
support future population increase, and therefore need for public services will be discussed in the EIR.

3.16 Recreation

The Project may temporarily obstruct points of access to the beach during maintenance actions. However,
alternate access will be provided. The Project is not anticipated to place additional demands on recreational
facilities or require recreational facility construction or expansion. Appropriate mitigation measures will be
incorporated if potentially significant impacts are identified.

3.17 Transportation

The Project may result in increased traffic during maintenance actions, which may temporarily decrease the
overall performance and safety of local roadways. The EIR will discuss existing and proposed Project traffic

volumes in relation to the Project Area and recommend mitigation measures if significant impacts are
identified. :

3.18 Tribal Cultural Resources

Tribal cultural resources are sites, features, places, cultural fandscapes, sacred places, and objects with
cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or determined to be eligible for
inclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources; or included in a local register of historical
resources as defined in subdivision (k) of Section 5020.1; or a resource determined by the lead agency, in
its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in
subdivision (c) of Section 5024.1. The Project may potentially encounter known or as-of-yet unknown
archaeological materials during Project-related activities. If such resources were to represent as “tribal
cultural resources” as defined by CEQA, any substantial change to or destruction of such resources would
be a significant impact. The EIR will analyze tribal cultural resources per Public Resources Code Section
21080.3.1, and include mitigation measures, if applicable, per Public Resources Code Section 21080.3.2.

3.19 Utilities and Service Systems

The Project is a utilities project designed to create dependable access for routine inspection, operation,
maintenance, modification, and replacement of HEMWD infrastructure {pipelines, valves, etc.) along the

GHD | Humbcldt Bay Municipal Water Districl | 12603983 i Natice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report 9



scTion 70 PAGE NO

District's ROW. The Project does not include the construction of new facilities (residential, commercial, or
industrial) that will place additional long-term demands on public water systems, wastewater systems, or
landfills. The proposed 15-inch pipe replacement component will result in an increased capacity of water
supply (via the larger diameter pipeline) available to water users, replacement of aging infrastructure and a
more uniform diameter water pipeline throughout the Samoa Peninsula. No new connections to the 15-inch
pipe replacement component are proposed, rather existing connections would be replaced during this
Project component. Landfills may be used for disposal of HBMWD infrastructure removed from the Project
Area. The EIR will analyze potential impacts related to utilities and service systems, and feasible mitigation
measures will be incorporated if significant impacts are identified.

3.20 Wildfire

According to mapping from CAL FIRE, the Project is in the Local Responsibility Area, adjacent to zones
designated as having a high, moderate or unzoned fire hazard severity. The vegetated portions of the
Project Area could be susceptible to wildfire during Project activities due to accidental ignition. The Project
will not block emergency access during implementation of Project activities. The EIR will analyze potential
impacts related to wildfire, emergency operation plans, and other elements that might exacerbate fire risks.
Mitigation measures will be incorporated if significant impacts are identified.

GHD | Humboidt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Praparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report

S

L—————en

10



Appendices

sssss oN. 7o PAGEND,



secTioN_T& PAGE NO. /7

Appendix A

Figures

Figure 1: Project Vicinity
Figure 2-1: Project Area

Figure 2-2: 15-inch Pipe Replacement Project Component

Figure 2-3: Project Components in Phase 3

GHD | Humbeldt Bay Municipal Water District | 12603983 | Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report 12



Rucificf@cean

Paper Size ANSI A

0 1 2
== L)
Miles

Map Projection: Mercalor Auxiliary Sphere
Horizontal Datum: WGS 1984
Grid: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Fortuna by
e Yd5# ;

|E=3 Project Area
— Highways
(—— HBMWD Water Main Alignments

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Samoa Peninsula Waterline
Right-of-Way Maintenance Project

Project No. 12603983
Revision No. -
Date Sep 2023

=

Project Vicinity FIGURE 1

jectsiSa 11126039631GI5I

12603963
12603983_002_FIG1_Vicinty_RevD Print date: 29 Sep 2023 - 08:41

-

Deta source: World Imagery (Clanty). This work is Icansed under the Esn Master Liense Agreemant View Summary | View Terms of UseExport. This layer is nol imanded to be used 1o axport tiles for
affine. Data Callzction and Edting: This layer may be used in varous ArcGIS 2pps to suppert data collection end editing, with the results used internally or shared with others, 85 descrbed for these use cases.,
World Topogrephic Map - labellass: Caiformia Stata Parks, Esn, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph. FAO, METUNASA, USGS, Bureau of Land Managsmant, EPA. NPS: Warld Hillshade: Esi, CGIAR, USGS. Created

by jlopazd




Legend
Phase 1 (Surveyed 2022)
1 Phase 2 (Surveyed 2023)

Phase 3 (To be surveyed in 2024)
—— HBMWD Water Main Alignments
—— Highways
—— Roads

Paper Size ANSI A
0 1,000 2000 3,000 4,000
Feat
Map Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic

Horizontal Datum: North American 1983
Grid: NAD 1983 StatePlane California | FIPS 0401 Feat

\‘qhdnengm\uﬁweu‘?my:ﬁﬁﬁmmmmmhlmﬂiﬁl!&_ﬁqedﬂmmqm( 12503333_002_Fig2 ProjectArea_RevE
Printdate: 29 Sep 2023 - 08 43

 secTion_ 76

PAGE NO.

|58

e 3 v
i e
L -l

1
!

,
=

J_ [g‘" éml
saaneital L

i

Project No. 12603983
RevisionNo. C
Date Sep 2023

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Samoa Peninsula Waterline

Right-of-Way Maintenance Project

Project Area FIGURE 21

Data source: Warld Imagery (Clarity). ﬂmwishmwﬂym&mmﬂqumm&mmlmnmsdumﬂﬂw
is not intanded to be used o export tles for offine Data Collection and Editing. mmmummmmmwumpﬂmmw
and editing, with the results used intermaliy or shared with others, a5 descrbed for these use cases. Created by jlopezd




Legend
Phase 1 (Surveyed 2022)
[ Phase 2 (Surveyed 2023)

Phase 3 (To be surveyed in 2024)
—— HBMWD Water Main Alignments
— Highways
—— Roads

Paper Size ANSIA
0 1,000 2,000
[co —
Feet

Map Projection: Lambert Canformal Canic
Horizontal Datum: North American 1983
Grid: NAD 1983 StatePlane California | FIPS 0401 Feet

WghdnetighdiS|EurekalProjectsi5 11 2503983115 Maps Delverables\| 2603883 _ProjeciDesarplion aprs 12503383 005 FigZ-2_Propetires Revh
Prnt date: 23 Sep 2073 - 0852

~ 115" Pipeline Start|{

Humboldt Municipal Water District
Samoa Peninsula Waterline

Right-of-Way Maintenance Project

Project No. 12603983
RevisionNo. C

Date Sep 2023

15-inch Pipe
Replacement Project Component FIGURE 2-2

Data source. Workd Imagery (Carty) Thes work i icensed under the Esn Moster License Agresment View Summary | View Tems of UsaExport. This iayer
is not intended 1o be nsad to export tes for offine. Data Codection and Emﬂﬁmmyumﬂhmmﬂssmhmmwm
and editing, with the results used internally or shared with offers, as described for these use cases. Created by jlopezd




Phase 3 (To be surveyed in 2024)
Humboldt County Roads ROW

= HBMWD Water Main Alignments

Data Disclaimer

Humboldt County Roads Right of Way (ROW) determined by |
GIS data of approximate parcel boundaries

Paper Sizs ANSI A

0 1,000
L |

Feet
Map Projection: Lambert Canformal Canic

Horizontal Datum: North American 1983
Grid: NAD 1983 StatePlane California | FIPS 0401 Fest

UighdnefighdiUSiEurekalProjects'56 1125019871615 Meps\civerablest 2503983 ProjeciDesaription cors 12503983 004 Fig2 3_Propetires AevD
Prnt date: 29 Sep 2073 - 049

~

: Electrical Line Installation ~

Humboldt Ba; Municipal Water District Project No. 12603983
Samoa Peninsula Waterline Revision No. C
Right-of-Way Maintenance Project Date Sep 2023

Project Components
in Phase 3 FIGURE 2-3

Data source: World Imagery (Clarty): msm;mmm&mmmmms"mmwmrmumﬁmmm
is notintanded tobe used to export tles for offine. mmwmmmmnemuummmmpsmswmm
muulmnjﬁﬂ!mhmdhuﬂﬁl;ws&amﬂrdﬁas.asmdfwmnmm Created by jlopezd




secTioN 70 PAGENO.. 22

—> The Power of Commitment




ENGINEERING




SECTION [().| & PAGENO. |

123uIBUT 'SU2A2IS UBLIEN JO UBAIINS %OlEd DU} OHD

£202/0E/0L

1aBeuep |pIaUaD) 'yaequapalld uyor

‘panc.ddy

NP L

sIq J21eM [edioiunyy Aeg 1pjoguny

‘panosddy’

1aBeuep 1aloid ‘|28 sawep uasuajsuyD aude]

00°'502'801S pouad siyy ang
ZP'L86'6K0T S padloaul Alsnomald E€20Z/0E/0} PENIWANS Alnpoadsay
Zv'98l 851 c8 aegOlanQIeN  ZvLBE'BPOZ § 00c0z'80L  § &“\\\ %
{92885 ELLS) (yg)afieuriay (92 £68°20L8) (%g) Buery  |loD'cea'ss) (%45) abeuRiay
BLGLLLIZE 3 | [BLsi8zs1z 5 ] [ooooEErr s BL'SZI'S05'Z E] 1509 103royd Wwiol]
I I [
BL'SZL'0p 5 sLszi'or  § 2 $ 8L5zL'0F HHOM HIAHO IONVHI TV.LOL
8L GZL Y 3 T BLSZIOF 5 L - 3 BLSELOY § “ BLGZh0F & “ Bl “ F [835 01 0 smg SEaTved]| €
SHITHO FONYHDI siaplg afiueys| # 0D
00°000°rS H 0000022 § 000002 § MHOM JAILIAAY V101
00°'000'ZE $ L 00000 ZE [ I 00°000 ZE 9] Eil 13ppeT 2215 SSAURS (lElstl| gy
0000067 H Ell 3PPET] [39)5 SS|UBIS 8pinold| -y
0000024 § v3 #3153 1US 1310 I8 BUli00|d Joddns Tjejsuiey § erolay| oy
000008 g V3 1EJ3JET BN 01 dnjes DubREr BUIN 1| G-y
00000k 5 EE] S3AIEA S1ED [F8IS SSAIUEIS ,ZF (L] [1E3501 8 USILnd | p-y
00059L 5 El S[EI81ET | d013A3Q B [IeisUl UsILng| gy
0000025 H LE] SHOd |0 UOHE[ESUl| z-y
00000°ZE E %08 00000 ce s %0S - 5 00°000 bt ¢ il Buidid auiwojaA paiiddns jo Aquesses|g § Nqwassy| |-y
JAlLiaay aig B|NpPayas pig ANPPY|
00°059'2LL'Z $ 00°05.'660'2  § 00006'8 __ § 00°000'59%'Z $ 2% | 3SVHd Tv.lol
00°005'6¥Z' | 5 € 3SV¥Hd V101
- 5 0 = 5 ‘ $ 00'000°80F $Joooo0BOL S s1 ! S158 | a3UBWIOpad [BUld B B[] 6
00000°9. 5 3 000009L & L - 5 00'000°94 $ | 0000092 H S1 L SSAIEA SIED [331S SSAUIBIS 2} (L) IIEJSU] § Usilin ]
00005 6.E B 0EZ 0000S6LE & 0EZ - 3 0000056k 5 | 00'058'E B Eql 00E S[eJa1eT ,Z1 doj@aaq g JIelsul ysiuin|
00°000°00 1 s (4 00°000'00L 3 4 = B 0000000k % | 00°000°0S H v3 Z |EJ3|E7 Kan o} dnjas Bupoer Bl |
00°'000°sF 5 L 00000SF & L = S 00000GF 3 [ D0°000'SK 5 Ell 3 Gupjoer 213187 J0] UMOPaYE L § dmiag
0000009 5 2 0000008 § z - 5 0000009 § | 00'000'DE 5 EE] z SHOd JO Uoef[eisuy]
00000'vL S L 00000, 5 ] e 5 00'000'¢#L % | 00000L ] Bl L uossie] Uiy Buidid g sduing Buuaiemaq|
00058 €9 B %08 000S8'E9 AETE = B 00004221 $[0000£22L 8 S1 B
00'008°E91 § %00+ 00006k §| %05 00006k & %08 00008 £8E $]00008€E9L  § ST L UGHIEZ|GoWa § UOREANIGOW,
way| - Z ISYHd
00'005'GLE'L s L 3SYHd 101
00000'B0L B L 0000080+ S [ - 3 00 00080L 5 [o0000BOL & L S50 @ouewiojad [BUIS F ERUI| 61
00000 €6 B ] 00000'26 B 1 = B 0000026 $ | 0000026 H L SIAIEA B1BD [88lS SSAUEIS LI (2] 1129501 5 Usilnd| -1
00'000'56% 5 00E 00000'S6F & 00g 2 E] 00°000'S6F $ | 00059'L £ ] sieiaje Z| dejeaaq 3 (|B1sUl usuing|  Z-1
0000005 ] 1 0000008 B L - 5 00'000°08 $ | 0000005 § 1 [2121E7 WEN 01 dnjes Busoer Buwn | g-1
00°000°Sy T L 000006k & 1 = 5 000005k § [ oo'ooa’sy 5 L Bupoer |eisje’ 1o) Umopaye L dnjag| &L
0000008 5 z 0000009 T z 2 H 0000009 $ | 00°'000°0E B v3 T S04 Jo Uoiiefiejsul| -l
00°000'7L 3 L 00'000°FL [3 L = $ 00'000'FL $ [ ocoooo'vs 5 S1 1 UOSSIED UM Buidig ¥ sdwing bulasiemag| g-1
00004421 g L 00°004'22L 8 L - & 00°004' 421 § | DoooL'izh 5 S1 3 Puog uaie|jediad| z-|
00008 ESL 5 %00k 00008'€9L  § | %00k = 5 00'008'E9L $ | 0000BESL & S L uoiezligawsq g uoleiqon| L1
IvioL Anuenp ANNOWY Auenp LINNOWY Apuenp  fanjea joenuoy 391id 3un un Apuenp way| - | ISVH| # way
] 3 a Bl ] v
Q3L31dW0oD TVLOL SQ0IY3d SNOIATYd QoRI3d SIHL LOVHLINOD WNIDINO uopduasag
GBI
££L1-59006 ¥D 'sejabuy so7 £9z9-888 (p19) :auoyg
*1Q 12)Ua) BIPAW BOLZ GZZEY OIYO ‘sNquinjod
609ERL# X0qx20T] ‘PH AapunH ogee
:01 99|Ape Juawufed |jew3 Auedwog uasusisuyn sufe] 0o (x3apad ‘sdn “alnes) “ou) ‘Auedwoy uasualsizyg auke
6029.216Z1 "ON 132y 821A185 X0q){007 EJLIaWY JO Hueg :ssa1ppy Buiddjys ‘wory
Auedwog uasuaysuyo auke awey 190y
£65600920 vaY 811M a34 560020556 VD ‘BYain3
BS€000LZL Yav HOY 609€-¢2006 VO ‘sejebuy soq (I1ew 3o1A13s |B3sOd 56 X08 0d
W'N ‘BOlIOWY Jo yueg 609EFL X08 '0'd 's'n senbay) 1211510 Jaiem lediziuny Aeg 1ploquing
Auedwoy uasuaisuyg aufe :ssaippy Buiew 101 IDIOANI

HUED SSIHIY

£20Z 'v2 1900100 0} £207 '0€ Jeqwadas :pouad ylop 104
L #1S3N0D3Y LINIWAV

£20Z '0¢ 12qojo0
PETLLZ | # qor sufe
13lo.d uoKEI|IGRYSY Z 10)23)|07 - JOLISIC Ja3eM [edioiuny Aeg Jploquiny




SECTIONp.|.O PAGENO,_ .

contessa@hbmwd.com
_
From: Larson, Monty@Wildlife <Monty.Larson@uwildlife.ca.gov>
Sent: Friday, October 13, 2023 8:51 AM
To: John Friedenbach
Cc Dale Davidsen; Nathan Stevens; Sanville, Cheri@Wildlife; Fraley, John@Wildlife
Subject: RE: HBMWD Collector 2 Laterals Project - LTSAA Activity G Extension request
John,

The extension is acceptable. Continue to monitor the forecast there is a typhoon getting pulled into the jet
stream on the other side of the ocean that could impact river levels. Seems unlikely right now but something to monitor.
All equipment shall be removed from the River bar prior to sunset October 31. You may request an additionat work

period extension up to October 30 if the work is not complete and the forecast remains such that the crane would not
be in the wetted channel of the river. If you have any questions send an email or call.

Monty Larson

Water Rights Coordinator, Region 1, Coastal
619 Second Street

Eureka, CA 95501

707-496-2292

monty.larson@wildlife.ca.gov

Value flowing rivers, Value Sciencel




SECTION |0.]. o PAGE NO._>
John Friedenbach

_
From: John Friedenbach <friedenbach@hbmwd.com>
Sent: Friday, October 13, 2023 8:02 AM
To: ‘Larson, Monty@Wwildlife'
Ce: Dale Davidsen (supt@hbmwd.com); Nathan Stevens
Subject: HBMWD Collector 2 Laterals Project - LTSAA Activity G Extension request
Attachments: Precipitation Outlook.pdf
Importance: High
Hi Monty,

This emall Is regarding the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District's October 15 deadline for river bar access. Since we
are quickly approaching that date, | am hoping to receive a response from you.

As you are aware, HBMWD is currently under contract with a contractor for installing new laterals on Collector 2, which
requires a crane on the river bar accessing the collector for the work. The work is substantially complete, but there are
some tasks that remain before the collector is back to being operational and the river bar can be completely vacated. The
work is being performed under Activity G in the LTSAA described on page 8 of 20, and snipped below:

G. Gaining access to and maintaining Ranney collectors, which may Involve building

temporary gravel structures in the bed of the Mad River to access the collectors.
Periodic, As-Needed, Maintenance Activities
Page 16 of 20 of the LTSAA notes the following regarding schedule for this activity:

D.  Routine Maintenance Activity G and Periodic Maintenance Activity H shall be
confined fo the period July 1 through October 15 of each year.

We are requesting to extend the October 15 deadline through to October 31 of this year, based on current and projected
river lavels and weather forecast through the end of October. If the extension was not granted, the District would be
unable to get the collector operational untit next summer, maaning we would be going into the winter without the use of
one of our four collectors, which becomes very critical when turbidity levels rise due to winter storms.

Note that there is no excavation, fill, or moving of gravel occurring as a part of this work, and that we are completely out of
the river channel. | have attached a weather forecast from the National Weather Service that shows the general weather
pattern for the next 7 days includes lingering rainfall today, with a short stretch of drier conditions for the rest of the
work week before the next chance rain arrives for the weekend through early next week. The 6 day rainfall forecast (see
attached graphic) suggests around 0.25 to 1.5 inches possible in the Mad River Basin and 10 day (Oct 10-19) rainfall
forecasts suggest that the Mad River Basin could observe 1 to 2 inches of rainfall. Overall minor impacts are expected
with this next rain with the Mad River having a 33% chance of rising by 1 foot. There is a 10 Day River Level Probabilities
graphic attached. This shows the spread of possible river levels over the next 10 days.

Then beyond that, it doesh't look like there are very good chances for an atmospheric river to impact northern California
from approximately oct 19 through oct 26. it could still be wet but not necessarily due to an atmospheric river. The
longer range precipitation graphic shows near normal chances for rain for northern California from Oct 17 through 23.

Inciuded in the attached is the current river elevation and a prediction of what it will get to. We estimate that the river

would need to come up approximately 4 feet before it would impact the ongoing work and do not see this as an issue
hetween now and the end of the month,

Please let me know if you have any questions or comments. Otherwise, | look forward to hearing your response.

1




SECTIONIO.I. <. | PABENO._/

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 Seventh Street » Eureka, California 95501-1114
PO Box 95 » Eureka, California 95502-0095

Office 707-443-5018 Essex 707-822-2018

Fax 707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL OFFICE@)HBMWD.COM

Wabsite: www.hbmwd,.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NEAL LATT, PRESIDENT

MICHELLE FULLER, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER

DAVID LINDBERG, ASSISTANT SECRETARY-TREASURER
SHERIWOO, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER November 9, 2023
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services
Hazard Mitigation Grants Program Unit

3650 Schriever Avenue
Mather, CA 95655

RE: HEMWD DR4407-0701 Project Revised Match Commitment Letter
Collector Mainline Redundancy Pipeline

Dear State Hazard Mitigation Officer,

As part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program process, a local funding match is required.
This letter serves as Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District's commitment to meet the
matching fund requirements for the HBMWD Collector Mainline Redundancy Project under
the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program and revised Scope of Work.

Name of funding source: Municipal customer rate payers.

Funding type: Wholesale water rates.

The local matching fund requirement is $1,688,000 ($763,500 + $924,500) and is available
as of November 9, 2023.

Please contact Chris Harris, Business Manager, by phone at (707} 443-5018 or email at
harris@hbmwd.com if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

John Friedenbach
General Manager




0. 1,41\ PAGE NO._|
DocuSign Envelope I1D: BDEF222D-5C40-47DC-AB89-32F65CB3DCOE SECTION i) s —

GAVIN NEWSOM NANCY WARD

GOVERNCR Cal OES DIRECTOR
onvénuaws DEFICE
OF EMERGENCY SERVICES
10/12/2023

John Friedenbach

Generdl Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95

Eureka, CA 95502-0095

Subject: Phase 1 Time Extension Approval #2 (Internal)
FEMA-4407-DR-CA, November 2018 California Wildfires
Cal OES PJ-0701, FEMA 99, HBMWD Collector Mainline Redundancy
Project

Subrecipient: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, FIPS: 023-91000

Dear John Friedenbach:

The California Governor's Office of Emergency Services {Cal OES) approves a
time extension from December 4, 2023 to December 4, 2024 for completion of

the project referenced above. Cal OES reviewed the project history and
determined the time extension is warranted.

The approved budget and scope of work remain unchanged for this project. A

fime extension is approved, and all work must be completed by the new POP
end date.

All Phase 1 work defined in the approved scope of work must be completed not
less than 45 days prior to the approved Phase 1 period of performance. Al
reimbursement claims and Phase 1 deliverables must be submitted to the
CalOES Hazard Mitigation Grants Division (HMGD) no later than 30 days prior to
the approved Phase 1 period of performance.

Approved Phase period of performance [POP}: 12/4/24
Completion of Phase 1 Scope of Work: 10/20/24

Phase 1 deliverables and reimbursement claims due to CalOES-HMGD:
11/4/24

3650 SCHRIEVER AVENUE ® MATHER, CA 95655
RECOVERY SECTION * HAZARD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE BRANCH
PHONE: {216} 328-7450 » EMAIL: HMA@CALOES,CA.GOV
www . CalOES.ca.gov




DocuSign Envelope 1D: BDEF222D-5GA40-47DC-AB69-32F65CB3DCOE SECTIONLO—("EJL‘-L PAGE No'—Q—

John Friedenbach
101272023

Page 2

If you have any questions, please contact Christine Lacey, Regional Manager,
at 916-926-9869 or Christine Lacey@CalOES.ca.gov.

Sincerely,
DocuSigned by:
FASFF180CC19445...

RON MILLER

Acting State Hozard Mitigation Officer

cc: Robert McCord, Hazard Mitigation Branch Chief, FEMA Region IX
Stephanie Stephens, Sr., Grants Management Specialist, FEMA Region IX




SECTION|QL.€.| PAGENO.__|

October 27, 2023 Reference No. 11218859

Mr. John Friedenbach

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
P.O. Box 95

Eureka, CA 95502

Re: Scope of Services for Phase 2 of the Reservoirs Seismic Retrofit Project (3 Tanks)
Dear John,

The Reservoirs Seismic Retrofit Project encompasses the retrofit of the 1 million-gallon (MG) tank and the
2 MG tank at the Korblex site as one bid package and the retrofit of the 1 MG tank on the Samoa
Peninsula as a second bid package. The overall project was envisioned to be completed in two phases
beginning with the preliminary design and environmental field analysis work completed under Phase 1 and
the final design, final permitting, and construction and associated support to be completed under Phase 2.

GHD completed the Phase 1 portion of the project in July 2021, which included the following final
deliverables:

60% Design Plans for the Korblex Site
60% Specifications for the Korblex Site
60% Opinion of Cost for the Korblex Site
60% Design Plans for the Samoa Site
60% Specifications for the Samoa Site
60% Opinion of Cost for the Samoa Site
Geotechnical Investigation

Basis of Design Report

Wetlands Delineation Report

Biological Evaluation Report

Sensitive Plant Community Mapping Report
Sensitive Plant Survey Report

Cultural Investigation Report

EDR Review Memorandum

Lead and Asbestos Report

The Scope of Services for Phase 2 of this project is intended to facilitate the completion of one bid
package for the Korblex site and one package for the Samoa site. Phase 2 work also encompasses the
completion of the environmental permitting process. This scope also includes bid period support services.
GHD understands the District will retain a separate firm to provide construction inspection and
management services. As the engineer of record for the design of the retrofits, it is necessary for GHD to
provide Engineering Services During Construction (ESDC) to address key design related issues during

GHD - REGISTERED SOMPANT FOX

718 Third Street Eureka California 95501 USA iSO 9_001
T707 443 8326 F 707 444 8330 W www.ghd.com SRS SRINSIDECISN




SECTION|0..e.{ PAGENO. 2L

construction, and these services will also be covered under this scope and budget.

Scope of Services

The following tasks define our scope of work.

Task 1 — Project Management

This task consists of the overall project management and close coordination with the District, funding
agencies, and permitting agencies. Project management includes internal project team member
coordination. For the Phase 2 work, GHD does not envision the need for sub-consultants.

1.1 Attend and document design meetings

GHD will organize and facilitate project meetings with the District, and other stakeholders as needed.
GHD will attend and report on the Project as necessary at the District Board meetings and will facilitate
additional meetings as necessary with permitting agencies, and other stakeholders. For the purposes of
this scope, it is assumed that GHD will attend and facilitate up to three (3) meetings with the District staff
and stakeholders. GHD will prepare agendas for the meetings, document minutes, and distribute minutes
after the meetings. It is anticipated that one of the planned meetings will be a Phase 2 kickoff meeting to
review the current status of the design and permitting process and the plans to complete the work.

1.2 Correspondence

GHD will prepare correspondence with District staff, their Board, FEMA staff, the permitting agencies, and
other stakeholders as needed. Draft copies of the correspondence will be submitted to the District for

review, and copies of all final documents will also be submitted to the District with copies maintained at
GHD.

1.3 Maintain project files

GHD will provide the District with electronic copies of key documents during the project and will retain
additional internal design information for long term reference for the District.

1.4 Manage and direct overall design and environmental teams

GHD will coordinate, manage, and direct the design and environmental teams throughout the Phase 2
work as necessary for the completion of the design and environmental work associated with this project.

Task 1 Deliverables:

» Meeting agendas

» Meeting minutes



SECTION 0.l { PAGEND,

Task 2 — Quality Confrol and Quality Assurance of all Work Products

Quality Assurance (QA) is the plan for development of work products meeting the required quality
standards, and Quality Control (QC) is the process of checking the work products to verify that they meet
appropriate standards. GHD's process is based on 1SO 9000. GHD will build QA into the overall plan and
approach to the work and will schedule QC checks into the process so that all deliverables are
appropriately reviewed prior to delivery. GHD's process includes planned Quality Control checks and
standard review forms that are completed by the reviewer and project manager and are included in the
permanent files for the District.

Task 3 — Grant Administration Assistance

GHD will coordinate with staff at FEMA and CalOES as well as with District Staff for administration of the
Hazard Mitigation Grant, and is available to participate in other meetings, conference calls, and
coordination to help facilitate the continued smooth execution of the grant.

GHD will provide support as requested from the District for the completion of the quarterly progress
reports required under the grant, but it is anticipated that the District will lead the effort for completion and
submission of the quarterly reports. GHD will compile the necessary documentation to meet grant
closeout requirements.

Task 3 Deliverables:

» Support for preparation of quarterly status reports.

» Grant closeout documentation.

Task 4 — Final Engineering Design
5.1 Prepare final design packages for the Korblex site and the Samoa Site

Based on the basis of design and the 60% engineering plans, specifications and estimate prepared under
a previous scope of services, GHD will develop 90% design plans, specifications, and an update of the
opinion of probable cost. This will be delivered to the District in electronic format, and a review workshop
meeting will be held via Microsoft Teams. GHD will prepare the final 100% bid ready plans and
specifications based on comments received from the District. No further refinement of the costs will be
completed at 100%.

The development of the 90% and 100% submittals will be based on a review and refinement of the work
already completed. The tanks at the Korblex site have cathodic protection, but the Samoa 1 MG tank
appears to only have remnants of a cathodic protection system, which does not appear to be functional.

Therefore, the final engineering design will include the design of a cathodic protection system for the
Samoa 1 MG tank.

Task 4 Deliverables:

N

» 90% Design plans, specifications, and opinion of cost

» 100% Final bid ready plans and specifications



SECTION|0.2.| pAGE No, 4

1 o

Task & — Final Environmental Permitting
5.1 CEQA Notice of Exemption

GHD will complete a CEQA Notice of Exemption (NOE) for the tanks Project. It is anticipated the
categorical exemption (CE) for Existing Structures (15301) and CE for New Construction or Conversion of
Small structures (15303) will be applicable to the Project. Other CEs will also be reviewed to determine if
they apply based on the final project characteristics. The Draft NOE will be provided to the District for
review and comment. The Final NOE will be prepared based on comments from the District and will be
provided to the District. GHD will assist District staff with presentation of the Final CEQA NOE to the
Board of Directors for adoption.

Task 5.1 Deliverables:

» Draft CEQA NOE
» Final CEQA NOE

5.2 County of Humboldt Coastal Development Permit

GHD will gather and review relevant background information related to the Project for inclusion in the
Coastal Development Permit (CDP) application. This includes the CEQA NOE and special studies
completed for Phase | of the project. In addition, The Humboldt Bay Area Plan-LCP will be reviewed to
determine if the Project is consistent with the LCP.

The Project will be reviewed and discussed during a single meeting or phone call with a staff member
from the County of Humboldt. The purpose of the meeting will be to facilitate permit processing with the
County by coordinating early on reviewing the project description and anticipated potential impacts to
coastal resources, approval requirements, and processing timeframes.

GHD will incorporate suggestions from the County and prepare the CDP application and submit it to the
District for review and comment. GHD will then prepare a final CDP application that incorporates
comments from the District review. The CDP application will then be submitted to the County. GHD
assumes one round of comments from the District, and one follow up meeting with the County after the
permit application is submitted. GHD also assumes the District will pay all permit fees.

Task 5.2 Deliverables:

» Draft Coastal Development Permit Application

-

» Final Coastal Development Permit Application



SECTION 0. |PAGENO, O

Task 6 — Bid Period Services
6.1 Assistance During the Bidding Period

GHD understands that the District will engage a third-party firm (hereinafter referred to as the
“construction inspector and manager” or “construction manager”) to provide construction inspection and
management services, including any special inspections required for structural work, as well as coating
inspections. As such, GHD will provide only limited assistance during the bidding process as an extension
of the design related services GHD completed as the Engineer of Record on the project.

GHD's bid period assistance will be limited to creating the Advertisement for Bids that the District will
advertise in the local paper, attending the pre-bid conference, answering technical written questions
received during the bid period via addenda, attending the bid opening, review of bids, and preparation of
the recommendation for award. It is assumed that the District will have the selected construction inspector
and manager under contract during the bidding process. They will be the primary point of contact for
bidders and will conduct the pre-bid meeting and address non-technical questions during the bidding
process.

Task 6.1 Deliverables:

» Advertisement for bid
» Addenda addressing technical questions and clarifications during bidding

» Recommendation for award memo

Task 7 — Engineering Services during Consftruction

Due to grant eligibility purposes, GHD is precluded from performing the full range of construction
management services that are required for this project. However, as the Engineer of Record on the
project, it is essential that GHD provide the following services during construction:

e Participating in the preconstruction meeting.

e Reviewing submittals, RFls, change orders, and being consulted on any issues regarding
answering design questions or modifying the design.

o This includes addressing changes that come up during construction that require design
interpretation or changes, including issues such as differing site conditions.

+ Performing periodic site inspections to address potential changes and to confirm that construction
is meeting the intent of the design.

e Reviewing contractor markups and preparing project record drawings

GHD's services under this task will not be grant reimbursable. The construction manager and inspector
will be selected by the District will perform construction inspection and management/administration, which
will include performing daily inspections, providing daily reports, coordinating and running regular
construction meetings, reviewing pay requests, and preparing closeout documentation. However, the
construction manager and inspector cannot be decision makers when it comes to matters concerned with
the project design.



SECTION Q.| PAGENO._ ¢

The budget for this overall task is given with the assumption that the construction period will last four
months.

PG Attend Preconstruction Meeting

GHD will attend one virtual two-hour preconstruction meeting organized by the construction manager. It is
assumed that the preconstruction meeting will be conducted via Microsoft Teams. The construction
manager will prepare the agenda and compile and distribute minutes.

Task 7.1 Deliverables:

» None

2 Respond to Selected Technical Engineering RFI’'s

The construction manager will receive and log RFI's and will review and respond to non-technical RFI's
that they can address based on their role on the project. For technical RFI's requiring design
interpretation, the construction manager will forward them to GHD for design review. Substitutions or
alternative approaches proposed by the contractor will be forwarded to GHD engineers for review. GHD
will respond to the RFI and return to the construction manager.

Task 7.2 Deliverables:

» Responses to up to 10 technical RFI's.

Task 7.2 Assumptions:

» Nontechnical RFI's not requiring the Engineer of Record will be addressed by others.
» Construction management software, if used, will be managed by others.

» GHD will assist with up to 10 RFI’s.

7:3 Respond to Selected Technical Engineering Submittals

The construction manager will receive and log submittals and will respond to submittals that they can
address based on their role on the project. For example, it is expected that the construction manager will
respond to administrative submittals, erosion control and traffic control submittals, and submittals for
standard construction products such as aggregates, concrete, asphalt, etc. More technical submittals
requiring design interpretation will be forwarded to GHD. It is expected that submittals related to the tanks,
substitutions, and other more detailed technical matters will be forward to GHD for review, and the
construction manager will review other submittals. GHD will provide submittal responses to the
construction manager.

Task 7.3 Deliverables:

» Responses to technical submittals through the construction manager



SECTION..c.| PAGENO. [

Task 7.3 Assumptions:

» Submittal process to be managed by the construction manager
Nontechnical submittals, not requiring the Engineer of Record, to be addressed by others

» Up to a total of four (4) submittals, which are anticipated to include tank shop drawings, will be
reviewed by GHD.

v

Up to a total of four (4) substitutions will be responded to by GHD. One (1) tank related
substitution, and up to three additional (3) substitutions will be responded to by GHD

7.4 Provide Support for Selected Technical Change Orders

During the course of the project, it may be necessary to execute one or more change orders based on the
actual field conditions encountered and other conditions. Depending on the nature of the changes, GHD
may need to review what is being proposed and may need to prepare clarifying sketches or descriptions
of modified work.

Task 7.4 Deliverables:

» Phone, email support, and up to three (3) written responses with technical changes requiring the
Engineer of Record, as warranted.

Task 7.4 Assumptions:

Management of change order process will be handled by others

Cost estimating/cost confirmation will be done by others

A A 4

Assumes assistance with three (3) change orders

7.5 Attend Selected Construction Meetings

Regular construction meetings will be conducted by the construction manager. GHD is available to attend
selected construction meetings in person or virtually. Up to three (3) in person construction meetings can
be attended as part of a focused in person site inspection covered under Task 7. Otherwise, it is assumed
that up to two (2) one-hour construction meetings will be held virtually per month.

Task 7.5 Deliverables:

» None

Task 7.5 Assumptions:

» Up to eight (8) virtual one-hour construction meetings will be attended.



SECTION 0. .2 \PAGE NO, B

I...—.'.l

b Conduct Focused Site Inspections

The project will have regular inspection and management by the construction manager. GHD will provide
focused site inspections during the construction project to review progress and to inspect specific
technical aspects of the work.

Task 7.6 Deliverables:

» Site inspection reports or email correspondence following site inspections depending on the
nature of the items observed.

Task 7.6 Assumptions:

> Up to eight (8) in person site inspections will be held during the project.

.7 Prepare Record Drawings

The contractor is responsible for maintaining a set of red line markups during the project as will the
construction manager. One final set of red line markups will be provided to GHD and GHD will make the
changes to the AutoCAD drawings and cloud changes to distinguish them as being made from the field
red lines. GHD will provide both AutoCAD drawings and a PDF of the final record drawings.

Task 7.7 Deliverables:

» Record drawings in AutoCAD and PDF format delivered electronically, as well as (2) 11 x 17 and
(2) 22 x 34 hard copies.

Task 7.7 Assumptions:

» The construction manager will compile one complete rectified set of redlines that incorporate
contractor redlines and construction manager redlines. Conflicting or incomplete redlines will be
rectified and completed prior to providing to GHD. The compiled set to be provided to GHD will
show only relevant changes to the design that warrant inclusion in the record drawings. GHD will
be provided a color scanned PDF document of the final compiled and rectified set of redlines.

Task 8 — Prepare Request for Qualifications for Construction Inspection and Management
Services
8.1 Prepare RFQ

As discussed above, the District will engage a third-party firm to provide construction inspection and

management services. Because GHD will not be performing these services, we will assist the District with
preparing a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the District to advertise to solicit competitive Statements
of Qualifications (SOQs) for these services. GHD will prepare a draft RFQ for review by District staff, and



B o< | Descipton | Grant Portion | Distrct Porton

oy g

W*Nf\jlf)

OX )( é\)"’“

N

SECTION 10.1.©1 PAGE NO._

then will incorporate District comments into a final RFQ. It is assumed that the District will be the primary
point of contact for firms who have questions during the RFQ process. GHD will be available to assist the
District with technical questions that are asked by firms during the RFQ process.

GHD will also review and score SOQs that are submitted and will participate in one (1) review panel
meeting to discuss SOQ scoring. The fee presented below is given assuming up to four respondents, and
additional fee may be required if more than four SOQs are received.

Task 8.1 Deliverables:

» Draft Request for Qualifications
» Final Request for Qualifications

» S0Q review scoring sheet

Professional Service Fee

GHD will provide the above-described scope of services at rates based on the rate schedule previously
agreed upon between GHD and HBMWD on a time and materials basis per the summary of fee by task as
shown below. GHD reserves the right to move budget between tasks.

1 Project Management $3,590 $1,197 $4,787
2 QA/QC $5,663 $1,888 $7,551 ){
3 Grant Administration Assistance $6,258 $2,086 $8,344 b“"w
4 Final Engineering Design $101,556 $33,853 $135,409
5 Final Environmental Permitting $14,392 $4,798 $19,190 :
6 Bid Period Services 30 $9,495 $9,495
T e i 5 N
8 Preplilre Requtfast g)r _ @'m"‘

e s s sest sses

Services

Total $131,459 $131,689 $263,148

It is assumed that the "Final Engineering Design” budget in the Phase 2 HMGP grant will cover Tasks 1
through 4 above (outside of the District’'s 25% match requirement). It is assumed that the “CEQA NOE
and Coastal Development Permit” budget in the Phase 2 HMGP grant will cover Task 5 above (outside of
the District's 25% match requirement). Due to recent interpretations of the Code of Federal Regulations by



SECTION(Q.| 2. PAGENO. (O

FEMA, Tasks 6 through 8 above will be paid for outside of the HMGP grant. However, there is available
grant budget for the firm that is selected for construction inspection and management.

Schedule
GHD proposes to complete the tasks associated with this project according to the following schedule
assuming a contract execution date as noted below:

e Contract execution: November 10, 2023

e  Kick-off Meeting: week of November 13, 2023

e Final Environmental Permits: January 26, 2024

e 90% Design Submittal: February 2, 2024

e District comments on 90% Design Submittal: February 16, 2024

e Final 100% Bid Ready Design Submittal: March 15, 2024

e Advertise for bids: March 18, 2024

e Bids due: April 17, 2024

o Review bids: April 17 — April 19, 2024

e Award project to contractor: Week of April 22, 2024 (will require special board meeting)

Per the Phase 2 award letter from FEMA dated May 25, 2023, the project completion date is March 30,
2025. It is anticipated that construction will be completed the summer of 2024, which will allow time for
closeout documentation to be completed prior to the project completion date.

10



SECTION 0.2, PAGENO. | |

Assumptions
This proposal is limited to the tasks as outlined in the scope of work above. The following considerations
and assumptions are included in our project proposal:

e No further topographic survey or utility locating included.

s All permit fees paid directly by the District.

» District to retain separate firm to provide construction inspection and management services.
We value our long-term relationship and look forward to the opportunity to assist the District with this

project. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,

GHD

Nathan Stevens, PE Steve McHaney, PE

District Engineer Project Manager

11



FINANCIAL




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUND BALANCES - PAGE 1 OF 2

BANK ACCOUNT BALANCES AT MONTH-END

SECTION [0 2. 4 PAGNO. _|
it |

October 31, 2023

October 31, 2022

GENERAL ACCOUNTS
1. US Bank - General Account 2,018,640.58 4,206,754.06
2. US Bank - Xpress BillPay/Electronic Payments Account 6,787.74 11,244.84
Subtotal 2,025,428.32 4,217,998.90
INVESTMENT & INTEREST BEARING ACCOUNTS
3. US Bank - DWR/SRF Money Markey Accnt 166,610.78 303,408.28
4. US Bank - DWR/SRF Reserve CD Account 547,336.94 547,336.94
5. US Bank - PARS Investment Account 827,061.03 864,535.04
Contributions = §800.000  Disbursements = §166,619
6. L. A.l. F Account - MSRA Reserve Account 460,123.29 447,094.05
7. CalTRUST - Restricted Inv. Account {Medium Term) 1,712,100.45 1,663,518.43
8. CalTRUST - DWFP Reserve Account [FedFund) - 242,881.31
9. CalTRUST - ReMat Account (LEAF Fund) - 1,121,815.91
10. CalTRUST - General Reserve Account (Short-Term) 4,542,559.01 2,373,598.03
Total CalTRUST Accounts 6,254659.46 5401,813.68
11. Caiifornia CLASS - DWFP Reserve Account 253,866.71 =
12. California CLASS - ReMat Reserve Account 1,373,686.63 -
Total California CLASS Accounts 1,627.553.34 -
13. Humboldt County - SRF Loan Payment Account 144,027.61 280,861.90
14. Humboldt County - 1% Tax Account - (18,048.38)
15. Principle Investment Account 36,141.12 47,061.39
Subtotal 10,063,513.57 7,874,062.90
OTHER ACCOUNTS
16. ReMat Deposit - Mellon Bank 27,000.00 27,000.00
17. Cash on Hand 650.00 650.00
Subtotal 27,650.00 27,650.00
TOTAL CASH 12,116,591.89 12,119,711.80

PAGE F-1



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUND BALANCES - PAGE 2 OF 2

FUND BALANCES AT MONTH-END

RESTRICTED FUNDS - ENCUMBERED

SECTION J0.2.1, PAGE NO._S

October 31, 2023

October 31, 2022

1. Prior-Year Price Factor 2 Rebate (15,738.00) (19,413.60)
2. Prior-Year Restricted AP Encumbrances (707,105.00) {104,984.00)
3. Aagvanced Charges - 3x Tank Seismic Retrofit (1,519,111.09) (1,.269,146.62)
4. Advanced Charges - Cathodic Protection Project [124,999.96) {124,999.95)
5. Advanced Charges - Collector 2 Rehabilitation (704,531.18) (997,238.62)
6. Advanced Charges - On-Site Generation of Chlorine (654,914.17) {1,055,799.79)
7. Advanced Charges - Redundant Pipeline (387,782.70) (311,792.49)
8. Advanced Charges - TRF Emergency Generator {372,389.61) {375,000.00)
9. 3AC Collected Funds - TRF Emergency Generator (312,858.62) {312,858.62)
10. Advanced Funding - FEMA, Shoreline Debris Removail 1,487.72 (97,941.60)
. 11. Advanced Funding - August Complex-Ruth Paving (112,456.22) (112,456.22)
12. Advanced Charges - Assist. Spillway Seismic Grant {23,333.32} (23,333.32)
13. Advanced Funding - Eureka Cyber Security [19,597.72) (19,597.72}
14. Advanced Charges - Essex Facility Expansion {105,400.00} {105,400.00)
15. Advanced Charges - Capital Financing/Debt Service {297,368.04) {135,166.68)
Subtotal {5,356,097.91) {5,065,129.24)
RESTRICTED FUNDS - OTHER
16, 1% Tax Credit to Muni's - 18,048.38
17. DWR Reserve for SRF Payment (166,610.78) (303,408.28)
18. DWR Reserve for SRF l.oan (547.336.94) {547,336.94)
19. Pension Trust Reserves (827,061.03) (864,535.04)
20. ReMat Deposit {27,000.00) (27,000.00)
21, HB Retail Capital Replacement Reserves {190,745.27) (143,654.74)
Subtotal (1,758,754.02) {1,867,886.62)
UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
BOARD RESTRICTED
22. MSRA Reserves 1460,123.29) (447,094.05)
23. DWFP Reserves (253,866.71) (242,881.31)
24, ReMat Reserves (1.373,6856.63) (1,121,81591)
25. Paik-Nicely Development - (4.158.00)
26, Principle Investment Reserves (36,141.12) (47.061.39)
27. Northern Mainline Extension Study Prepayment 56.40 56.40
28. Blue Lake Rancheria Extension Study Prepayment {2,916.00] -
Subtotal {2,123,761.35) (1.862,954.26)
UNRESTRICTED RESERVES
29. Accumulation for SRF Payment (144,027.61) (280,861.90)
30. General Fund Reserves {2,733,951.00] (3.048,512.22)
Subtotal (2,877,978.61)

(3.323,741.68)

TOTAL NET POSITION

(12,116,591.89)

(12,119,711.80}

PAGE F-2




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

REVENUE REPORT

SECT IOPIJ\IJ(TE,_’;._@, PAGE No"._” e

October 31, 2023 Of Budget Year
A. REVENUE RETURNED TQ CUSTOMERS VIA PF2
MTD YTD PRIOR % OF
RECEIPTS RECEIPTS YEAR BUDGET BUDGET

1. Humboldt Bay Retail Water Revenue 31,915 125,033 111,089 350,000 36%
General Revenue

Power Sales {Net ReMat) o 0 24,715 125,000 0%

Tax Receipts [ 1% Taxes) 0 317,212 0 1,000,000 32%
2. Miscellaneous Revenue* 595 3,160 30.064 50,000 6%
*Detail on following page

TOTAL PF2 REVENUE CREDITS 32,510 445,404 165,868 1,525,000 29%

B. DISTRICT REVENUE

RECEIPTS RECEIPTS YEAR BUDGET BUDGET
3. Industrial Water Revenue
Harbor District 0 200
Subtotal ndustrial Water Revenue 0 200
4. Municipal Water Revenue
City of Arcata 129,022 507,689 499,129 1,538,900 33%
City of Blue Lake 17,126 67,480 65,428 202,362 33%
City of Eureka 299,630 1,192,887 1,161,912 3,617,684 33%
Fieldbrook CSD 33,973 65,681 62,417 194,298 34%
Humboldt CSD 91,854 369,724 352,840 1,105,724 33%
Manila CSD 7,750 30,108 28,779 90,372 33%
MciKinleyville CSD 107,177 419,974 408,606 1,266,298 33%
Subtotal Municipal Water Reveriue 686,532 2,653,543 2,579,110 8,015,638 33%
TOTAL INDUSTRIAL & WHOLESALE
REVENUE 686,532 2,653,543 2,579,309 8,015,638 33%
5. Power Sales
Power Sales [ReMat Revenue) 0 0 49,447 300,000 0%
Interest (ReMat Revenue) 0 0 0 0
TOTAL REMAT REVENUE 0 0 49,447 300,000 0%
6. Other Revenue and Grant Reimbursement
HB Retail Capital Replacement Rev. 4,136 16,046 15,782
FCSD Contract 41,928 94,784 114,856
FEMA/CalOES Grant Revenue 0 113,363 320,048
SWRCB InStream Flow Grant Revenue 0 0 5,243
Quagga Grant Revenue 0 0 0
Misc. Grant Revenue ¢ 1,120 0
CalFire Healthy Forest Funding o 0 0]
CalFire Fuel Reduction Funding 0 339.969 0
Interest - Muni PF2 Retained 4112 7.665 2,355
Net Increase/[Decrease) Investment Accounts 31,808 102,893 (89,572)
TOTAL OTHER/GRANT REVENUE 81,985 675,839 368,71G
"GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 801,027 3,774,786 3,163,335 9,840,638 38%




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SECTION10-2 o, PAGE NO <

MISCELANEOUS REVENUE - DETAIL REPORT
October 31, 2023

B. MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPTS (RETURNED TO CUSTOMERS VIA PF2)

MTD YTD
RECEIPTS RECEIPTS

Miscelaneous Revenue

Dividend - Principal Life 347 689
Fees - Park Use - -

Rebate - CALCard - 227
Refund - Diesel Fuel Tax - 200
Refunds - Miscelaneous - 101

Reimb - Blue Lake SCADA/Internet Monthly Fees - .

Reimb. - Copies & Postage 48 133
Reimb. - Gas - -
Reimb. - Misc. Employee - -
Reimb. - Telephone = -
UB - Water Processing Fees - 150
UB - Hydrant Rental Deposit/Use - -

Ruth Area

Lease - Don Bridge - -

Rent - Ruth Cabin 200 1,560

Ruth Annual Lessee Water Fees - 100
TOTAL MISCELANEQOUS REVENUE 595 3,160

PAGE F-4



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT - PAGE 1 OF 3

October 31, 2023

SALARY AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENDITURES (S. E. B.)

Month-to-Date

33%
Of Budget Year

Year-to-Date Prior Year Budget % of Budget

Compensation
1. Wages - Regular 185,994.66 732,101.06 768,903.55 2,556,746 33%
2. Wages - Sick 8,637.33 24,348.08 30,608.67
3. Wages - Vacation 16,355.05 87,582.80 87,437.16

Subtotal 210,987.04 844,031.94 886,949.38 2,556,746 33%
4. Wages - Overtime 826.44 3,219.74 4,583.36 15,855
5. Wages - Holiday (Worked) - 2,748.24 1,845.67 15,855

Subtotal 826.44 5,967.98 6,429.03 31,710 19%
6. Wages - Part-Time 5,339.08 24,270.62 17,779.55 115,430 21%
7. Wages - Shift Differential 969.44 3,811.08 3,802.17 12,156 31%
8. Wages - Standby 8,466.72 33,632.07 29,763.28 97,773 34%
9. Director Compensation 3,040.00 8,880.00 9,440.00 26,000 34%
10. Secretarial Fees 262.50 1,115.63 1,050.00 3,200 35%
11. Payroll Tax Expenses 17,203.80 69.473.22 71,348.05 228,272 30%

Subtotal 35,281.54 141,182.62 133,183.05 482,831 29%
Employee Benefits
12. Health, Life,& LTD Ins. 42,633.83 175,878.96 228,669.28 982,991 18%
13. Air Medical Insurance & 2,291.00 1,820.00 2,707 85%
14. Retiree Medical Insurance 9,112.27 36,449.08 37,036.64 83,000 38%
14a. Retiree Medical Reimb. [1.814.12) 15.200.41) [30.644.38)
15. Employee Dental Insurance 2,732.97 10,903.51 11,927.16 44,086 25%
16. Employee Vision Insurance 578.37 2,314.99 2,579.84 7,471 31%
17. Employee EAP 7727 309.24 331.01 1,116 28%
18. Fitness Stipend - - - 5,400 0%
19. 457b District Contribution 3,825.00 14,637.50 8,069.04 48,900 30%
20. CalPERS Expenses 30,507.46 322,227.14 410,754.89 599,102 54%
21. Workers Comp Insurance 27,351.12 58,104.35 61,617.70 146,512 40%

Subtotal 115,004.17 617,915.36 732,161.18 1,921,285 32%

TOTAL S.E.B 362,099.19 1,609,097.90 1,758,722.64 4,992,572 32%

PAGE F-5



SFCTION |0.2.GPAGE NO._(o
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT g

MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT - PAGE 2 OF 3

October 31, 2023 33%
Of Budget Year e S
SERVICE & SUPPLY EXPENDITURES (S & S)
Month-to-Date Year-to-Date Prior Year Budget % of Budget

Operations & Maintenance

1. Auto Maintenance 7.794.85 16,853.27 16,302.60 39,200 43%
2. Engineering 2,823.80 9.217.69 30,895.31 75,000 12%
3. Lab Expenses 1,150.00 7,230.00 8,750.00 13,000 56%
4. Maintenance & Repairs
General 4,211.71 12,554.39 13,071.44 45,200 28%
TRF 930.17 1,540.17 8,302.37 17,000 9%
Subtotal 51741.88 14.094.56 21,373.87 62200 23%
5. Materials & Supplies
General 10,380.90 22,537.60 21,767.90 39,500 57%
TRF 13,517.92 20,117.13 9,283.96 35,000 57%
Subtotal 2389882 4265473 31.051.86 74.500 57%
6. Radio Maintenance 578.09 2,312.36 2,450.54 8,500 27%
7. Ruth Lake License = 1,500.00 % 1,500 100%
8. Safety Equip./Training
General 602.34 4,155.64 6,181.01 19,000 22%
TRF - 153.00 144.00 2,000 8%
Subtotal 60234 4.308.64 6,325.07 21,000 21%
9. Tools & Equipment 83.30 945.41 976.63 5,000 19%
10. USGS Meter Station - 8,600.00 8,220.00 9,000 96%
Operations Subtotal 42,073.08 107,716.66 126,345.76 308,900 35%

General & Administration

11. Accounting Services 200.00 19.605.00 23,940.00 35,000 56%
12. Bad Debt Expense - = = - 0
13. Dues & Subscriptions 20,595.00 22,103.56 30,136.95 37,400 59%
14. IT & Software Maintenance 4,216.61 25,728.49 29,454.60 82,000 31%
15. Insurance 59,344.50 130,217.44 107,309.77 120,000 109%
16. Internet 740.78 3,011.26 3,711.17 5,500 55%
17. Legal Services 868.00 6,923.16 1,906.50 35,000 20%
18. Miscellaneous 1,117.78 3,207.02 4,355.28 10,000 32%
19. Office Building Maint. 1,742.61 6,827.09 7,976.52 19,000 36%
20. Office Expense 2,998.90 14,733.31 12,398.27 39,600 37%
2 1. Professional Services - 1,008.75 4,208.98 20,000 5%
22. Property Tax - - - 3,000 0%

PAGE F-6



SECTION [0.2.SPAGENO._/__

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT - PAGE 3 OF 3

October 31, 2023 33% =
Of Budget Year L
Month-to-Date Year-to-Date Prior Year Budget % of Budget
23. Regulatory Agency Fees 25,926.76 31,983.40 5729.28 199,000 16%
24. Ruth Lake Programs . = - 5,000 0%
25. Safety Apparel - 355.56 1,219.43 9,300 4%
26. Technical Training - 314.23 101.36 14,000 2%
27. Telephone 1,065.05 4,177.19 5,409.63 19,000 22%
28. Travel & Conference 3.684.79 8,432.45 4,120.67 22,000 38%
Gen. & Admin. Subtotal 122500.78 278,627.91 241,978.41 674,800 41%
TOTAL SERVICE & SUPPLY 164.573.86 386,344.57 368324.17 983,700.25 39%
Power
29. Essex-PG & E = 62,632.90 -
30. 2Mw Generator Fuel - = -
Subtotal Essex Pumping - 62,632.90 -
31. Allother PG & E 4,737.50 26,841.08 29,059.46
Subtotal All Power 4.737.50 89.473.98 29.059.46 1,019,000 9%

Total Service and Supplies incl.
Power 169,311.36 475,818.55 397,383.63 2,002,700 24%

PROJECTS, FIXED ASSETS & CONSULTING SERVICES
Month-to-Date Year-to-Date Budget % of Budget
768,429.00 3,043,407.00 19,840,575 15%

GRAND TOTAL EXPENSES 1,299,839.55 5,128,323.45 2,156,106.27 26,835,847

32. Debt Service - SRF Loan - - - 547,337 0%

TOTAL EXPENSES WITH DEBT SERVICE

1,299,839.55 5,128,323.45 2,163,444.71 27,383,184.18

OTHER EXPENSES

33. ReMat Consultant Exp. - . 7.338.44
34. Capital Replacement Exp. - 5 -

TOTAL EXPENSES WITH REMAT

169.311.36 475,818.55 404,722.07

PAGE F-7



SECTION {0. 2. *
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Q- 2GPAGENO. ©__

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT
October 31, 2023 33% Of Budget Year

A. CAPITAL PROJECTS

MTD YTD % OF
GRANT FUNDED CAPITAL PROJECTS EXPENSES TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET
I Grant - TRF Generator 61,881 62,301 1,900,000 3%
[Treatment Facility Project, $ 1.9M - FEMA, Approved)
2 Grant - Collector 2 Rehabilitation 585,046 1,857,398 3,200,000 58%
/5 1.6M - NCRP Prop 1, Approved) '
3 Grant - Collector Mainline Redundancy Pipeline 7,032 57,811 3,100,000 2%
(Treatment/Base Facility Project, $3.1M - FEMA, Approved)
4 Grant - 3x Tank Seismic Retrofit 0 0 5,700,000 0%
[$5.7M - FEMA, Phase 1 Approved)
4A 12KV Relocation 0 60,000 0 0%
TOTAL GRANT FUNDED CAPITAL PROJECTS 653,960 2,037,511 13,900,000 15%
NON-GRANT FUNDED CAPITAL PROJECTS
5 Mainline VValve Replacement Program 0 0 170,000 0%
6 ADA Improvments - Eureka Office Parking Lot 0 413 11,000 4%
7 Storage Barn at Headguarters 0 0 0] 0
(S 180k FY24/FYZ25 Advanced Charges being Collected)
TOTAL NON-GRANT FUNDED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 413 181,000 0%
MTD YTD % OF
EXPENSES TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET
8 FY24 Replace Essex Admin Computers 0 0 6,500 0%
9 FY24 Replace Control Computers 0 0 5,250 0%
10 Spare Collector Motor 0] 0 108,250 0%
11 Portable Eye Wash & Shower 491 491 1,750 28%
12 Pipeline Maintenance Equipment 292 2,100 5,750 37%
13 John Deere 4052 Implements 0 2,497 6,500 38%
14 Maintenance Shop High Bay Lights 0 0 3,250 0%
15 Cordless Tools & Equipment 0 4,085 5,250 78%
16 TRF Security Fence 0 0 7,750 0%
(Treatment Facility Project)
17 TRF Spare Process Pumps 25,508 25,508 25,750 99%
fTreatment Facility Profect)
18 TRF Replace PH Probes 0 0 26,750 0%
[Treatment Facility Project/
19 TRF Benchtop Turbidity Meter 0 0 6,750 0%
{Treatment Facility Project)
20 Tesla Battery Project - TRF 233 931 0 0

(Treatmenit Facility Project/ PAGE F-8



SECTION 0.2, PAGENO._

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT IR
PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT - PAGE 2 OF 5 33% OF Budget Year \
October 31, 2023 :

B. EQUIPMENT AND FIXED ASSET PROJECTS (con't)

MTD YTD % OF
EXPENSES TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET
21 FY24 Replace Eureka Admin Computers 0 0 3,000 0%
22 Ruth Hydro Power Monitor Replacement 0 0 13,500 0%
23 Ruth Hydro Plant PRV Internal Belzona Repairs 0 0 4,750 0%
24 Ruth Hydro Incoming Power Feed Conductors 0 0 42,500 0%
25 Ruth Bunkhouse Picnic Table Replacement 1,388 1,388 2,000 69%
26 Ruth Automated Tiltometers 0 0 50,000 0%
26A Grant - Power Loss - FEMA 4699 Winter Storm 1,060 1,450 0 0%
TOTAL EQUIPMENT & FIXED ASSET PROJECTS 28,972 38,450 325,250 12%
MTD YTD % OF
EXPENSES TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET
27 FY24 Pipeline Maintenance 0 0 14,000 0%
28 FY24 Main Line Meter Flow Calibration 0 0 28,000 0%
29 FY24 Technical Support & Softare Updates 4,590 32,436 26,750 121%
30 FY24 Generator Services 0 0 3,500 0%
31 FY24 Hazard & Diseased Tree Removal 0 0 8,000 0%
32 FY24 Cathodic Protection 0] 0 1,500 0%
33 FY24 Maintenance Emergecy Repairs 0 0 50,000 0%
34 FY24 Fleet Paint Repairs 0 0 5,000 0%
35 Particle Counter Calibration 379 379 1,750 22%
36 EOC Emergency Backpack Supplies 0 1,449 1,750 83%
37 Collector 1 Conductor Replacement 0 0 89,750 0%
38 FY24 Power Pole/Line Inspection/Maintenance 0 0 43,500 0%
39 SBPS Roll-Up Door 0 0 33,000 0%
40 Service Vehicle Utility Box Lighting 1,814 1,814 1,750 104%
41 Park #1 Gazebo Roof Replacement 0 0 3,500 0%
42 Pipeline R-O-W Maintenance 0 0 20,000 0%
43 FY24 TRF Generator Maintenance 328 328 500 0%
(Treatment Facility Project)
44 FY24 TRF Limitorque Valve Retrofit Supplies 0 0 14,500 0%
(Treatment Facility Profect)
45 TRF Valve Network Upgrade (Phase 2) 0 511 125,000 0%
[Treatment Facility Profect/
46 FY24 Brush Abatement Ruth Hydro 0 0 21,000 0%
47 FY24 LTO Insurance 0 0 5,000 0%
48 FY24 Spillway Repairs 0 352 10,000 4%
49 FY24 Howell Bunger Valve Inspection 0 0 1,000 0%
20 FY24 Log Boom Inspection 123 123 1,500 8%
51 Ruth Hydro Synchronizer Testing 0 0 21,000 0%

PAGE F-9



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT - PAGE 3 OF 5
October 31, 2023

SECTION 0.2 & PAGENO._LO__

33% Of Budget Year

C. MAINTENANCE PROJECTS (con't) %)

MTD YTD % OF
EXPENSES TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET

52 Replace Headquarters Garage Doors 0 0 6,750 0%
53 FY24 Eureka Office Generator Service 0 0 500 0%

TOTAL MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 7,233 37,391 538,500 7%

D. PROFESSIONAL & CONSULTING SERVICES
MTD YTD % OF
EXPENSES TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET
53 Prof. Services for New Capital Debt 0 0 0 0
54 FY24 Crane Testing/Certification 0 0 10,000 0%
55 FY24 Chlorine System Maintenance 0 0 6,750 0%
56 FY24 Hydro Plant Annual Elect/Maint Inspection 0 172 4,000 4%
57 FY23 Hydro Plant Annual Elec. Maint./Testing 0 0 5,000 0%
58 FY24 Essex Mad River Cross-Sectional Survey 0 0 12,000 0%
59 FY24 Technical Training 0 6,557 27,000 24%
60 FY24 O & M Training 0 0 20,000 0%
61 Backflow Tester Certification 426 426 5,750 7%
62 EAP Tabletop Planning 0 0 5,000 0%
63 CIP 10-yr Financial Revision and Project Review 0 0 15,000 0%
64 FY24 Public Education Funds 0 1,000 5,000 20%
65 FYZ24 Mad River Regulatory Compliance Assistance 0 0 50,000 0%
66 Spillway Bridge Inspection 0 0 7,500 0%
67 FY24 GHD Review/Report Mad River Cross-Sectional 0 0 5.000 0%
68 FY24 Grant Application Assistance 0 0 20,000 0%
69 Domestic Water for Nordic Aqua Farm 0 0 5,000 0%
70 Samoa Peninsula ROW EIR [GHD) 16,088 18,928 240,850 8%
71 Domestic Water System Cathodic Protection Updates 5,105 9,620 48,000 20%
72 Water Quality Moniotoring Plan Update 0] 0 20,000 0%
55 Water Model Update/Peninsula Domestic Capacity 0 0 30,000 0%
Rvw

74 Engineering Study-Replace 15-inch Peninsula Pipe 0 0 25,000 0%
75 Dam Crest Monument Survey (Vertical Cntrl Survey) 0 0 20,000 0%
76 GHD - Dam Vertical Control Survey Analysis 0 5,000 0%
77 FY24 Dam Spillway Wall Monument Survey 0 17,500 0%
78 GHD - Dam Spillway Wall Monument Survey Analysis 0 0 6,500 0%
79 Dam Left Abutment Slide Monitoring Survey 0 0 10,000 0%
80 GHD - Dam Left Abutment Slide Monitoring Survey 0 0 3,000 0%
81 FY24 FERC DSSMR Assistance ({GHD) 0 0 5,000 0%

PAGE F-10



SECTION 0.2 o PAGENO. | [
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 75

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT - PAGE 4 OF 5 33% Of Budget Year
October 31, 2023

D. PROFESSIONAL & CONSULTING SERVICES (conT) 2 ;

MTD YTD % OF
EXPENSES TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET
5 FY2.4l Spillway Repair, Dam Inspection/Reporting 0 787 5,000 16%
Assistance
83 FY24 FERC Chief Dam Safety Engineer 0 1,382 12,000 12%
TOTAL PROF/CONSULTING SERVICES 21,618 38,870 650,850 6%

E. INDUSTRIAL SYSTEM PROJECTS

84 Refurbish PS-6 (Phase 1) 0 0 0 0
85 2 Pumps/Motors/\VFD's for Pump Station 6 0 0 0 0
86 Maintain Water to PS6 During Low-Flow Months 0 0 13,250 0%
87 Industrial System Assistance 0 0 0 0
88 Crossover Vault Modifications 0 0 0 0
89 Pump Station 6 Gravel Bar Work and Permitting 0 0 0 0
TOTAL INDUSTRIAL SYSTEM PROJECTS 0 0 13,250 0%

F. CARRY-OVER PROJECTS FROM PRIOR YEAR

TOTAL CARRYOVER PROJECTS 0 0 0 0%
G. ADVANCED CHARGES & DEBIT SERVICE FUNDS COLLECTED

MTD YTD BUDGET % BUDGET

90 On-Site Generation of Chlorine 10,996 43,983 131,950 33%

[51.3M - FY23/24 Treatment Facility Project)

91 Prof. Services for New Capital Debt 13,517 54,067 162,200 33%

92 Storage Barn for Ruth Headquarters 7,500 30,000 90,000 33%

TOTAL ADVANCED CHARGES COLLECTED 32,013 128,050 384,150 33%

H. PROJECTS NOT CHARGED TO MUNICIPAL CUSTOMERS
MTD YTD % OF

EXPENSES TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET

93 On-Site Generation of Chlorine 3,114 539,394 1,212,499 44%

(S 1.2M - FYZ3, Treatment Facility Project/
94 Humboldt Bay Radio Read Meters 0 0] 9,500 0%

(Capital Replacement Funds)

PAGE F-11



SECTION10.2 qPAGE NO._/:
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT = -

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT - PAGE 5 OF 5 33% Of Budget Year

October 31, 2023
H. PROJECTS NOT CHARGED TO MUNICIPAL CUSTOMERS [con't)

MTD YTD % OF
EXPENSES TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET

92 Ruth Paving and Repairs 0 0 0 0
(Non-FEMA August Complex Wildfire Funds Collected)

96 Domestic Water System Cathodic Protection 0 0 0 0
[Collected Advance Charges)

97 Streambed Flow Enhancement Grant 2,755 11,146 457,755 2%

(DWR Grant/

98 Clean-Out Industrial Water Tank 0 0 0 0
[ReMat Reserves/

99 North Mainline Extension Study 0 0 10,000 0%
100 BL Rancheria Water 0 1,992 0 0
101 CalFire Healthy Forest Grant 0 5481 5,000,000 0%

[CalFire Grant/
102 CalFire Fuels Reduction Program 0 0 500,000 0%
(Caifire Funding/
10: Quagga Grant Projects (Ruth Lake) 0 19,123 0 0%
TOTAL NOT CHARGED TO CUSTOMERS 5,869 577,137 7,189,754 8%

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT SUMMARY OF ALL ACTIVITY

CUSTOMER CHARGES MTD YTD BUDGET % BUDGET
TOTAL NON-GRANT FUNDED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 413 181,000 0%
Treatment Facility Portion g g o
TOTAL EQUIPMENT & FIXED ASSET PROJECTS 28,972 38,450 325,250 12%
Treatment Facility Portion 25741 26,439 67,000
TOTAL MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 7,233 37,391 538,500 7%
Treatment Facility Portion 328 839 140000
TOTAL PROF/CONSULTING SERVICES 21,618 38,870 650,850 6%
Treatment Facility Portion g g o
TOTAL INDUSTRIAL SYSTEM PROJECTS 0 0 13,250 0%
TOTAL CARRYOVER PROJECTS 0 0 0] 0
Treatment Facility Portion o g o
TOTAL ADVANCED CHARGES/DEBIT SERVICE 32,013 128,050 384,150 33%
Treatment Facility Portion S0 S0 S0
TOTAL CUSTOMER CHARGES $89,836 $243,175 $2,093,000 12%
NON-CUSTOMER CHARGES (CURRENT FY) MTD YTD BUDGET % BUDGET
TOTAL GRANT FUNDED CAPITAL PROJECTS 653,960 2,037,511 13,900,000 15%
TOTAL NON-CUSTOMER CHARGES 5,869 571,137 7,189,754 8%
TOTAL USE OF ENCUMBERED FUNDS 9,382 92,793 800,898 12%
TOTAL NON-CUSTOMER CHARGES $669,210 $2,707,440 $21,890,652 12%
GRAND TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET ACTIVITY ~ $759,047 $2,950,615 $23,983,652 12%

PAGE F-12



SECTION (0-2.
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT L"“C{’PAGE "(‘5"'"

ENCUMBERED FUNDS RECONCILIATION REPORT e \
October 31, 2023

MTD YTD AMOUNT
EXPENSES TOTAL ENCUMBERED REMAINING

A. CAPITAL PROJECTS
1E Fiber Optic Link - Collector 2 - Phase 1 259 677 28,500 27,823
2E Power and Fiber Optic Link-Collector 2 - Phase 2 89 2,641 44,000 41,359
3t Underground Power to Collector 2 - Phase 3 1,421 13,979 207,084 193,105
4E Retaining Wall for Valve Access 0 0 70,000 70,000

B. EQUIPMENT & FIXED ASSET PROJECTS
5 Essex Stand Alone Security and Fire Monitoring 0 1,554 1,750 196
6E Electrical Shop Offices 468 6,380 19,937 13,557
7E Hydro Plant Neutral Overvoltage Relay 0 0 8,956 8,956
8E Hydro Plant Wicket Gate & HBV Signal Upgrade 7,145 7,145 8,500 1,355

C. MAINTENANCE PROJECTS
9E FY23 Main Line Meter Flow Calibration 0] 124 24,803 24,679
10E Truesdale to Samoa Booster Station Telemetry Radio 0 460 3,209 2,749
11E Line Shed Alarm Upgrades 0 0 6,500 6,500

D. PROFESSIONAL & CONSULTING SERVICES
24E Above Ground 10,000 Gallon Fuel Tank Testing 0 0 5,400 5,400
25E Salary Survey 0 0 25,000 25,000
26E Engineering Study-Replace 15-inch Peninsula Pipe 0 0 4,702 4,702
27E Samoa Peninsula Coastal Development Permit 0 7,469 26,465 18,996
28E Samoa Peninsula ROW EIR (GHD) 0 32,932 32,932 0
29 Transformer at Hydro Plant 0 8,524 19,779 11,255
30 Upgrade Microsoft Office - Essex 0 15 900 885
31E 404 Permit Assistance 0 0 24,196 24,196
32E Lease Lots Surveys 0 0 22,618 22,618
33E GIS / FIS Ruth Area, Including Internship 0 0 5,000 5,000
34E GIS Project at Ruth Lake (USFS) 0 0 7,500 7,500
35E Collector Arc Flash Study Update and Breaker Testi 0 9,816 9,760 (56)
36E CAISO Meter Inspection Calibration 0] 0 4,000 4,000
37 Technical Dam/Spillway Support* 0 1,076 189,407 188,331

*Thls total comprised of projects #23-51-0033, 23-58-0115, 23-58-0116, 23-56-0122, 23-58-9123, 22-58-0121

ENCUMBERED FUNDS TOTAL 9,382 92,793 800,898 708,105

PAGE F-13



SECTION 0.2.q, PAGENO,_| -1

Humboeldt Bay Municipal Water District

--Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report—
Report dates; 10/1/2023-10/31/2023

Page: 1
Oct 30, 2023 03:52PM

Vendor Name

Date Paid Description Amount Paid
101 NETLINK
101 NETLINK 10/03/2023  Ruth Data Link/Internet 190.00
Total 101 NETELINK: 150.00
ACWA Foundation
ACWA Foundation 10/13/2023 2024 Annua! Dues 20,595.00
Total ACWA Foundation: 20,595.00
ACWA/IPIA
ACWA/IPIA 1072012023 RETIREE MEDICAL 9,112.27
ACWA/IPTA 10/05/2023  Workers Compensation July-Sept 2023 27,351.12
ACWA/IPIA 10/30/2023  Auto and General Liability Program 10.23 - 10,24 19,781.50
ACWA/IPIA 10/30/2023  Auto and General Liability Program 10.23 - 10,24 2,276.46
ACWA/IPIA 10/30/2023  Auto and General Liability Program 10.23 - 10,24 57,068.04
Total ACWA/IPTA: 113,589.39
Advanced Display & Signs
Advanced Display & Signs 10/20/2023  Ruth Dam Signage 398.25
Total Advanced Display & Signs: 398,25
Advanced Security Systems
Advanced Security Systems 10/30/2023  Essex Quarterly Alorm Billing 423.00
Total Advanced Security Systems: 423,00
AirGas NCN
AirGas NCN 10/20/2023  Safely Gloves 18.07
AirGas NCN 10/30/2023  Saline bag vefills for eyewash stations 490.59
AirGas NCN 10/30/2023  Safeiy PPE for inventory 54.16
Total AirGas NCN: 562.82
Almgquist Lumber
Almquist Lumber 10/20/2023  Paint for Electrical Shop Offices 189.96
Total Almquist Lumber: 189.96
AT&T
AT&T 10/18/2023  Eureka Office Long Distance 7.71
AT&T 10/18/2023  Ruth HQ Long Distance 9.64
AT&T 10/20/2023  Eureka/Essex Landline 31.43
AT&T 10/20/2023  Arcata/Essex Landiine 31.43
AT &T 1072072023 Fureka Office/dlarm 58.31
AT&T 10/20/2023 TRF 28,38
AT&T 10/20/2023  fssex office/Modem/Control Alarm System 28,38
Total AT & T: 195.28
ATS Communications
ATS Communications 10/20/2023 T Support for Fssex Admin Computers 1,430.00
ATS Communications 10/20/2023  IT Support for Fssex Admin Computers 1,430.00
ATS Communications 10/20/2023  IT Support 56.89
ATS Communicalions 10/20/2023  PBX Vertical Wave Support

1,464,59




SECTION/O. 2.0 PAGE NO, LS

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District --Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report-- Page: 2
Report dates: 10/1/2023-10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023 03:52PM
Vendor Name Date Paid Description Amount Paid

ATS Communications 10/20/2023 [T Support for Essex Admin Computers 1,430,00
Total ATS Communications: 5,811.48

Blue Star Gas - Sequoia Gas Co.

Blue Star Gas - Sequoia Gas Co. 10/30/2023  IW Backup Generator Fuel 100.25

Blue Star Gas - Sequoia Gas Co. 10/30/2023  IW Backup Generator Fuel 98.06

Blue Star Gas - Sequoia Gas Co. 10/30v2023  IW Backup Generator Fuel 100.23

Blue Star Gas - Sequoia Gas Co. 10/30/2023 W Backup Generator Fuel 2.97
Total Blue Star Gas - Sequoia Gas Co.: 301.53

Citi Cards

Citi Cards 10/30/2023  Eureka office supplies 19.65
Total Citi Cards: 19.65

City of Eureka

City of Eureka 10/13/2023  Eureka affice waier/sewer 144.87
Total City of Eureka: 144.87

Coastal Business Systems Inc.

Coastal Business Systems Inc. 10/30/2023  Eureka office copy and fax machine 750.17

Coastal Business Systers Inc. 10/30/2023  Essex copy/fax machine 268.25
Total Coastal Business Systems Inc.: 1,018.42

Contessa Dickson

Contessa Dickson 1043072023 Per Diem, Mileage, Hotel for Board Secretary Conference 11/5 - 1,728.05
Total Contessa Dickson: 1,728.05

Corey Borghino

Corey Borghino 10/03/2023  Hotel & Per Diem for iravel to Caselle Conference in Utah 10/9- 978.37
Total Corey Borghino: 678.37

Cummins Pacific LLC

Cummins Pacific LLC 10/30/2023  TRF Generator Service 327.68
Total Cummins Pacific LL.C: 327.68

Darcey Quinn

Darcey Quinn 10/03/2023  Hotel & Per Diem for travel to Caselle Conference in Utah 10/9- 978.37
Total Darcey Quinn: 978.37

Downey Brand Attorneys LLP :

Downey Brand Attorneys LLP 10/30/2023  Legal Irees Sepi 2023 - Instream Flow Investigation 270.00
Total Downey Brand Attorneys LLD: 270.00

Fureka Chrysler Dodge Jeep
Eureka Chrysler Dodge Jeep 10/20/2023  Labor charge for Unit 7 eco-diesel engine replacement 2,540.14



SECTION 2.0, PAGENO. Lo

--Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report-- Page: 3
Report dates: 10/1/2023-10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023 03:52PM

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Vendor Name Daie Paid Description Amount Paid
Total Eureka Chrysler Dodge Jeep: 2,540.14
Fureka Oxygen
Eureka Oxygen 1073072023  cylinder rental 1.97
Eureka Oxygen 10/30/2023  cyiinder rental 131.00
Eureka Oxygen 10/30/2023  cylinder rental 127.00
Total Eureka Oxygen: 259.97
Eureka Readymix
Eureka Readymix 10/30/2023  Sand for TRF sludge beds 316.53
Eureka Readymix 10/30/2023  Sludge bed maintenance 319.11
Total Eureka Readymix: 635.64
Eureka-Humboldt Fire Ext.,Co, Inc
Eureka-Humboldt Fire Ext.,Co, Inc 10/03/2023  Ruth Hydro Fire Extinguisher maintenance 228.92
Eureka-Humboldt Fire Ext.,Co, Inc 10/03/2023  Ruth Hyvdro Fire Extinguisher maintenance 200.43
Total Eureka-Humboldt Fire Ext.,Co, Inc: 429.35
FEDEX
FEDEX 10/20/2023  Ship annual flow testing of SCBA #1 25.76
TFEDEX 1013072023 Ship annual flow testing of SCBA4 #2 27.06
Total FEDEX: 52.82
Flo-Line Technoelogy, Inc
Flo-Line Technology, Inc 10/18/2023  Wash Water Return Pump for Inventory 18,182.12
Flo-Line Technology, Inc 10/18/2023  TRF Spare Process Pumps 1,317.14
Total Flo-Line Technology, Inc: 19,499.26
Franchise Tax Board
Franchise Tax Board 10/35/2023 63.00
Franchise Tax Board 10/20/2023 65.00
Total Franchise Tax Board: 130.00
Frontier Communications
Frontier Communications 10/30/2023  Ruth HQ 59.25
Frontier Communications 10/30/2023  Ruth Hydro/Ruth Dataline 235.88
Total Frontier Communications: 29513
GEI Consultants, Inc
GEI Consultants, Inc 10/24/2023  Main Line Resiliency Project 23-0799 7,032.25
Total GEI Consultants, Inc: 7,032.25
GHD
GHD 10/03/2023  General Engineering 1,215.04
GHD 10/03/2023  General Engineering - FEMA Grant - Power Loss 758.88
GHD 10/03/2023  General Engineering - TRF Generator Grant 252.89
GHD 10/30/2023  Collector 2 Rehabiliation Project 12,374.41
GIHD 10/30/2023  Cathodic Protection #24-0027 5,104.88




SECTION (02 PAGENO. | 7

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District --Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report-- Page: 4
Report dates: 10/1/2023-10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023 03:52PM
Vendor Name Date Paid Description Amount Paid
GHD 10/30/2023  General Engineering 1,510.90
GHD 10/30/2023  General Engineering - Collecior 2 Undergrounding Project 258.88
GHD 10/30/2023  General FEngineering - Ruth 07.26
GHD 10/30/2023  General Engineering - TRF Generator Grant 194.50
GHD 10/30/2023  Samoa Peninsula ROW EIR #23-0625 16,087.61
GHD 10/30/2023  OSHG Installation and Integration Design #23-00%91 3,113.63
Total GHD: 40,969.48
H.T. Harvey & Associates
H.T. Harvey & Associates 10/24/2023  Mad River Instream Flow Dedication 1,846.00
H.T. Harvey & Associates 10/24/2023  Mad River Instream Flow Dedication 639.00
Total H.T. Harvey & Associates: 2,485.00
Harhor Freight Tools
Harbor Freight Tools 10/30/2023  Portable light weight folding sawhorse for shop 54.22
Harbor Freight Tools 1013012023 I yr replacement warraniy 9.98
Total Harbor Freight Tools: 64.20
Harper Motors
Harper Motors 10/30/2023  Old Unit 6 repairs 65.85
Harper Motors 10/30/2023  Old Urit 6 repairs 111.37
Total Harper Motors: 177.22
Health Eqguity Inc
Health Equity Inc 10/13/2023  HSA Admin Fee Oct 2023 - 6 employees 17.70
Health Equity Inc 10/13/2023  HSA Admin Fee Oct 2023 14 employees 41.30
‘Total Health Equity Inc: 59.00
Hensel Hardware
Henscl Hardware 10/03/2023  Essex shop supplies 83.37
Hensel Hardwate 10/30/2023  Asphalt sealer for TRF containment area 26.03
Hensel Hardware 10/30/2023  Materials for Collector 2 ladder installation 49,89
Hensel Hardware 10/30/2023  Door deadlateh 3.90
Total Hensel Hardware: 163.19
Humboldt County Treasurer
Hurnboldt County Treasurer 10/24/2023  Fund No 3876 Account 800870 45,611.43
Total Humboldt County Treasurer: 45,611.43
Humboldt Fence Company
Humboldt Fence Company 10/30/2023  Fence Repairs from Collector 2 rehab praject 810.39
Total Humboldt Fenee Cotmpany: 810.39

Humboldf Redwood Company, LLC
Humboldt Redwood Company, LLC 10/13/2023 Mt Pierce Lease site 320.59

Total Humboldt Redwood Company, LLC: 320.59



SEOTION 10 2.2 PAGE NO. IS

e
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District --Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report-- Page: 5
Report dates: 10/1/2023-10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023 03:52PM
Vendor Name Date Paid Description Amount Paid

Humboldt Waste Management Authority

Humboeldt Waste Management Authority 10/30/2023  dump fee to dispose of old recycling shed 122.30
Total Humboldt Waste Management Authority: 122.30

Industrial Electric

Industrial Electric 10/30/2023  Collector #2 Power and Fiber Materials 48.75

Industrial Electric 10/03/2023  Collector #2 Power and Fiber Materials 40.62
Total Industrial Electric: 89.37

Johnson's Mobile Rentals LL.C

Johnson's Mobile Rentals LLC 10/30/2023  Temporary fencing for Tesla Battery Project 232.74
Total Johnson's Mobile Rentals LLC: 232 74

Keenan Supply

Keenan Supply 10/30/2023  Ball valve for TRF hot water heater 14,95

Keenan Supply 1073072023 Meier Gaskets for Unit #3 6.27
Total Keenan Supply: 21,22

Kernen Construction

Kernen Construction 10/30/2023  Asphait repairs to Essex entrance and around new vaults in Park 904.39

Kernen Constructien 10/30/2023  Dump fee for sludge bed material 188.50
Total Kernen Construction: 1,092.89

Layne Christensen Company

Layne Christensen Compary 10/03/2023  Collector 2 Rehab work - Aug 30 - Sept 29, 2023 571,733.75
Total Layne Christensen Company: 571,733.75

Mario Palmero

Mario Palmero 10/30/2023  Per Diem for Backflow Training 11/12 - 11/17/23 425.50
Totat Maric Palmero: 425.50

MecMaster-Carr Supply

McMaster-Carr Supply 10/30/2023  Moisture-Eliminating Breather Vent 196.17
Total McMaster-Carr Supply: 196.17

Mendes Supply Company

Mendes Supply Company 10/30/2023  Essex Supplies 82.94
Total Mendes Supply Company: 8264

Mission Linen

Mission Linen 10/03/2023  Uniform Rental 135.42

Mission Linen 10/03/2023  maintenance supplies 11.28

Mission Linen 10/03/2023  Uniform Rental 110.52

Mission Linen 10/03/2023  Uniform Rental 13942

Mission Linen 10/03/2023  maintenance supplies 16.06

Mission Linen 10/03/2023  Uniform Rental 110.52

Mission Linen 10/03/2023  maintenance supplies 11.28




SECTION|0.2.a,PAGENO. |9

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District --Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report-- Page: 6
Report dates; 10/1/2023-10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023 03:52PM
Vendor Name Date Paid Description Amount Paid
Total Mission Linen: 538.50
Napa Auto Parts
Napa Auto Parts 10/30/2023  Unit 12 calipers 306.47
Napa Auto Parts 10/30/2023 Uit 12 calipers 119.35-
Napa Auto Pasts 10/30/2023  Fleef service supplies 11.92
Napa Auto Parts 10/30/2023  Unit 8 Batieries 544.48
Napa Auto Parts 10/30/2023  Chain lube for crane cable 27.63
Total Napa Auto Parts: 77015
North Coast Laboratories
North Coast Laboratories 10/13/2023  lab tests - Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD 110.00
North Coast Laboratories 10/13/2023  lab tests - Humbolds Bay Retail 305.00
North Coast Laboratories 10/13/2023  lab tests - Humboldt Bay Retail 110.00
North Coast Laboratories 10/13/2023  lab tesis - Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD 110.00
North Coast Laboratories 10/13/2023  lab tesis - Humboldt Bay Refail 55.00
North Coast Laboratories 10/13/2023  lab tesis - Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD 53.00
North Coast Laboratories 10/13/2023  lab tests - Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD 110.00
North Coast Laboratories 10/113/2023  lab tests - Humboldt Bay Reiail 110.00
North Coast Laboratories 10/13/2023  lab tests - Humbolds Bay Retail 35.00
North Coast Laboratoties 10/13/2023  [ab tests - Humboldt Bay Retail 55.00
North Coast Laboratories 10/13/2023  lab tests - Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD 75.00
Total North Coast Laboratories: 1,150.00
Northern California Safety Consortium
Northern California Safety Consortinm 10/30/2023  monthly membership fee - October 2023 75,00
Total Northern California Safety Consortium; 75.00
Oceu-Med, Lid
Occu-Med, Ltd 10/18/2023  Pre-employment physical - Accounting Tech I 320.82
Total Occu-Med, Lid: 320.82
O'Connor & Company
O'Connor & Company 10/03/2023  Analyze equily difference 200.00
Total O'Connor & Company: 200.00
Optimum/Sudden Link
Optimum/Sudden Link 10/05/2023  Essex internet 251.56
Optimum/Sudden Link 10/05/2023  Essex Phones 53.85
Optimum/Sudden Link 10/05/2023  Eureka Internet 20945
Optimum/Sudden Link 10/05/2023  Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD Internet 33333
Optimum/Sudden Link 10/04/2023  TRF Internet 29.93
Optimumn/Sudden Link 10/04/2023  TRF Internet - Blue Lake SCADA Monitoring 59.84
OptimunySudden Link 10/04/2023  TRF Inierne! - Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD 55.84
Total Optimum/Sudden Link: 997.80
PACE Engineering, Inc.
PACE Engineering, Inc. 10/13/2023  TRF Generalor Project 28,866.48
PACE Engineering, Inc. 10/13/2023  TRF Generator Project 25,751.66

PACE Engineering, Inc. 10/13/2023  TRF Generator Project 6,815.75




SECTION }0.7. G PAGENO, 20

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District --Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report-- Page: 7
Report dates: 10/1/2023-10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023 03:52PM
Vendor Name Date Paid Description Amount Paid

Total PACE Engineering, Inc.: 61,433.89

Pacific Gas & Electric Co.

Pacific Gas & Electric Co, 10/05/2023  Fureka Office 60.84

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/05/2023  Jackson Ranch Rectifier 18.97-

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/05/2023  HWY 299 Reciifier 7.36

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/05/2023  West End Road Rectifler 146.41

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/05/2023 TRF 3,978.83

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/05/2023  Ruth Hydro Valve Control 10.47-

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/05/2023  Ruth Hydro 12.76

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/05/2023  Samoa Booster Pump Siation 1,258.85

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/05/2023  Samoa Dial Station 28.54-

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/30/2023  Ruth Bunkhouse 8.95

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 10/30/2023  Ruth HO 88,90
Total Pacific Gas & Electric Co.: 5,504,92

Peterson Tractor Co.

Peterson Tractor Co. 10/30/2023  Contract #24-0413 Troubleshoot Cat 322 1,420.44
Total Peterson Tractor Co.: 1,420.44

Pierson Building Center

Pierson Building Center 10/30/2023  Electrical Office Project 108.12
Total Piersen Building Center: 108.12

Purchase Power

Purchase Power 10/13/2023  Postage Refill 604.50
Total Purchase Power: 604.50

Recology Arcata

Recology Arcata 10/13/2023  Essex Garbage/Recycling Service - Sept 2023 77772
Total Recology Arcala: 777.72

Recology Humboldt County

Recology [Humboeldt County 10/13/2023  Eureka office garbage/recycling service - Sept 2023 105.52
Total Recology Humboldt County: 105.52

Rogers Machinery Company, Inc

Rogers Machinery Company, Inc 10/30/2023  spare rapid mix pump for TRF 6,008.75
Total Rogers Machinery Company, Inc: 6,008.75

Security Lock & Alarm

Security Lock & Alarm 10/03/2023  Remove broken key at TRF 80.00
Total Security Lock & Alarm: : 80.00

Streamline

Streamline 10/20/2023  Website maintenance membership fee 2/1-3/1/23 450,00



SECTION {0 2., PAGE NO._2.|

Hutnboldt Bay Municipal Water District --Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report-- Page: 8
Report dates: 10/1/2023-10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023 03:52PM
Vendor Name Date Paid Description Amount Paid
Total Streamline: 450,00
Thateher Company, Inc
Thatcher Company, Inc 10/30/2023  Thatcher Credit Balance 2,185.00-
Thatcher Company, Inc 10/30/2023  Chlorine - 3 CYL 12,599.64
Thatcher Company, Inc 10/30/2023  Chiorine - 1 CYL 4,461.13
Thatcher Company, Inc 10/30/2023  TRF chemicals 13,453.26
Thatcher Company, Inc 1073072023 Chlowrine - 1 CYL 4,517.33
Thatcher Company, Inc 10/30/2023  deposit return - 3 CYL 3,000.00-
Thatcher Company, Inc 1013072023 deposit return - 1 CYL 1,000.00-
Thatcher Company, Inc 10/30/2023  deposit return - [ CYL 1,000.00-
Thatcher Company, Inc 10/30/2023  Thatcher Credit Balance 5,877.34-
Total Thatcher Company, Inc: 21,965.02
The Mill Yard
The Mill Yard 10/03/2023  Electrical Shop Offices Project 48.58
The Mill Yard ) 10/30/2023  Efectrical Shop QOffices Project 30.61
The Mill Yard 10/30/2023  Park 1 fencing repairs from collector 2 rehab 77.99
The Mill Yard 10/30/2023  FElecirical Shop Offices Project 90.59
Total The Mill Yard: 247717
The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP
The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP 10/05/2023  Legal Services- Sept 2023 868.00
Total The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP: 868.00
Thomas Home Center
Thomas Home Center 10/30/2023  Flooring scraper 29.08
Total Thomas Home Center: 29.08
Thrifty Supply
Thrifty Supply 10/30/2023  Repair clamp for inventory 617.26
Thrifty Supply 10/30/2023  Plumbing Supplies 127.81
Thrifty Supply 10/30/2023  Plumbing Supplies 262.02
Thrifty Supply 10/30/2023  Plumbing Supplies 3.02
Thrilty Supply 10/30/2023  Plumbing Supplies 49,71
Thrifty Supply 10/30/2023  Toilet for Eureka Office 300.63
Thrifty Supply 10/30/2023  Toilet seat refurn 63.47-
Total Thrifty Supply: 1,326.98
Trinity County General Services
Trinity County General Services 10/24/2023  Pickett Peak site lease 257.50
Total Trinity County General Services: 257.50
Trinity County Solid Waste
Trinity County Solid Waste 10/18/2023  Ruth HQ dump fees 6.75
Trinity County Solid Waste 10/18/2023  Ruth Hydro dump fzes 6.75

Total Trinity County Solid Waste: 13.50




SECTIONI0. 2. PAGE NO, 22

--Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report-- Page: 9
Report dates: 10/1/2023-10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023 03:52PM

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Vendor Name

Date Paid

Description Amount Paid

U.S. Bank Cerporate Payment System
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Eureka Office Supplies 41.31
11.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Eureka Office Supplies 19.17-
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Eureka Office Supplies 5.01-
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Reverse Job Posting - charged in error 375.00~
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Webinar Training: Meeting Minutes and Role of the Clerk 67.00
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  RLCSD/HBMWD Joint Board Meeting Lunch 609.96
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Shipping container for particle counters calibration 379.23
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Hydro Plant Wicket Gate & fIBV Signal Updgrade 1,224.75
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Essex Office Supplies 169.03
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  ADA compliant picnic tables for Ruth Bunkhouse 1,388.25
1.8, Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Utility Box Light Project 693.53
U.S. Bank Corporaie Payment System 10/18/2023  Essex qffice supplies 4942
U.8. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Ulility Light Box Project 1,120.08
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Tech Supplies 171.23
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Hydro Plant Wicket Gate & HBV Signal Upgrade 5,920.51
U.8. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Essex office supplies 196.05
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Essex office supplies 141.63
.8, Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Unility Billing Post Cards 89.70
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023 O & M Tech Job Posting 40.00
1.8, Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023 HQ Remodel 256.64
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Ruth Office Supplies 50.23
U.8. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Gas for Districi Boat 85.00
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Build.com credit memo 94,51~
U.8. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Call-em-all Credits 45.00
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Fwreka office supplies 52,49
1.8. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023 O & M Tech Job Posting 155.00
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023 O & M Tech Job Posting 60.00
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Utilizy Billing Post Cards 76.14
U.S8. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Utility Billing Post Cards 195,77
U.8. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Ice deflectors for Ruth HQ roof 27598
U.8. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Quick [inks for log boom secondary chains 37.92
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Essex office supplies 242.00
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Upgrade 2017 and 2020 TurboCad software 299.97
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023 O & M Tech Job Posting 60.00
1.8, Bank Corporate Payment System 10/18/2023  Spendwise -~ August 2023 79.70

Total U.S. Bank Corporate Payment Systern: 13,779.83
United Rentals, In¢
United Rentals, Inc 10/30/2023  Underground power to collector 2 - phase 3 516.12
United Rentals, Inc 10/30/2023  Underground power io collector 2 - phase 3 130.38
Uniied Rentals, Inc 10/30/2023  Underground power to collector 2 - phase 3 130.37-

Total United Rentals, Inc: 510.13
US Security Supply
US Security Supply 10/30/2023  Padlocks 1,0532.74

Total US Security Supply: 1,052.74
USDA Forest Service
USDA Forest Service 10/30/2023  US Forest Service Special Use Permit 12,963.38
USDA Forest Service 10/30/2023  US Forest Service Special Use Permit 12,963.38

Total USDA Forest Service:

25,926.76




SECTION (0.2.9, PAGE NO,_9->

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

--Monthly Expenses by Vendor Detail Report--
Report dates: 10/1/2023-10/31/2023

Page: 10
Oct 30,2023 03:52PM

Vendor Name Date Paid Description Amount Paid
VYALEOQO Networks
VALEQ Networks 10/30/2023  Eureka office monthly computer mainienance 2,130.79
Total VALEQ Networks: 2,130.79
Valley Pacific Petroleum Sery, Inc
Valley Pacific Petroleum Serv. Inc 10/03/2023  Cardlock Pumping & Control 839.16
Valley Pacific Petroleum Serv. Inc 10/03/2023  Cardlock Water Quality 859.16
Valley Pacific Petroleum Serv, Inc 10/03/2023  Cardlock Maintenance 859.16
Valley Pacific Petroleum Serv. Inc 10/03/2023  Cardlock HB Retail 223,38
Valley Pacific Petroleum Serv. Inc 10/03/2023  Cardlock FGCSD 635,78
Valley Pacific Petroleum Serv. Inc 10/30/2023  Dyed Diesel Sales Tax Credit 767.42-
Valley Pacific Petraleum Serv. Inc 10/30/2023  Fuel for Ruth HQ 550.64
Valley Pacific Petroleum Serv. Inc 10/30/2023  Fuel for Ruth HQ 550.63
Total Valley Pacific Petroleum Serv, Ing: 3,770.49
Verizon Wireless
Verizon Wireless 10/13/2023  General Marager 39.38
Verizon Wireless 10/13/2023  Ruth Area 27.55
Verizon Wireless 10/13/2023  Humboldt Bay Retail 17.17
Verizon Wircless 10/13/2023  Fieldbrook Glendale CSD 48.87
Verizon Wireless 10/13/2023  Humboldt Bay IPAD 9.88
Verizon Wireless 10/13/2023  Fieldbrook Glendale CSD IPAD 28.13
Verizon Wireless 10/13/2023  Ruth Area 14.06
Verizon Wireless 10/13/2023  Ruth Hydro 14.07
Total Vetizon Wireless: 199.11
Watt's Cleaning Services
Watt's Cleaning Setvices 10/03/2023  Eureka office cleaning 9/13 & 9/27/23 278.00
Total Watt's Clcaning Services: 278.00

Grand Totals:

998,166.89




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTAL - FIELDBROOK-GLENDALE CSD CONTRACT SERVICES

MONTHLY BILLING/EXPENSE REPORT
October 31, 2023

Contract Services Billing

Month-to-Date

SECTION!0- 2. PAGENO, !

S ——— s

Year-to-Date

Administrative 1,194.64 4,778.56
Indirect/Overhead 946.53 3,786.12
Maintenance/Operations/Supplies 25,437.97 87.957.66
Total FB-GCSD Billing 27,579.14 96,522.34

Contract Services Expenses
Employee Wages 13,933.85 44,160.73
Employee Benefits 6,279.28 20,995.98
Operations & Maintenance Expenses 635.78 2,300.42
General & Administrative Expenses 678.14 8,494.44
Total FB-GCSD Expenses 21,527.05 75,951.57
NET Fieldbrook Contract Services 6,052.09 20,570.77




OPERATIONS




SECTION/.2-GPAGEND. [

Memo to: HBMWD Board of Directors

From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent

Date: November 1, 2023

Subject: Essex/Ruth October 2023 Operational Report

Upper Mad River, Ruth Lake, and Hydro Plant

1.  Flow at Mad River above Ruth Reservoir (Zenia Bridge) averaged 5 cfs for the month
with a high of 7 ¢fs on October 28™

2. The conditions at Ruth Lake for October were as follows:
The lake level on October 31 was 2644 .12 feet which is:

o 244 feet lower than September 30%, 2023
o 1.74 feet higher than October 31%, 2022

¢ 3.13 feet higher than the ten-year average
* 988 feet below the spillway

3. Ruth Headquarters recorded 1.49 inches of rainfall for October

4. Ruth Hydro produced 0 KWh in October. There 1s an ongoing shut down due to PGE
issue for the entire month with 148,800 KWh estimated lost production

5. The lake discharge averaged 42 cfs with a high of 42.4 cfs on October 2™
Lower Mad River, Winzler Control, and TRF

6. The river at Winzler Control Center, for October, had an average flow of 75 ¢fs. The
river flow was at a high of 110 ¢fs on October 18™

7. The domestic water conditions were as follows:

a. The domestic water turbidity average was 0.07 NTU, which meets Public Health
Secondary Standards

b. As of October 31%, we pumped 225.519 MG at an average of 7.275 MGD
¢. The maximum metered daily municipal use was 8.417 MG on October 12

8. The TRF is online since October 13"; conditions for October were as follows:

a. Average monthly source water turbidity was 0.88 NTU
b. Average monthly filtered water turbidity was 0.07 NTU
c. Number of filter backwashes for the month was 55

9. October 3~ 6™ — Wahlund crew on-site pulling new conductors to Collector 2.
10. October 5™ — Safety meetings

a. Bloodborne Pathogens

b. Rigging Safety



11.
12.

13.
14.

15.

16.
17.

18.

19,

20.
21.

22,

23.

SECTIONi0. 2.0, PAGENO. X

October 10™ — Power issues at the Office. Turn out to be a bad connection at the
PG&E transformer.
October 11" — Went to Ruth to do a bail test on Piezo Well 8
October 12" — TRF brought online
October 16
a. Series of earthquakes in the early morning (4.1M - 4,9M) — Larry didn’t feel
them at Ruth but did extra precaution inspection at the dam.
b. Tesla on-site doing testing — didn’t go really well.
October 17" — PACE teams meeting with Essex staff regarding generator
communication requirements
October 18" — DWR tour of Collector 2 rehabilitation project site
October 20™
a. PG&E Teams Meeting Regarding hydro plant coming back online — Still
estimated to be the end of November or Early December. Worst case

February 2024.
b. Layne finish work on Collector 2. Starting de-mob and clean up.
October 23

a. New O&M Techs first day
b. Wahlund started pulling in new conductors at the Hydro plant
c. Istayed late helping Layne get a stuck Semi truck out of the park.
October 24" — Maintenance crew and Layne crane operator started installing
pumps on Collector 2.
October 27" — Finished pump installations at 2200 — Test ran locally at the well
October 28" — Saturday
a. Found the pumps would not start via SCADA — Called in an E&I Tech to
investigate - Repaired
b. Operations flushed collector 2 to the TRF Washwater basins
October 30
a. Layne started post project flow testing
b. ACE (Aecrial Crane Experts) on-site for annual crane inspections and
certification.
Current and Ongoing Projects
a. Collector 2 underground power and communications project — Complete for
now, waiting for surge arrestors.
b. Tesla battery bank projects
i, Essex project in progress, operational programming in process, doing
more testing soon, waiting for PG&E PTO.

“¢. OSHG — Equipment procurement and planning in progress, Brine tank

should be shipped soon,
d. Routine annual equipment maintenance and services.



SECTION (0.2 0 PAGENO, 2

[2A27 Aem|[1dS mmmmme

Ay Jea)
0T uoleAs|3 e —

|
‘7207 UOIEAD|T Y] ———

b}
‘€707 UONBAD|F DNE]——

aled
B = =
U < - i - R - R < = I
ET,.._M_LH..Z./ZIIZ_LZ_LM_L..@.,ZK._:Z:.WZ_LZ_LZ_LH
5 N R PR T OGN 0 N E 9 W o @ o ouoe o Mo ouoE
_,__m__g__w__"___m__m____“ O.mNmN
0°0E9C
0°SE9C
0'0%9¢

0°St9¢

0'059¢

0'599¢

0°099¢

uoIleA3|] e Yiny

0°999¢




SECTION (0.3 < PAGE NO._f

(%] wvy
ks] G
o0 o
@ o B o P
. - 2 << o
~ ~
[«J] (] L O
25 25 5~
& Tz @ 2
25 2 5 3
2 N = N [y
<)
=T4]
o
—
[aa]
m
c L ST/L
Q
N
]
(v°]
(o)
(19
e
! -
o o (=] o (@] o o
=] o o o o o
o ) =] =] o ]
o© i) = 1) ~ —

sj2 - moj4

Date




SECTION [03.Q, PAGE NO, O

dag Sny nr

oc

€T, -
£Q, 98eJaAY JBDA J21BNN
SAIIBINWND |BILIO]S|H s

or

28elany anne|nwWN)
13 I121BMN O =
09

anEINWND
£7-7C 13\ Jale 08

oot

anneInwnd
Z-€7 JBIA 19BN e

0cT

20T-€T0T 1e3A J9IEM - ||BjUIRY YINY

sayau|




SECTIONLQ. 2.0, PAGE NO,_(Z

512 ‘mol4
1aA1y BAY JBBA OT ~

532 ‘e8pug
662 18 MO[4 ZZ0T ===

sj0 ‘@8pug
66C 18 MO|4 ECOT =

N
131y 8AY JB3A OT ——

3
TZ0T |PADT JDNIY e

H
‘€207 |3A97 Janiy

SJ0 ‘MO|4 J3A1Y

aleqd
ol - -
N EL BE B2 © o N N
U S el el R - T T S o
W B M R~ NSNS NRPN e
eSS RERENIGTGESERGE G
0 I ._IE‘_—A_.___,
0009 A
0000T
000ST
0000Z -
000SC -
0000€ -
000S€E A
MO|4 pue [9A37 JaAlY

0000t

ST

0c¢

S¢

0t

St

34 ‘|ana7 Janly




SECTION 10.3.C( PAGENO, 7

o D &
2 &)
@@Q OV.NA.. S JOO OV\UJ.Q Qoﬁl & . & A\/W ﬁ/¥ o\rUV hr/V@f_
N X (S O NN O
A A S S N
1 1 1 1 1 | 1 ! i ] 1 I Il O
000°000°T
BAIIBINWINY :3FRIAAY JBDA U | s OOOdOO.N
aAlleNWND (TZ0Z UONINpoid oJpAH — OOO.OOO~m
AANBINWNY (ZZOZ UOIINPOI] OIPAH s
000000t
3ANBINWND (EZ0Z UOHINPOIJ OIPAH s
000°000°S
0000009

UMY @AI3e[NWIND :u013dNpPOoId 04pAH yiny




SECTION |0. 2., PAGE NO. ]

Memo to: Board of Directors

From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent
Date: November 1, 2023

Subject: Surplus equipment request

The District has replaced the following equipment. We would like to declare these items
as surplus.

1. Limitorque valve actuator and gear box

2. Spare 208V motor for Limitorque valve actuator
3. Schneider Electric VFD drive, with panel face.




MANAGEMENT



{£) suepluYd3| IduBUBIUIRIN/SUORIRAD

441 10 sne1s uo Supuadap

10sia13dng suoperadQ Jalem Jo tosiasdng
JoueuauIe 0] Wodal syds] uen/sE0

(2} SIMLIOAN SOUBUIIIBIA

(Z) sy29) IUaWNIsu] fueuISlg
{z} s21ueyD2 SoUBUSIUIEIN

(T) Josialadng acueuIUIBIA] JUBISISSY

(1) 11Evadg BoiAeg Jswoisn/suoneladg
(1) 1s1[e102dg suonersd( Ja1EM
(1) losiuedng suonelsdo Jelepn Juejsissy

()

zaJiey) uely
Josiauadng sauBUILULRIA

olalljed OLBIA
{1} (horesedg Jo1UD)

Josiasadng suonelado 1alemn

(T) day yny/do1esad 0IpAH

y

I
_ (Bunnsuo)) “
I sesuwibuz josig !

(1) 11 1sA[pUY Aioenbey
(1) | yoa L Bujunoavy
(L} 1 yos k: Bununoooy

(L} 11sijeI08ds Bugunooay

(Burynsuog)
Joypny JousIq

JeBeuepy [elauag)

7 :
uespineq 212@ :
(1) juepusptiedng 4 - (1) 1aBeuepy ssaulsng
Sl m. .
3 \; o b P
— "
(1) Adetoudas /l\\/ <
pleog ® 1UBISISSY SAIINISE
T ml lllllllllll =
(1) | (Bugnsuod) |
" faulony o3SIa |
_

510192110 JO pieog

12113S1q 193 |edidiunial Aeg 1pjoquiny




L . SECTIONjo-4b
Dams within jurisdiction of the state of California with respecto sa

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES

DIVISION OF SAFETY OF DAMS

Jurisdictional Dams

Listed Alphabetically by County
Page 110 0f 117

Dam Dam Name s Dam |Reservoir | Certified ¢ | Condition |™
Number et Name Height | Capacity Status Assessment yCaunty
National : " Crest Dam Downstream Reservoir Year

Latitude Longitude i ;
ID No. g e Rype Length Type Hazard Restrictions Built

1072-0 Ewing Trinity County \Waterworks District 1 83 887 Certified Satisfactory Trinity
CAQ0903 40.56 -123.17 County, county agency, or county district 550 ERRK High No 1972

219-0  Jones Ranch Blue Planet, LLC 36 58 Certified 'Satisfactor'y [ Tnmty
CA01258 40.80  -123.49 Private company, corporation, LLC, partnership 350 ERTH  Significant " No 1980

1013-0 |Robert W. Matthews Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District 150 51,800  Certified Satisfactory ) Trinity
CAD0833 40.37 -123.43 Park, sanitation, utility, or water district 630 ERTH High 1962

Count: 3

%?5 NO._|

|72



October 30, 2023

TO: All Chamber Members

The Greates Eureka Chambaer of Comimedca

Business HQ

MEMORANDUM

FROM: Nancy Olson, President/CEQ

SECTIONIQ:-A & PAGE NO. l

RE: NOMINEES FOR 2024 EUREKA CHAMBER BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Six local business leaders have been nominated for seats on the 2024 Eureka Chamber Board
of Directors, The Chamber Nominating Committee selected the following members for

consideration;

¢ Meghann Broadstock, VP/Branch Manager & Commercial Loan Officer, Redwood

Capital Bank

+ Blair Brown, President Property Management, The Danco Group
+ Ethan "Red Eagle” Lawton, Tribal Liaison, Associate Planner, SHN
¢ Gabrielle Long, Owner, A Taste of Bim and The Grind Cafe

s Kate Newby, Property Manager, Bayshore Mall
» Basil Saied, Chief Financial Officer, Providence

Pursuant to the Chamber by-laws, members in good standing, who wish to be added to the list
of nominees for a position on the Board of Directors may do so by submitting a petition with
the names of thirty-seven (37) qualifiad members of the Chamber attesting to their support of
the nominee, on or before November 9, 2023, Thereafter, ballots will be emailed to the voting
members following this required ten {10} day filing period for nomination by petlition.

Ballots must be completed no later than 5:00 pm on December 1, 2023, Only those hallots
returned by the designated Voting Member will be counted.




secTioN [0 4. Al PAGE NO._|

Headwaters Conference Call
November 3, 2023
1 pm - 2pm (PST)
https://acwa.zoom.us/j/812263928952pwd=tARZzaFE4fyfHfr8b9ba5GStIRU3NX. 1
Meeting ID; 812 2639 2895
Passcode: 731642

Agenda:

[ Introductions and Call to Order, Willie Whittlesey
Il Local Updates, Willie Whittlesey

ll. Federal Update, David Reynolds and Jay Tanner
Iv. State Update, Julio Hall

V. ACWA Fall Conference Meeting — Tuesday Committee Day Lunch Break (11/29 @ 12:15-
1:30pm)
Attachments:

- Wildland Fire Mitigation and Management Commission Report to Congress




: PAGE NO.__2.

SECTION ().

£207 40 1V
AJ1S2104 UC 3UWILLIOIGNS (tz-vo-d) | ASojouydsy Bunysy
Ajuo |4 €702/52/9 9U1 01 paiiasey | Oepe|eA plaeq day anplim Adusdiswig 68¢E W'H
'$224N0S9Y |eInieN pue €207
A8Jau3] uo saIWIUIO) 3] 10 Y UOIIUBASAd
voddng €202/2¢/9 01 paiJajal pue ao1m] peay | (LN-Y) 937 AN "USS | SJLPJIM Jlydouiseled ZETTS
(02
-Q) 12uuag [2eydiN €70¢
*AI153.104 U0 231WWooaNs uas / (9T-v2 J0 19y uoialod €G]T
yoddns €207/87/L Ay 0} pauiayey -Q) ©350D wir "day si3empesy | 'S/8TOF ‘WH
*paulIuU0d
20D JY3 JO uonaIpsun|
3Y3 UIYyuMm ||ej SE suoisiaoad
Uons 10 UOIRJapISunD
10} 95BD 2ES U]
djesds syl AQ paulwialap
Ajpuanbasgns sq 03 polad €207 J0
B 10} ‘592JN0S3Y |einleN uo 10V UOIIBZLIOYINESY
J9IWWOD 3Y] 03 uollppe weldoid UcieI0lsay
Ul pue ‘24N ndu8y uo (z-02 adeaspuen
€20Z/9T/9 | @SMWWO) 3yl 01 paliayay | -} ssndaN sof 'day | 15204 SAIlRIOqE[|0D 6TV U'H




PAGE NO._2__

SECTION_(Q .

*£/-8TT ‘ON WodaJ

US1IIA UYMW T91THISONS B

4O 3UN1eU 3y} Ul JUBWpUSWE
uE YHM UJYSUEelA) JO1RUSS Ag
panoday 's22inosay [eunien

(LIN-Y)

-sasodund tay10

Joj pue ‘s10y asol}
Japun ue(d asn pue|
20 uejd uswadeusw
22JNn0sal pue pue|

e Japun paJnbal

10U S1 UDIIBYNSUCD
1O UolIzeIuIR Yaiym
Japun s20uUeiswWnaID
Jo} apinoad

019/6T 0 1OV
uawageuey pue
Adljod puet [eiapad
a1 pue /6T 40 PV
Suiuueld s82inosay
3|gemausy
pugRsSuey

pue 159104

Ajuo A4 €coz/se/L pue A3isu3 uo 231juIW0) seuleq IAals "ues |y} puswe 01 |19 ¥ ObST 'S
‘pauiaouod
J9NIULWOD Y3 JO ucnaipsun|
a3 ulyHMm (e} se suolsiaoad
yans o uoiielapisuod
10} 3583 yJes ul
“Jaeads 2yl Ag pauluuaiap
Ajuanbasqgns aq 01 1oy uoneziwpdo
pousd e o) ‘@umyniusdy uo pue ‘UoI1eZIUIBPOIN
2911WIWOD 2Y3 0] UoIIppE ‘uolienieay
Ui pue 'saunosay {eInleyN uo {6£-vD ‘uoileisuowa(g
Ajuo A4 €z0z/17/9 | esmwwos ayi o1 paussey | -d) wint SunoA day | ASojouydal SMuplim SETY WH




SECTION J0. Y.l _ﬁ&%& NO. &

Executive Summary

no longer simply a land management problem, nor is it isolated to certain regions or

geographies. Across this nation, increasingly destructive wildfires are posing ever-greater
threats to human lives, livelihoods, and public safety. Further, the drivers of the wildfire crisis
are numerous and complex, and themselves are influenced by multiple forces and factors at all
scales. Despite widespread recognition of this crisis and decades of concerted action, wildfire
impacts continue to mount.

The wildfire crisis in the United States is urgent, severe, and far reaching. Wildfire is

Since the turn of the century, wildfires have destroyed tens of thousands of structures and
threatened nearly 2,000 communities in dozens of states. With tragic frequency, wildfires are
turning into highly destructive urban conflagrations, decimating entire neighborhoods and
communities and, in some cases, resulting in loss of life. Reminders of the urgency of the need
to address this crisis are all too frequent, from the smoky skies that blanketed communities
across the eastern United States in the summer of 2023, to, just weeks later, the devastating
wildfire in Hawai'i that became the nation’s deadliest in more than a century.

Increasingly intense and destructive wildfires also have profound impacts on our natural
landscapes and the ecosystem services they provide. Wildfires are wiping out vegetation and
habitats, and creating water repellant soils, all of which make landscapes highly vulnerable to
post-fire flooding, erosion, and debris flows that pose extensive challenges for drinking water
systems, pubiic safety, community infrastructure, and more. Wildfire is also becoming an
emergent threat in areas that have little or no history of wildfire and during times of year when
landscapes typically have not burned.

While the total costs of wildfire are, at present, impaossible to fuily tabulate, federal suppression
efforts now total well over $2.5 billion per year. State, local, and Tribal governments also spend
unaccounted sums each year on suppression. Yet, these are but a fraction of overall costs and
josses. Federal agencies estimate that the total cost of wildfire nation-wide is “on the order of
tens to hundreds of billions of dollars per year” (Crowley et al., 2023, p.8). Much of this financial
toll is borne at the community level and often quickly overwhelms local resources. Workforces
too are strained by increasingly demanding wildfire seasons. In addition to heavy workloads,
those working in fire face barriers related to pay, mental and physical health, work-life balance,
and other issues.




SECTION |0.M-d _ PAGENO. 5

Though already critical, the nature and impacts of wildfire are only expected to worsen. Wildfire
frequency, size, and severity is projected to increase, along with the multitude of associated
impacts, from smoke emissions to watershed function.

In the face of this national challenge, Congress took bipartisan action to establish the Wildland
Fire Mitigation and Management Commission through the 2021 Infrastructure Investment

and Jobs Act (Pub. L. No. 117-58; § 40803, 135 Stat. 1097 (2021)). The legislation charged
the 50-member Commission with the ambitious task of creating policy recommendations to
address nearly every facet of the wildfire crisis, including mitigation, management, and post-
fire rehabilitation and recovery. Recognizing the urgency of the crisis, the Commission was

given just a single year to conduct a sweeping review of the wildfire system and produce a
comprehensive set of policy priorities.

The suite of recommendations that follow outline a new approach to wildfire, one that is
proactive in nature, better matched to the immense scale and scope of the crisis, and more
reflective of the multi-scalar, interrelated nature of the overall system. Importantly, just as there is
no single cause of this crisis, there is no single solution.

Among the core themes of the Commission’s recommendations is a call for greater coordination,
interoperability, collaboration, and, in some cases, simplification within the wildfire system. This

Forest Service Law Enforcement & Investigations team was deployed for support after
the Camp Fire swept through nearby communities including Paradise, Magalia and
Concow in Northern California, 2018.

Tanner Hembree, Forest Service

M : _??""-"s :;.
B A L o
L PR

Executive Summary




SECTION /0.4. | PAGENO._G_.

includes increased integration between programs, policies, and workforces as well as improved
incorporation of issues and sectors that have traditionally been set apart from the wildland fire
discourse or handied disparately. Solutions also must better address fundamental connections
and interactions between the temporal phases of wildfire, including pre-fire risk reduction and
post-fire recovery, and between communities, landscapes, public health, utilities, research

and technology, and other impacted sectors. Given the complexity of this space, overarching
systems for accountability, data-driven decision-making and adaptive management are crucial
to support efficacy and continued progress toward long-term change.

The Commission also found broad agreement that federal agencies alone should not — and

in fact, cannot — effectively address a challenge of this magnitude. The whole of society must
be Involved. This requires meaningful shared decision-making with a range of entities — Tribal,
state, and local governments; residents; non-governmental organizations; private industry; the
research community; and others — at every level. Governance systems and structures must

be more inclusive of non-federal entities and must involve greater collaboration, both among
federal agencies and between federal agencies and non-federal governments, organizations,
and communities. In addition to, and in support of, greater collaboration, partners at all scales
should be empowered — through funding, decision-making tools, program flexibilities, and other
means — to identify and implement locally driven solutions.

Also critical is the need to shift our approach toward proactive actions intended to better prepare
for wildfire impacts, reduce those impacts, and build resilience for the future. For too long, we
have relied on a reactionary system that has led to growing costs and losses without effectively
addressing overall wildfire hazard and risk. Only through significant investments in proactive
planning, mitigation, risk reduction, and the workforce needed to accomplish these tasks can
we break the current cycle of increasingly severe wildfire risk, damage, and loss. Importantly,
these upfront actions must encompass both the built and natural environment. While significant
funding has been put toward hazardous fuels reduction work in recent years, there have not
been equivalent national-scale investments and efforts to reduce risk in the built environment
and prepare communities before, during, and after a wildfire. Addressing this gap is essential to
a comprehensive approach to wildfire.

Solutions must not only reorient towards proactive approaches but must be at a scale that is
commensurate with the crisis — one that costs the nation tens to hundreds of billions of dollars
per year, and untold non-financial impacts. The wildfire crisis cannot be seen as a problem
solvable by a single pulse of funding; it is a challenge requiring sustained investment and
commitment.

It also must be acknowledged that while fire is central to this crisis, it is also a critical part of the
solution. Beneficial fire — including prescribed burning, cultural burning, and wildfire managed
for resource objectives — is necessary to restore fire-adapted ecosystems and reduce the

risk of high-severity wildfires that pose a significant threat to communities. Policy change is
needed to enable a new relationship with fire, one in which fire is no longer an existential risk to
communities and landscapes, but instead an integral and beneficial component of our human
and natural systems.

The Commission urges Congress to take swift action to advance the holistic solutions needed
to reduce the risk of wildfire to the nation. Only through comprehensive action can we hope to
prepare for the wildfires of today and, critically, the wildfires of tomorrow.

Executive Summary




sECTION_(0-“4-of _ PaGENO._ 7

Table of Contents

Executive SUMMAIY ......ccccconimmiinisemrrmnsssisssssensssssssssmsanssssssssssssssssssnssasas 1
Defining the CrisSisS . mim s sss s smssess s ensens 5
The Work of the CommISSION........coic v e e 10
ADbOUE the COMMISSION.........evviivsevtiiis et et e eesaette s s r e eenesien e e s v e 11

A Path for the Future: Critical Themes.......c.ccce e e e cceenmniininn 15
Urgent New ApProaches ... cccce e v ss s sen s an s e s e 16
Supporting Collaboration. ... 18
Shifting from Reactive to Proactive ........cceovcimrirccies e 19
Enabling Beneficial Fire ..ot e 21
Supporting and Expanding the Workforce ..........ccooviivcieiccic e, 24
Modernizing Tools for Informed Decision-making .........coocorenivnmnicnimniiennnennns 25
Investing in RESIHENCE ..o e e ren e e 28
Commission Recommendations..........ccccce i cr i ecm e 30
Chapter 1: Creating the Foundation for Success......cccccccrereeiennane 32
In the BUilt ENVIFONMENT ... e e e re e e e 33
COMMUNILY PlaNNING .....ooveeeeeeee ettt et see e s st e e e er s e e e e s esae e 41

Risk Reduction for SITUCIUIES .......ccueveveueeeieii et ces e ecece e e esseaesesrns 46

EOCTHIC UHIITEIOS evvesee et ee e e e anvareavarsnsnsnrennsennrensnsesnvsnssesnres 49




sECTION 1O d PAGE ND,_2

Mitigation Through Mechanical Treatments.........ccccovivcevcinvscviveriireeisreeceans 63
Mitigation TRrough Grazing .........ccoveceeeeeccricecieneieseriiersereiereeressseeses s arssrnsens 69
AlTLands ACHONS .....c.cvuriiviiiiiiniacieii sttt st ertittn e s s sine s s e s e r s e re s snasn s 71
Enabling Indigenous SteWardsShip ......c.cvviniiisiicireiiiii i eivie v e ssesesenins 73
Permitting and Profect Planting ...........veeeeceeieeeieeirerevereviveeeeessnisseeseeinnes 78
Chapter 2: Protecting Public Health..........c.cccoccmicinniininninnenncncinnees 83
Safeguarding Community Water Supplies ......ccccccvevcn i 85
Increasing Public Health Capacity ..o, 91
Addressing SMOKE IMPEACES ....oocuieiiiiiiiiiiei e e e 93
Improving Air Quality Alerts .......ccoe e e 101
Supporting EVACUBLION ....vvovev e eeeeeseseeeeseeseeseseseessessesesesesessessesasssasesseeesseesensos 103
Chapter 3: Responding to Fire....ccccmeiee e sce e ss e cre e e 106
Improved Response Coordination Frameworks...........cccocvivn v 107
Qualifications and TrainiNg........cccocceeeeee e e e 117
Planning for Incident RESPONSE .......cooeiiieec s 122
Chapter 4: Recovering for Resilience............cccceeumrmnneecinnnnininnn 125
Planning for POSE-FIre ... e e e 134
Recovery in the Built Environment ... e 136
HOUSING SOMUHIONS ... .eeeeeeeeie et eeeseeii e ierene st sves s sssesassres s ssa e a s s neeans 139
Recovery in the Natural Environment ... 144
Emerging Best PractiCces. ... e reae e 154
Chapter 5: Building a Comprehensive Workforce.........ccceeernrrnnnes 157
Recruiting & Retaining the WOrkforce ... e 162
Expanding the WOorkforce ... st er e 170

L= 1111 o 179
Protecting Health and Wellbeing .......ccocociiiiiiien e 182

Housing the WOrKfOrCe. ... et e 189




SECTION_LO.M ] vneE NO.G,_

Chapter 6: Integrating Modern Science and Technology .............. 192
Supporting On-The-Ground DeCISIONS.... ..o iiiiciieieee e e 194
Fire EnvVIronmMent CONION............eveeeeeeieis e ees ettt e e st s s v srns e s vsarasn s 194

Built Environment and Public Health .............c.ccovvvcvivoiivcenrisvnsineniee 200
Prioritizing ReSearch ... 203
Operationalizing ReSearch........vicimiiii e e 210
Acceleraling TeChNOIOGY .. e 211
Chapter 7: Investing for TOMOIrOW........commemrcmmmmcmmsmnmessninssssssnsmncasens 215
Budget Stability and Structures.......cuvureiiirni e, 218
Investment Priorities.........oo i 222
Shared INVestments ... s 229
Chapter 8: Frameworks for the Future ..c.c...cccoviviiiiiincniiiininincenancns 232
Cohesive Strategy ..o 233
Interagency Coordination .. .. e 238
COollabOratioN ..ot s 241
TFIDAI EQUILY «..eoseveereereeeseeie e sentittn et aes vt v s s n s en s e s s e s s s se s raneesneaaansasan 243
Accessibility and INCIUSIVITY....v.uuvccisieieeee ettt 245
ACCOUNTADIIIEY ...ceeeeeiiere e et 252
CONCIUSTION i e s n s s e an s am s s s s s 255
ENdnotes ....cummmeserimmmmemrenmnsnnsmns s . 257
CHatioNS ... i ——— 267
Appendix A: Acknowledgements.......cummmmammnmmmmonumnnmss s 299
Appendix B: Chapter Header Photography Credits............cueee.e.e 302
Appendix C: Abbreviations .........ccccommmmas s 303
Appendix D: Enabling Legislation ........cccovieininiinimiciencnmmncnnnns 306

Appendix E: Recommendations List ... uoommmmmonnuussunmmmsesnsanes 315




 RCEA/RREDC



633 3" Street, Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: (707) 269-1700 Toll-Free (800) 931-7232 Fax: (707) 2691777
E-mail: info@redwoodenergy.org Web: www.redwoodenergy.org

Redwood Coast Energy Authority SECTIONM PAGE NO._ |

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

NEW MEETING LOCATION

Wharfinger Building, downstairs Bay Room October 26, 2023
1 Marina Way, Eureka, CA 95501 Thursday, 3:30 p.m.

Any member of the public needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting or
access the meeting materials should email L Takefa@redwoodenergy.org or call (707) 269-
1700 at least 3 business days before the meeting. Assistive listening devices are available.

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, all writings or documents relating fo any item
on this agenda which have been provided to a majority of the Board, including those received

less than 72 hours prior to the Committee’s meeting, will be made available to the public at
www.RedwoodEnergy.org.

NOTE: Speakers wishing to distribute materials to the Board at the meeting, please provide
13 copies to the Board Clerk.

THIS IS A HYBRID IN-PERSON AND VIRTUAL MEETING.

The Board of Directors has returned to in-person hybrid meetings. When attending Board

meetings, please socially distance as much as possible and be courteous to those who choose
to wear a mask.

To participate In the meeting online, go to hifps:/is02web.zoom.us/j/81972368051. To

participate by phone, call (669) 900-6833 or (253) 215-8782. Enter webinar ID: 819 7236
8051.

To make a comment during the public comment periods, raise your hand in the online
Zoom webinar, or press star (*) 9 on your phone to raise your hand. You will continue to hear

the meeting while you wait. When it is your turn to speak, a staff member will unmute your
phone or computer. You will have 3 minutes to speak.

You may submit written public comment by email to PublicComment@redwoodenergy.org.
Please identify the agenda item number in the subject line. Comments will be included in the
meeting record but not read aloud during the meeting.

While downloading the Zoom application may provide a better meeting experience, Zoom does

not need to be installed on your computer to participate. After clicking the webinar link above,
click “start from your browser.”




RCEA October 26, 2023, Board of Directors Meeting Agenda SECTION _{ | M. O\ __ PAGE NO. [
Page 2

OPEN SESSION Call to Order

1. ROLL CALL - REMOTE DIRECTOR PARTICIPATION

1.1'. Approve teleconference participation request for this meeting by Director pursuant

io Brown Act revisions of AB 2449 due to an emergency circumstance to be briefly
described.

2. REPORTS FROM MEMBER ENTITIES
3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

This time is provided for people to address the Board or submit written communications on matters not on the agenda.
At the conclusion of all oral communications, the Board may respond to statements. Any request that requires Board
action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff.

4. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board and are enacted in one motion. Thers
is no separate discussion of any of these items. If discussion is required, that item is removed from the Consent

Calendar and considered separately. At the end of the reading of the Consent Calendar, Board members or members
of the public can request that an item be removed for separate discussion.

4.1 Approve Minutes of September 28, 2023, Board Mesting.
4.2 Approve Disbursements Report.
4.3 Accept Financial Reports.

4.4 Approve Conflict of Interest Waiver with Braun Blaising & Wynne for representation
in_ contract negotiations with Sonoma Clean Power Authority.

5. REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

ltems removed from the Consent Calendar will be heard under this section.

6. OLD BUSINESS

6.1. 2018-2019 Financial Audit Report and Presentation by Auditor Baker Tilly US.

Accept and Approve Redwood Coast Energy Authority Financial Statements June

30, 2019 and 2018 and Associated Independent Auditors’ Report By Baker Tilly
US, LLP,

COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS (Confirm CCE Quorum)

ltems under this section of the agenda relate to CCE-specific business matters that fall under RCEA’s CCE voting

provisions, with only CCE-participating jurisdictions voting on these matters with weighted voling as established in the RCEA
joint powers agreement.

7. OLD CCE BUSINESS
7.1. Proposed RCEA Net Billing Tariff Adoption

Adopt Resolution No. 2023-9, Approving the RCEA Net Billing Tariff.




RCEA Qctober 26, 2023, Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

Page 3 secTion L 1- S .Q_ PAGE NO._2

8. NEW CCE BUSINESS
8.1. Energy Risk Management Quarterly Report — Information only
END OF COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS
9. NEW BUSINESS - None
10. STAFF REPORTS

10.1 Executive Director's Report
11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Any request that requires Board action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff.

12. CLOSED SESSION

12.1. Public Employee Performance Evaluation, pursuant to Government
Code Section 54957(b)(1): Executive Director.

13. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
14, CLOSED SESSION REPORT

15. ADJOURNMENT

NEXT REGULAR MEETING
Thursday, November 16, 2023, 3:30 p.m.
Wharfinger Building downstairs Bay Room, 1 Marina Way, Eureka, CA 95501.
Online and phone participation will also be possible via Zoom.




sECTION LY. b5 PAGE NO.

Redwood Region Economic Development Commission
325 2nd Street, Suite 203, Hureka, California 95501
Phone 707.445,9651 TFax 707.445.9652 www.tredc.com

REDWQOD REGION ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
In person: Eureka City Hall, Conference Room 207, 531 K Street, Eureka CA
or via Zoom
https://us02web.zoom.us/i/816262570537pwd=YUNpYm5pYXpDZk03ZzdIbXJBTmRoQTOY
Mesting |D: 816 2625 7053 Passcode: 613718
+16699006833,,81626257053#, *613718#

October 23, 2023 at 6:30 pm PT
AGENDA

I, Call to Order

il Approval of Agenda
A. Approval of Agenda for October 23, 2023

. Public Input for non-agenda items

Iv. Consent Calendar
A. Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting: August 28, 2023
B. Approval of Agency-wide Financials: July 2023 & August 2023
C. Approval of Annual EDA RLF Recertification
D. Closing Unused RREDC Cash Accounts at Humboldi County Treasury

V. Program ~ Amanda Pecanha Hickey, Director of Research & Policy, California Center for Rural
Policy, and Project Director, Community Economic Resilience Fund (CERF) - Redwood Region
Resilient Inclusive Sustainable Economy (RRRISE) hitps./fecrp.humboldt. edu/redwood-rise

VI, New Business None
Vil. Old Business None

VIll. Reporis — No Action Required
A. Executive Director's Report
B. Loan Portfolio Report

IX. Member Reports

X, Agenda/Program Requests for future Board of Directors Meetings
Xi. Adjourn

The Redwood Region Economic Development Commission will, on request, make agendas gvailable in appropriate alternative formats
to persons with a disability, as required by Saction 202 of the Amaticans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S5.C. Sec. 12732), and the
federal rtles and reguiations adoptad In implementation thereof. individuals who heed this agenda in an alternative format or who nead
& disability-refaled modificatfon or accommodation In order to pariicipate in the meeting should contact the Board Secretary at (707)
445-9651. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Commission fo make reasonable arrangements for accommodation.

RREDC Citier Arcata - Blue Lake * BEurela * Ferndale - Formr.m * Rio Dell - Trini_dﬂd

Member Commnnity Services Diserizts Humboldt * Manilz - McKinleyville © Orick © Orleans - Rcldway - Willow Cu_cck
Agencies Humbolde Bay Hatbor, Recteation and Conservation District « Flumbolde Bay Municipal Water District
County of Humboldt © Hoopa Valley Tribe + Redwoods Community College Distriet




	20231103_093930
	20231103_094116
	20231103_094348
	20231103_094454
	ADPE98D.tmp
	Time Set Items:
	ADJOURNMENT




